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Thames Water Utilities Limited

OPERATING SUMMARY for 2012/13

. Customers and environment benefited from ongoing, record investment

. Water bills remained second-lowest in the industry

. Leakage-reduction target hit for seventh consecutive year

. Additional costs incurred due to exceptional weather {drought then flooding)

. Bad debt increased as customers continued to be affected by the economic downturn

) Improved health and safety performance - 24% fall in reportable injuries

Customers

. Customer service improved but still far below desired level — a key area of on-going focus

. Drought water restrnictions imposed to conserve supplies between Apnl and June 2012, as a
result of the dnest two-year penod on record

. Increased incidence of flooding of some customers’ properties due to what became

England’s rainiest year on record — resources deployed to mit extent of flooding

Investment

. Nearly £1bn of essential improvements to networks for third consecutive year

- Construction of £635m four-mile Lee Tunnel sewer progressing

. £140m upgrade of Mogden sewage works completed — 54% increase n freatment capacity

. Submission of development consent order for Thames Tideway Tunnel '

. £250m committed investment in thermal hydrolysis technology to increase energy from waste
output

Performance

. Met annual leakage-reduction target for the seventh consecutive year

. Quality of customers’ tap water remains amoeng the best in the country

. “Secunty of supply” of water to customers at top level

. Environmental compliance of 350 sewage works remains close to best level ever

. Greenhouse emissions cut 12 5% on 1990 levels, on track to hit 20% by 2015

. Desalination plant used for the first tme to boost water supplies during drought

. Waste network under pressure - additional costs incurred tackling increased sewer flooding,
poliutions and blockages

. 100% of sewage sludge put to beneficial use

Innovation

. UK’s largest wastewater recycling plant contnbuted to the success of Olympic Park

. Deal agreed to run London's main sewage works on green energy

. UK first using food industry technology to “de-water” sewage sludge, substantially saving

cosis

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

) Underlying operating profit* for the year fell 9% to £549 3m (2011/12 £603 9m) due to
increased bad debt expense, nsing power costs, network maintenance costs and the
excephtional weather

Underlying profit after tax* for the year fell 31% to £150 0m (2011/12 £216 8m)

Annual revenue of £1 8bn (2011/12 £1 7bn) rose 6% largely due to RPI

Customer bad debt charge increased 33% to £93 7m (2011/12 £70 6m)

The Company paid dividends of £231 4m (2011/12 £279 5m), of which £92 Om (2011/12
£200 Om) was ultimately distnbuted to shareholders, a reduction of 54%

*Underlying operating prefit and underlying profit after tax exclude the impact of excephional items 201243 £mil (201112
£40m (before associated tax charge of £8 6m) pension curtailment gain)
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Looking ahead

. Fundamental business review under way to generate cost-savings and service improvements

. Plans being developed to apply to Ofwat to recover sigruficant unfunded costs resulting from
transfer of private sewers, bad debt and the Thames Tideway Tunnel

. Alhance formed with contractors to deliver the 2015-2020 investment programme

Capital efficiencies totalling £90m secured since 2010 will be reinvested in the business

Martin Baggs, Chief Executive of Thames Water, said’ "Over the past financial year exceptional
weather conditions have presented tough challenges for the business The period began with a
drought, following the driest two-year period on record, and ended with widespread flooding after
becoming England’s rainiest 12 months on record

“‘Despite these challenges we have for the third year running carned out a further £1bn of
improvements to our networks, while the average household bill in our region Is the second-lowest In
the country Our operational performance remains strong

“We are now focussed on the significant challenges ahead, including continuing to improve customer
service and continuing to support and promote the Thames Tideway Tunnel ”

Safe, reliable services for customers - reliable returns for shareholders
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We provide the essential service

at the heart of daily life, health
and enjoyment.

We built the UK's
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Chairman’s Statement

Review of 2012/13

This has been a testing year for Thames Water
The exceptional weather aggravated a series of
operational challenges and increased costs The
economic downturn caused customer bad debt to
nse and standards of customer service, while now
recovenng, dipped dunng the year

The early part of 2012 was marked by a drought,
caused by the dnest two-year period on record,
whereas the end of the year saw widespread
flooding resulting from record ramnfall In the
intervening period the Company, in its official
capacity of Water and Wastewater Services
Provider, played a key role in the smooth running
of the London Olympic Games

A further £1bn of mprovements to our
infrastructure took place, including a major
expansion of west London’s main sewage works
and good progress on the £635m Lee Tunnel
sewer Another notable success was a further
improvement In safety performance, with a 24%
reduction in reportable injurnes A significant and
unavoidable downside to our work to manage the
impact of both floods and droughts, however, was
an increase in operational costs

Rising customer bad debt 1s an ongoing concern
for the Board, as 1s the Company's Service
Incentive Mechamsm (“SIM™) score The Board 1s
focussed on supporting the Chief Executive and
his executive team to deliver a fundamental
review of the structure and operation of every part
of the business

2

The challenges contributed to a fall in underlying
operating profit* to £549 3m (2011/12 £603 9m)
This dip in financial performance led to the
Board's decision to reduce dividends declared this
year to £231 4m (2011/12 £279 5m), and 1t was
duly agreed that there would be no distnbutions to
the shareholders of Kemble Water Holdings
Limited, which owns Thames Water, in the
second half of the year External distributions for
the whole 12-month pernod fell 54% to £92 Om
(2011/12 £200 Om)

In last year's annual repert we increased our
public disclosure, and we have taken note of
Ofwat's recent calls for increased transparency
and clearer explanations of governance
structures The Board remains committed to
meeting high standards of governance, and being
fully accountable to our customers

Regulatory developments

Working together with the wider industry we were
able to agree to Ofwat's proposed changes to
Thames Water's licence These changes enable
Ofwat to carry out two separate pnice-setting
controls at the industry review of pnces in 2014
(“PR14™) One would be for retal (customer
services and account handling) and another for
wholesale (pipes and treatment works) activities
The Board welcomes these changes and therr
wider aim of expanding, over time, the competitive
market within the water industry for the benefit of
customers

*Undertying operating profit excludes the impact of exceptional tems 2012/13 £mil (2011/12 £40m pension curtailment gan)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Future outlock

| do not expect the coming year to provide any
less of a test for the Company Preparations for
PR14 will be a key area of focus In December
2013, Thames Water will submit its business plan
to Ofwat for the five years from 2015 Before this
submission the Company will complete a major
consultation with its customers to ensure the plan
meets therr expectations while keeping bills as
iow as possible

In addiion to planning for the next fve-year
regulatory period, the Company 15 defining its
water resource plans for the penod to 2040, by
which time it expects to be supplying 1 4 million
more people than today Customers are also
being asked for their views on these plans

in the near term the Company will continue to
work with Government and Ofwat to finalise a
funding structure for the nationally important
Thames Tideway Tunnel The proposed structure
envisages a separately regulated company will
construct and own the Thames Tideway Tunnel,
thus minimising the cost to Thames Woater
customers

The tunnel s urgently needed to tackle major
discharges of sewage into the River Thames for
London's overstretched Victorian sewerage
network U i1s essential if the UK 1s to meet the
requirements of the Urban Wastewater Treatment
Directive

In taking forward these plans we will not lose sight
of our essental purpose — delivenng safe, reliable
and cost effective services, along with fair returns
for shareholders, while continuing to protect the
natural environment on which our business
depends

Ry —

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Chairman
6 June 2013
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Chief Executive Officer’s report

Our mission

We provide the essential service that is at the heart of daily Iife, health and enjoyment

Our vision

If customers had a choice, they would choose Thames Water

Our customer experience

Customers choose Thames Water because

. They trust us
. We are easy to do business with
. We really care

Safe, reliable services for customers and reliable returns for shareholders

Our strategy to deliver these expectations Is to
keep customer bills as low as possible whilst
investing efficiently in our assets to ensure our
customers’ needs are met We am to meet or
beat our regulatory outputs and financial
settlement to provide the returns our shareholders
require and expect, whilst mamtaining affordable
customer hills

Our shareholders’ equity 1s crucal to the
company’s ability to carry out 1is day-to-day
activities affordably both now and In future In the
same way we deliver safe, rehable services to our
customers, we aspire to provide reliable returns to
our shareholders, 70% of whom are pension
funds

Summary for the year ended 31 March 2013

Exceptional weather presented tough challenges
for the business last year It began with a drought,
fallowing the driest two-year pernod on record, and
ended with widespread flooding after becoming
England's raimest year since records began

We were very disappointed that we had to impose
water restrictions in Apni 2012 on our Sm water
customers in Lendon and the Thames Valley, but
in the circumstances we had no chaice

Our desalination plant, at Beckten in east London,
was used for the first time to boost water supplies
during the drought This helped ensure “secunty
of supply” to customers remained at the top level

With London hosting the Queen's Diamond
Jubilee celebrations and the Olympic Games,
keeping waler running In the capital was crucial

Water for rngation and toilet-flushing supplied by
Old Ford, the UK's largest wastewater recychng
plant, helped cut the Olympic Park’'s reliance on
tap water by up to 58%

By the end of the year, following record ranfall,
our focus was protectng our customers from
sewer flooding as nivers burst therr banks and
inundated some parts of our network A fleet of
tanker trucks was deployed to relieve overloaded
sewers

Dealing with drought and flooding cost us an
additicnal £17m This cost was borne by
shareholders, who are exposed to these risks so
our customers do not have to be It also meant
that our carbon emissions, which had fallen In
previous years, increased 1n 2012/13

Also adding to our running costs were rising
power prices, Increased bad debt due to the
economic downturn, and having to mamntamn an
additional 40,000km of sewers transferred to our
ownership following a law change in October
2011

Since privatisation 1n 1989, we have delivered a
total of £17bn 1n upgrades to our ageing
infrastructure As a result, our operational
performance remains close to its best ever level
This transformation was facllitated by the
regulatory regme following  privatisation
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Chrief Executive Officer’s report (continued)

We outperformed our annual leakage-reduction
target, agreed with the regulator Ofwat, for the
seventh consecutive year The qualty of water to
our customers’ taps remained among the best in
the industry The performance of our 350 sewage
works remained close to its best-ever level Our
safety performance also improved Reportable
injurtes at our sites fell 24% over the perod

We remain committed to improving customer
service While we've seen a significant reduction
in complaints last year, we stil have a long way to
go We are currently redesigning our processes
with the am of delivering service improvements
for our customers

To achieve further value for customers over the
long term, we plan to carry out around 50% of our
investment programme for the next five-year
regulatory penecd, 2015 to 2020, using an alliance
of our contractors and Thames Water Last year
we started our “early contractor mvolvement’
tender process, marking a radical change for the
industry

Work progressed to plan on the £635m Lee
Tunnel to tackle sewage overflows to the River
Lee from London's overstretched Victorian sewer
network A £140m upgrade of Mogden, one of five
major London sewage works, s also now
complete This work 1s part of a £54bn
programme to significantly reduce the number of
sewage overflows to the tidal River Thames

The final part of this programme 1s the £4 2bn
Thames Tideway Tunnel A development consent
order for this scheme was submitted to the
Planning Inspectorate in February 2013 Work 1s
set to start on the tunnel in 2016 Thames Water
15 not expected to finance or build the tunnel,
although we will continue to support its promotion
and development

In the first three years of our £1bn-a-year 2010 to
2015 programme of work to improve our water
mains, sewers and other facikities we have beaten
our budget by £130m We plan to reinvest £90m
of these cost-savings n further operational, safety
and customer service-related improvements

Last year 12 5% - 151 Gigawatt hours (*GWh") -
of our 1,200 GWh electncity requirement was self-
generated from renewable sources, chiefly
sewage sludge The mstallation of £250m of
thermal hydrolysis “pressure cookers” at six of our
main sewage works will increase our energy from
waste production to our target of 20% by 2015

Once again we put 100% of our sewage sludge to
beneficial use, sending much of it to farmers as
soll conditioner We nstalled the first of 19 Bucher
presses - a UK first - at one of our sewage works
Untit now the presses have been used by cider-
makers to squeeze juice from apples We are
using them to “de-water” sludge This will reduce
its volume, saving £2m a year in removal costs by
reducing the number of lornes on the roads

We signed a histonc deal that will see Beckton,
the UK's largest sewage works, running on green
energy generated from bie fuels from April 2015
We will buy around 60% of the electricity
produced by a new power station, the largest of
its type In the world We also plan to provide
much of the fuel needed to run it, in the form of
waste fat harvested from London restaurants
This will provide the further benefit of helping to
reduce the amount of sewer-blocking fat entening
our network

Finally our people — many have worked tirelessly
to manage the challenges presented by drought,
the Olympics and the exceptionally wet weather |
am very grateful for the continued dedication
shown by our staff and contractors in these
circumstances | am also pleased that continued
focus on health and safety has delivered a 24%
reduction In reportable injuries, but as we know,
we must strive to ensure that everyone goes
home safely every day

Martin Baggs
Chief Executive Officer
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Business review

Key Performance Indicator summary

The following Key Performance Indicators ("KPI”) are considered crucial to measunng the success of our
business and are monitored by the Board They provide a snapshot of performance during 2012/13

Caring for our
customers, our

community and

our people

O Health
and safety
Service

O incentve

mechanism’
Coiposate

O responsibiity

ndex

*Ofwat KPIs

Providing a safe
and reliable
water service

Onnking
water quality

Secunty of
supply index”

Supply
intesruptions”

Assel
O performance”

{obove ground)

Assel
performance”
{betow grourdd}

Providing a safe
and reliable
wastewater
service

O Sewer flooding’

Dischaige
compliance”

Assel
O performance®

(above greund)

Assel
O periormance’

{below ground)

Limiting our
environmental
impact

Giecenhouse
gas emissions”

Pollution

Condition
of 5551's

Most indicators are “green”, but there are four which are “amber”

Providing value
for money

O Average bill
O Post {ax return”

Credit 1aiing
Gearing
Interest cover”

¢ sewer flooding because of the number of incidents of property flooding following the wettest year on

record,

» wastewater asset performance (below ground) due to the downgrading of our waste water network
from stable to marginal,
e pollution incidents due to the number of incidents which exceeded the industry average for 2008 to

2010, and,

e post tax return, which has fallen below the target mainly as a result of the nsing levels of bad debt

caused by customers not paying their bills due to the econemic downturn

In thus Business review we discuss the KPIs and the impacts on the operational and financial results of the

business
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Business review (continued)

Caring for our customers

We are committed to delivering a good service and aim to put customers at the heart
of everything that we do. We have made some big improvements over the year, but
customer service remains a top priority and we realise that we have to keep doing

better

Providing a good service to our customers s
reafly important to us We am to

¢ do the nght thing for our customers

« deliver the basics and get things nght first
time

e Improve our services so that things go
wrong less often and customers are
pleased with the work that we do

« Invest in our people to buld a stronger
customer service culture

Our commitment to providing a high-quahty
service 15 detalled in our Customer Guarantee
Scheme, which sets out our standards and the
compensation payments we will make If we fail to
meet them The Scheme s avalable on our
website

(http //www thameswater co uk/tw/common/down!
oads/literature-customer-guarantee-
scheme/customer-quarantee-scheme-detailed-

version pdf)

How did we do?

KPIl Service Incentive Mechanism (“SIM") 62 90 points
(2011/12 62 61 points)

SIM 1s a mechamism used to meéasure the quality
of service provided to customers, with both
qualtative and quanttative elements

We are disappointed with our customer service
performance Simply put, we did not do as well as

we wanted to It was a challenging start to the year
and the introduction of a new IT system, together
with the ongoing heavy rainfall, put a strain on ocur
resources and the service we were able to provide

We took steps to put things nght, including
developing and tmplementing a 10 point plan to
improve customer service As a result, the second
half of the year has seen a significant drop in the
number of wntten cornplants we receved and our
call handling and follow up activities improved for
customers

Written complaints fell by 6% compared to 2011/12
In total, we received and responded to 32,000
written complaints (2011/12 34,000)

Based on quarterly Ofwat-commissioned customer
satisfaction surveys, our overall score was 3 § out
of 5 This 1s a disappointing drop from the 41
achieved last year

Our overall annual SIM performance has seen a
small improvement, from 62 61 out of 100 to 62 90
Although under Ofwat's cntenia this level of
performance I1s given a ‘“green” status, we
recognise that it 1s simply not good enough

We have the plans in place to improve and
recognise that we need to continue to improve our
service to customers with this remaining a key
focus of the Board into 2013/14 and beyond
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Business review (continued)

Caring for our people

We aim to recruit and retain the best people, and help them reach their true potential We want all our
employees and contractors to be safe and healthy Our vision i1s to achieve zero incidents and zero
harm, to our staff, contractors and everyone affected by our work, by never compromising on health

and safety

KPPl Reportable injunes 0 25 njunes per 1,000 employees
(2011/12 0 33 injunes per 1,000 employees)

Health, safety and wellbeing

This 1s our top prionty  Our shared wvision for our
employees, contractors and wisitors 15 zero
accidents, zero harm and zero compromise

Overall the position 15 good and during 2012/13
our health and safety performance has showed
improvement, with a reduction in the number of
significant incidents and a 24% decrease n the
number of Reporting of Inunes, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (*RIDDOR")
reportable imunes Qur KPI 1s therefore given a
green status

However, there 1s still more that can be done, for
example, our lost tme Injunes have increased
shghtly i 2012/13 (from 0 91 to 0 95 injunes per
1,000 employees)

We have taken significant steps to help us
improve our performance These included
¢+ a 50% increase In health and safety site
inspections compared to 2011/12, with
11,389 completed duning the year
s delivery of an extensive health and safety
training programme with over 6,000 days
of training delivered in 2012113
« working in partnership  with  our
contractors through an established Health
and Safety Leadership Team to set a
sernes of essential standards for high nsk
achivities

Dunng 2012/13, we developed a wellbeing and
stress policy for our employees

Traning and gudance for managers was
developed to help them reccgmise and manage
employees with symptoms of stress related ill-
health, and to help employees to recognise and
manage their own stress levels

However, we recogmise that there 1s stll some
way to go to achieve the vision of zero accidents

and zero harm
Recruiting and retaining

Thames Water 1s committed to developing new
talent We have been operating a successful
Apprenticeship Programme for many years We
currently have 47 apprentices in the business and
are investing in another 15 apprentices 1n 2013/14,
including for the first time, higher apprenticeships in
our laboratories

We also have a Graduate Programme which seeks
to nurture future people managers and leaders
During 2012/13 we recruted 23 graduates onto this
programme

Providing support and opportunities

We realise the success of our business i1s highly
dependent on the qualty and performance of our
employees Learming and development s
fundamental to ensunng we have capable,
confident and skilled people throughout the
business We use our Talking Talent process to
identify individuals’ potential, retention nsks and
strengthen our succession planning

Dunng 2012/13, over 7000 formal learning and
development days were completed In addition,
6,000 days of Health & Safety training were
completed

Employee involvement

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO™} and the
Executive team hold quarterly management
briefings with managers to provide the oppontunity
to discuss performance and how the Company can
continue to move forward There were also a
series of “Roadshows™ dunng the year when the
executive team visited 40 of our sites to brief and
engage with the site teams  We have also
launched an “adopt a site” programme tn which
semior managers provide support to a specific
operational site

Internal publicatons (“Management toolkit” and
“The Source™) provide ongoing support for the
changes and transformation happening across the
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Business review (continued)

Company This 1s in addition to the further
improvement of the Company’s corporate and
local communication channels that delwer regular
communication, information and updates to
employees Corporate communications nclude
Company-wide Team Talk briefings, a weekly e-
brief containing a message from the CEO, the
Company's internal portal web pages and specific
prionty news updates and managers' key
information

Formal consultation with employees 1s undertaken
in partnership with the recognised Trade Unicns
Consultatron with management level employees
typically takes place on an indvidual basts, except
in the case of changes that affect whole areas of
the business In these circumstances,
consultation takes place on a Company-wide
basis with employee representatives being

Caring for our community and stakeholders

elected for the relevant area
Engaged and focused

We run an annual employee engagement survey,
which gives our people the chance to provide
confidentially their honest views on what it 1s like to
work for Thames Water Dunng 2012/13 we saw a
shght dip in the overall engagement survey results
The survey took place agamnst a challenging
business backdrop and it 1s our am to address
areas identified in the coming year

We have a performance and development review
process (PDR) that 1s core In setting expectations,
performance objectives and development with our
people every year, focussing employees on what i1s
important in therr roles

We aim to contnbute positively to the community, to be a good neighbour and to act on the views of

our stakeholders

KPI Corporate responsibility mdex Platnum (2011/12
Platinum)

Listening to our stakeholders

Listening to and acting on the views of our
stakeho!ders 1s really smportant to us and over the
past year we did this in a number of ways

» we consulted with our customers and
other stakeholders on major projects such
as the upgrade of Deephams sewage
works

« we also consulted on our long-term
business strategy

+« we held our annual stakeholder event to
meet with key interest groups to discuss
how we were doing and what we had
planned

» we also met regularly with our “Customer
Challenge Group®, made up of a range of
stakeholders, to discuss and be
challenged on our longer term plans

The feedback prowdes extremely useful
information, which we are using to develop our
plans for the future, including those for submission
as part of the 2014 price review

In Qctober 2012, we contacted over 2 million of our
wastewater-only customers to highlight the impact
of the Thames Tideway Tunnel on their future bills

Being a good neighbour

One area in which we seek to contribute to our
communities 1s our commumity speaker programme
Qur employee volunteers gave over 100 talks to
schools and community groups

In addition we are developing education centres at
our Slough, Walthamstow, Maple Lodge and Didcot
sites and have completed the new angling academy
at our Walthamstow Reservoirs fishery
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Business review (continued)

A safe and reliable water service

We aim to provide a safe and rehable water service that 1s available when our customers require it

This means supplying our customers with water
that meets all health and safety requirements,
while making sure that water reaches our
customers’ taps all day, every day

Providing safe and clean drinking water

KP! Dnnking water quality 99 97% (2011/12 99 98%)

Qur drinking water qualty remains among the
best in the world Durnng the year ended 31
December 2012, we carned out more than
400,000 tests to ensure our water met stringent
UK and European standards and achieved a
compliance score of 99 97% This i1s slightly lower
than for the year ended 31 December 2011, but
remains above the industry average

The number of dnnking water qualty related
contacts we recewved from customers remained
very low at 069 per 1,000 people This compares
favourably to the industry average of 1 91

Providing a reliable supply of water

KPl Supply interruptions 0 22 hours (2011/12 0 21
hours)

Reliability of supply 1s measured by the number of
interruptions  to supply which our customers
expenenced last year On average, each property
was without supply for 022 hours {13 minutes)
This performance 15 shghtly worse than last year
due to teething troubles with a new IT system
{which affected the speed at which we responded
to such incidents), but continues to be assessed
as good in companson to other companies

KPl Secunty of Supply Index 100 (2011/12 100)

Longer term reliability 1s measured by the secunty
of supply index This measures the balance
between the amount of water available and the
demand for water from our network We have
achieved an index of 100, the maximum, for the
last three years which means that we should
never have to introduce severe water use

restrictions, but may need to apply a {temporary
use) hosepipe ban during a really dry year This
happened in Apnl 2012 However, the following
months were so wet that we were able to Iift the
restrictions in June 2012

To encourage and support customers to use water
wisely we have a metering and water efficiency
programme

About 30% of our domestic customers have water
meters Our customers can request a meter free of
charge and m 2012/13 we mstalled 29,083 meters
for customers who requested one

As well as making sure that water 1s used wisely,
we completed work at two water treatment works
(Manor Road and Ashdown Park) to increase our
available supphies by 4 million tres per day These
projects cost £1m and are required to serve the
additional customers expected from population
growth in our area

Looking after our assets

KPI| Asset performance (above ground) Stable (2011/12
Stable)

KPi Asset performance (below ground) Stable (2011/12
Stable

The performance of our water mains, pumping
stations and treatment works (serviceability) 1s
measured by analysing trends in performance
against a range of measures This analysis shows
that the performance of our assets has remained
“Stable” this year This means that we are investing
the nght amount

Delivering our outputs

In 2012/13, we have successfully met all the key
outputs required by our regulators for the water
service We invested £237m 1n maintaining existing
water assets and £69m developing new ones
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Business review (continued)

A safe and reliable wastewater service

We will provide a safe and rehiable wastewater service that 1s available when our customers require it

This means disposing of our wastewater in a way
that meets all health and environmental
standards, whilst taking away customers'
wastewater without inconvenience every day
Transporting wastewater from homes to
treatment works safely

KP| Repeat sewer fltooding 549 incidents {(2011/12 355
incidents)

Most of the time we got this nght, however when
we get it wrong this 1s extremely distressing for
the customers affected as it can cause gardens
and properties to flood

The sewer flooding KPl measures incidents of
internal flooding at properties which have also
flooded in previous years This 15 because
compantes should take action to prevent repeat
flooding This year there were 548 such repeat
incidents, an increase of 194 in comparison to the
previous year

The record ramnfall in the year caused large
quantities of groundwater and river water to enter
our sewers We deployed tankers around the
clock to take away excess water from overloaded
sewers to prevent the sewers from overflowing
and flooding properties However, in some areas
the network could not cope and sewers
overflowed causing floodng We recognise,
however, that regardless of these excepticnal
circumstances, we have not always provided the
best service to our customers

Preventing sewer flooding 1s one of our key
prronties and we have a range of measures to
help us to mprove, including work to reduce
blockages as well as work to increase the
capacity of our sewers In pinch point areas

Managing and treating wastewater reliably

KP! Discharge comphance 99 13%, (2011/12 99 71%)

The Environment Agency sets a quality target for
each of our 350 sewage treatment works Dunng
2012/13, we achieved a complhance level of over
99%, which 1s a leading position across the
industry

Sludge disposal

KPI Sludge disposal 100% (2011/12 100%)

Sewage sludge 1s the main sohd left behind after
wastewater has been treated

The KPI measures the percentage of sewage
sludge disposed of satisfactonly Al of our siudge
was disposed of safely, therefore this measure
shows a green status

Limiting odour from works

We aim to be a good neighbour, mimimising the
odour occasionally caused by our works We have
completed work to improve odour control at six sites
with a further three sites to be completed by 2015

In addition, as part of the £140m upgrade of
Mogden sewage works, which increased capacity
by 54%, we have nstalled odour monitoring
equipment further improving existing odour control
During the year, fong running group legal
proceedings relating to odour from Mogden have
also concluded

Looking after our assets

KPI Asset performance (above ground) Stable (2011712
Stable)

KPI Asset performance (below greund} Marginal (2011/12
Stable)

The rating for our sewers and pumping stations
moved from “stable” to “marginal” this year, which 1S
areal concern This was due to the increase n the
number of sewer flooding and pollution Incidents
from our sewer network We have plans in place to
address this as quickly as possible

Overall delivery of regulatory outputs

In 2012/13, we Invested £225m in maintaining
existing wastewater assets and £447m developing
new ones We met our targets for delivery of
specific projects to maintain and improve our
assets However, as described above, we did not
meet our target for a “stable” rating for our sewers
and pumping stations
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Limiting our environmental impact

What we do impacts on the environment in many ways We have a duty to protect the environment,
both now and in the future and we take this very sernously

Limiting and responding to climate change

Climate change requires us to act today so we are
prepared for tomorrow

Understanding and addressing the causes of
climate change and adapting to its consequences
are key elements of our business planning Recent
exceptional weather cannot be ignored and has a
major impact on our business

Reducing emissions

KPI Greenhouse gas emissions 770 KtCOze (2011/12
741 KICO28e)

By 2015 we aim to have cut our greenhouse
(GHG) emissions (CO.e - carbon dioxide
equivalent) by 20% compared with 1990 levels

To date we have reduced emissions by 12 5%,
despite serving the equivalent of 3 milkon more
customers than in 1990 and having to meet today'’s
higher treatment standards The reduction 1s lower
than the previous year due to the increased
pumping and treatment of wastewater resulting
from record rainfall

We generated 156GWh of renewable energy at
our operational stes We used 151GWh of this
electricity ourselves and exported the remaining
Gwh to the National Gnd In total, 12 5% of our
efectricity needs were covered by self-generated
renewable electncity

In 2012/13 we increased our renewable energy
generation capacity by 1,001 5 kW by

e Instaling an additional 990 0kW of
photovoltaic solar energy generation
capactty across 10 sites

+ Installing a smali (11 5kW) hydroelectric
turbine at Oxford sewage treatment outfall

Since 2007/08 we have reduced our consumption
of energy by 5% from 1,348 GWh to 1,282 GWh
Last year, we delivered 20 3 GWh of new energy
efficiencies through installing sub meters at sites to
identify opportuntties to cut energy usage and

12

through improving pumping station and sewage
treatment work performance

Our efforts to reduce carbon emissions are
recognised by our accreditation to the Carbon
Trust Standard

Preventing pollution incidents

KPI Pollution incidents

All sewerage 68 5 incidents per 10,000 km sewer
(2011712 37 8 wmadents per 10,000 km sewer)
Senous sewerage 2 3 incidents per 10,000 km sewer
(2011712 2 9 incidents per 10,000 km sewer)

The EA categonses pollution incidents on a scale
from one (most serious) to four (no significant
environmental impact) It maintains the official
database of all reported pollution incidents and
confirms numbers for each calendar year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total
number of Category 1 and 2 pollutions were 16 (21
in 2011} The number of Category 3 pollutions
increased 89% to 461

The two pollution incident KPls are flagged as
“amber”, reflecting the comparison with the 2008-
10 water industry average (as required by Ofwat)

One of our most sernious incidents was at
Beddington sewage works where a fire destroyed
the powerhouse and control room, resulting n total
loss of treatment capability This caused
significant pollution to the River Wandle Despite
our immediate response, a number of fish were
kiled This was very disappointing given all the
hard work and investment to improve the river after
a more serious pollution incident in 2007

The overall increase in pollution incidents last year
was partly due to record levels of ramfall, with
some sewers overflowing and causing pollution as
a result It was also partally due to an
improvement In cur processes which meant that
we were able to identify mare incidents and report
these to the Environment Agency (“EA") However,
we think that our performance last year also had
an impact, for example the sheer volume of rainfall
dunng the year led to a significant increase in the
number of incidents, which in turn affected the
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speed at which we able to respond to incidents
We are working hard to improve our performance

As part of this plan we have introduced a 24/7
pollution and tankering desk to speed up response
to incidents We also have a team focused on
cleaning and maintenance at blockage hotspots,
and we have improved alarm systems to help
identify problems with our sewers and pumping
statrons before they cause a pollution incident

Managing leakage

KP! Leakage 646 million litres per day (2011/12 637
million htres per day)

Leakage remains a key issue for the business,
reflecting the prionties of our customers and
stakeholders Although leakage 1s shightly higher
than in 2011/12 due to a colder winter, we have
beaten our leakage target for the seventh year in
succession This has been achieved by repainng
leaks and replacing 73 km (202 km in 2011/12) of
old pipes Since Apnl 2007 we have replaced
1,886 km of water mains out of around 31,000 km,
or 6% of the network at a cost of £797 5m

To completely replace the water network with
modern equivalent assets and effectively mimmise
leakage would take a number of years and cost in
excess of £12bn  In anybody’s estimation this 1s a
significant cost to the business, which would
impact customers’ bills — it 1s simply not viable

In order to manage leakage we use a number of
tools and imtiatives

e  Trunkminder - Monitors ocur trunk mains to
identify underground leaks as soon as they
occur This allows time to repair a leak before
it causes the pipe to burst If a burst does
occur, the technology raises the alarm so that
the pipe can be fixed more quickly

¢ “Smart” Metenng — A tnal carred out using
water meter technologies This allows for
meters to be read remotely on a more regular
basis to help identify leaks from water supply
pipes and respond quickly

+« JD7 Pipescan+ technology - to get full life use
out of existing pipes and to build knowledge of
therr detenioration rates This will help to
reduce operational and maintenance costs
and disruption

We have reduced leakage from over 790 mid in
2006/7 to 646 mid in 2012/13, however, significant
parts of our water network are over 100 years old
and it s an ongoing challenge to maintain them to
the standard required, both In terms of physically
performing the work safely and without causing
significant disruption As part of our AMP 6 plans
we are proposing to reduce leakage by a further 53
mid by 2020, through a combination of further
mains replacement and efficient management of
the network It 15 estimated that the investment
needed to achieve this reduction 1s in the region of
£300m on top of the current level of iInvestment n
the water network

Managing and reducing leakage remains a prionty
for the Company and investing to reduce leakage
15 one of the tools used to ensure that there 15
enough water available to serve our customers
This 1s, however, an economic and environmentai
equation and in order to have affordable bills for
customers we must balance up the costs of
reducing leakage, the costs and environmental
impacts of water abstraction, and the cost and
ability to develop new sources of water such as
trading with other companies

Environmental and wildlife improvements

KPI Condition of SSSI's 99% (2011/12 100%)

We are custodians of a number of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest (“SSSI") 99% of these were
classified either as “favourable” or “unfavourable
recovenng” conditons This Key Performance
Indicator 1s green as we are above the 95% target
set by Natural England

We improved access to the Crossness Southern
Marshes and Crossness Nature Reserve, at which
a rare bumblebee, the Shnll Carder, was spotted
Its presence demonstrates successful habitat
management

Recycling waste

We continue to lead the way in recycling matenal
excavated from our street works  This was
recycled as reinstated road and pavement surfaces
once the work was complete

We recycled an average of 99 5% of all wastes
produced from capital projects in 2012/13
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Providing value for money and investment

We aim to give value for customers’ money whilst also providing appropnate returns for the investors
who provide the capital that we spend on behalf of customers At a time when household budgets are
tight, 1t 1s more important than ever that we find cost-effective ways to delver our services

Financial Key Performance Indicators {KPIs)

Key Performance

Indicator Units Description 2013 Target
Average £ per The average combned water and wastewater bill for household 176 Industry
household bill financial year [customers average
% Current cost operat rofit less tax as a return on regulato Final
Post tax retumn* P "3 P 9 v 485 determination
financial year jcaptal valua
(FO)
Indicates the Company’s ability to comply wath its {Moody's
Credit rating* Rating licance requirament to mamntain an investment Corporate investment grade credit
rating
grade credit rating Family Rating §
. % This shows net debt as a percentage of total regulatory capital Covenant
Geanng 85%
financial year | value at financial year end tngger
Rato of | The interest coverage ratio 18 a measure of the number of tmes
Interest cover* eamings to |the Company could make the interast payments on its debt with 11 Covenant
v interest  |its eamings before interest and taxes This measures the tngger
payments |Company's ability to repay its debt based on available cashflow

"KPI's we are required to report on by Ofwat

Financial KPI commentary

The financial KPls show that despite the
operational challenges experienced i 2012/13 and
therr resultant impact on the Company's financial
performance, the overall positton remains sound

Our average household bill, which represents the
cost of our services to customers, was £336 for
2012/13, £40 below the industry average

This average reflected a 6 7% increase from
201112 in regulated bills (RPI of 52% and real
terms increase of 15%) The Company chose to
forego a further increase of 27% in 2012/13 to
which it was entitled in the AMP 5 determination
This increment had been allowed to fund costs that
the Company nho longer expected to incur dunng
AMP 5 It was appropriate to pass this saving on to
Customers now rather than waiting for the
regulatory process to complete for AMP 6

For 2013/14 customers will see ther bills nse by
around 5 5% (RPI of 3% plus real terms increase of
25%) to enable the continuing nvestment In
infrastructure to deliver the quality and standard of
services our customers and other stakeholders
expect

The post-tax return, which represents a measure

of the return the Company makes on its asset base
and hence to its ultimate shareholders, was 4 31%
This represents a significant reduction from 6 34%
in 2011412 and 4 85% return expected in the final
determination, hence this has been classified as
Amber The reduction has been drniven by the
increased bad debt charges, network costs and
drought costs The restructuring and efficiency
programme currently being undertaken should
impact the post-tax return positively during the
remainder of AMP 5 as cost savings are realised

The Company maintained its strong investment
grade credit ratings from S&P and Moody's The
Corporate Family Rating (“CFR") assigned by
Moody's remained at Baatl, this rating reflects the
aggregate rating of the different classes of
outstanding debt obligations 1ssued by the financing
subsidiaries of the Company It 15 a licence
requirement to use all reasonable endeavours to
maintain an investment grade CFR Maintaining this
ensures the Company can access the debt funding
needed to deliver the investment programme 1n an
efficient and cost effective manner

The Company's gearing reduced 0 9% to 77 4%
and interest cover increased from 14 times for
2011/12to 1 7 times for 2012/13
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Financial results

Total Company

2013 2012
Tumover 1,791 9 16949
Underying operating
expenditure (785 1) (675 4)
Depreciation and
tnfrastructure renewals charge (4575) (4158)
Undenying operating profit 549 3 603 &
Underying profit before tax 144 9 1822
Total net capital expenditure 969 2 1,063 8

Regulated business

% Change 2013 2012 % Change
57 1,758 9 16709 53

162 (769 8) (665 8) 156

101 (456 5) (414 6) 101

(90) 543 4 594 4 (8 5)

(20 5) 128 4 1690 (24 0)

89 963 2 1,056 1 (8 8)

Underlying measures exclude the impact of exceptional items 2012113 £mil (2011712 £40m pension curtaiment gain)

The regulated business shows the financial results of the Company’s regulated activities These are the
achvities necessary In order for a company to fulfil the function and duties of a water and sewerage undertaker

under the Water Industry Act 1991

Turnover

Turnover for the year was £1,791 Sm {2011/12
£1,694 9m), 57% up from the previous year This
increase reflected a 6 7% increase in regulated bills
This increase was partially offset by lower metered
consumption of £9 5m  This reflects our campaign
to use water wisely during the drought at the
beginning of the year and then lower usage n the
second half of the year duning the wettest year on
record

Operating expenditure

Operating expenditure increased significantly n
2012/43 to £7851m On an underlying basis this
represents an increase of £109 7m from 2011/12
This reflects operating costs increases in our
networks and customer service functions and
increased bad debt expense, as well as general
inflationary pressures

In the networks there was a significant increase of
activity In the water network addiional resource
was mobilised to reduce leakage ahead of the
Olympics, as dunng the games there were
restrictions on how we were able to work in London
There has also been significant expenditure on the
waste network This ncluded clearing more
blockages than anticipated and the tankenng of
waste out of the network, to try to minimise sewer

flooding as a result of the second wettest year since
records began The sheer volume of rain, especially
later in the year when it was falling on to already
saturated ground has overwhelmed the sewer
network in a number of locations The network was
simply not designed to cope with this amount of
water We have done what we can to assist
customers In these circumstances, but we also
recognise the significant distress that sewer flooding
causes

We also invested in customer service, spending an
additiona! £2m employing more people to answer
the phone to customers and to deal with customer
correspondence and complaints  This additional
expenditure 1§ above the level anticipated in the
Final Determination by Ofwat and ts therefore not
being paid for by customers

The Company’s bad debt charge in the year has
increased by E231m compared to 2011/12 to
£937m This charge represents 5 3% of regulated
turnover, significantly ahead of that expernenced on
average duning AMP 4 (2 5%)

Dunng the year there was a continued focus on the
Company's debtor collections Reduced collection
rates have required us to review our provisions to
ensure they reflect the harsh economic environment
This has led to an increased level of provisioning to
reflect the current levels of collections following a
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comprehensive review of the judgments taken by
management in this area The bad debt charge of
£93 7m compares to a final determination allowance
of £398m The level of bad debt charge 15 a
notfiable item in the fina! determination and so, If
certain tngger levels are met, the Company can
apply for an intenm determination of K (*IDoK") to
recover these additonal costs dunng the current
AMP

Going forward, it 1s feared that the continuation of
the current economic conditions mean that we will
continue to see bad debt charges of around £60m
per year as customers continue to be affected by the
economic downturn

Saving money through innovation

Last year we delivered a number of innovative
projects

Some of these innovations are hsted below

In water treatment, we investigated a number of new
ways to mmimise biological threats and reduce
costs For example, algal blooms restrict the
capacity of our water treatment works and increase
treatment costs by around £36m a year A new
appreach to combatting this problem was to install a
“iving filter” of baffles and plants at the outlet tower
of one of our reservoirs In Oxford, to encourage an
ecology that eats algae

We are also tnalling an emerging product called
BioBullets to reduce the amount of zebra mussels
which bulld up m our raw water tunnels and
treatment works, causing significant clearance costs

We committed to invest £250m in thermal hydrolysis
process at six sewage treatment works to increase
the production of renewable energy

We are installing Europe’s first phosphorus-recovery
system, n Slough sewage works By recovenng
phosphorus, the operation of the site 1s improved
and energy needed to pump sludge reduced The
recovered phosphorus 1s turned into a slow-release
fertiiser By applying this fertiliser to land we can
help close the phosphorus loop and reduce the loss
of this important natural resource

We have been tnalling a novel sludge dryer unit that
turns sewage sludge into sustainable solid fuel with
the same energy content as wood chip Tnal
batches have been used in our sludge powered
generator {SPG) at Crossness sewage works

Operating profit

In addition to the increase of £109 7m n operating
expenditure, depreciation increased by £419m n
2012113, reflecting the high level of capital
investment over the first three years of AMP 5 The
increases 1n operating expenditure and depreciation
more than offset the increase in turnover (£97 Om)
and so operating profit fell to £549 3m for 2012/13,
down 9% on an underlying basis

Net interest payable and similar charges

Net interest payable of £405 3m (2011/12 £423 2m)
reduced by £17 9m (4 2%) The reduction was
drniven by the lower level of RPI in 2012/13 (3 1%
compared to 4 8% in 2011/12) This meant there
was a smaller charge to interest in the year In
respect of the Company's index linked nstruments
compared to 2011/12 This impact has been partly
offset by increased interest expense due to the
increase In net debt to £8,372 7m at 31 March 2013
(31 March 2012 £7,7755m) New borrowing was
incurred to fund the Company's investment
programme, repay debt maturing in the year and
maintain a high level of iquidity

Taxation

The Company's taxable profits have been
substantially reduced by the continuing availlabiity of
capital allowances on the investment programme
HMRC's capital allowance regme permits
companies to delay the payment of corporation tax,
not avoid #t, by providing accelerated tax relief for
capital investment The allowances are intended to
encourage companies to carry out crucial
investment — crucial for business and customers,
and also crucial for the economy at large

We have been investing around £1bn each year n
assets which qualify for capital allowances The
mechanism has resulted in a deferred tax kability of
£9612m being recognised on the Company's
balance sheet This balance represents tax that 1s
expected to be paid in future years The remaining
taxable profits of the business have been offset by
tax losses claimed from other members of the group

Although the Company has not paid any corporation
tax in the period, it cantinues to pay business rates,
account for income tax and national insurance on
employee remuneration, and pay other taxes for
which 1t 1s lable These payments were
approximately £150m in 2012/13 The Company’s
expenditure with its supplers and contractors
generates substantial addittonal tax revenues in the
wider economy
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The credit for taxation shown in the profit and loss
account of £5 1m (2011/12 £25 Om credit) includes
a credit of £41 8m (2011/12 £80 7m credit) from a
reduction in the camying value of the deferred tax
hability This resulted from the announcement of the
reduction in the rate of corporation tax from 24% to
23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 (2011/12 reduction
from 26% to 24%) The current tax charge on profits
for the year reflects a benefit of £33 9m from the
capital allowances availlable on the nvestment
programme as noted above which 1s shown as
additional deferred tax for the year

Net cash flow before financing activities

Net cash outflow before financing activites of
£6898m (2011/12 outflow  £6410m) has
decreased by £51 2m compared to the prior year
This reduction in the cash out flow 1s dniven by an
increase n cash in flow from operating activities to
£1,057m (201112 £924 7m) and the reduction in
dividends pad (£2314m (2011112 £279 5m),
partially offset by an increase in current asset
tnvestments of £1293m (2011/12 decrease of
£156 4m)

Balance sheet

Net assets are £166 9m lower than 31 March 2012,
reflecting profit for the period of £150 Om, 2012/13
dividend payments of £2314m and a post-tax
actuanal loss n relation to the pension schemes In
the period of £855m As a result of continued
investment, net debt has increased by £597 2m

Capital expenditure

201213 has been another successful year for the
delvery of the capital investment programme The
third year of AMP 5 has seen around £1bn invested
in delivening all of the Company’s capital regulatory
outputs

In the year the Company has capitalised £199m on
its infrastructure assets (water and waste networks)
spending money on essential work to improve the
networks by replacing, repainng and modernising
the pipes, sewers and associated equipment The
plant and machinery fixed asset balance increased
by £457m for works capitalised in relation to the
Company's water and sewage treatment works and
related facihtes The assets under construction
balance also increased by £178m, reflecting the
large number of projects that the Company s
committed to delivening in AMP 5

One of the major areas of spend continues to be the
London Tideway improvements programme This
project includes the construction of the £635m Lee

Tunnel which 1s designed to prevent an average of
16m tonnes a year of untreated sewage enterning the
Riwer Lee from Londen's Victonan sewerage
network London's five main sewage treatment
works (Beckton, Crossness, Long Reach, Modgen
and Riverside) are also being upgraded at a cost of
£660 Om The London Tideway improvement
programme s designed to reduce discharging of
untreated sewage into the tidal River Thames The
upgrades to the Mogden site (£E140m) and the first
phase at Long Reach (£40m) were completed n
2012113

The Company has also spent around £33m In
201213 acquinng the sites required for the
construction of the Thames Tideway tunnel These
sites will be used dunng the construction of the
Tunnel and then, where practical and not required
for ocngoing maintenance access, will be sold off to
ensure that customers do not pay more than s
absolutely necessary for the Tunnel

The Company 1s on track to deliver its required
investment programme of £49bn  over this
regulatory period This leve! of investment in the
Company's assets 1s necessary to ensure that we
can continue to provide the water supplies that
customers require and treat the sewage in an
efficient and effective manner

Dividends

The Company pad intenm dividends totalling
£231 4m dunng the year (2011/12 £279 5m) Of
this, £92 Om was ultmately paid to the shareholders
of Kemble Water Holdings Limited {the Company's
ultimate parent) with the remainder used to service
debt obligations higher up the Group and settle
intercompany transactions The £92 Om received by
shareholders compares to £2000m in the year
ended 31 March 2012, reflecting the operational and
financial performance of the business during the
financial year Since the Company was acquired by
the Kemble consortum in November 2006, the
Company has pard £1 4bn in distnbutions, of which
£09bn was pad to the Company's ultmate
shareholders This compares to cumulative profits of
£1 7bn and RCV at 31 March 2013 of £10 9bn The
Company’s dividend policy 15 detaled in the
Directors’ report on page 23

Pensions

The Company 1s the sponsoring employer of two
pension schemes, Thames Water Pension Scheme
(“TWPS") and Thames Water Mirror Image Pension
Scheme (“TWMIPS") Both schemes are closed to
new entrants, although existing members continue
to accrue benefits The combined pension hability
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(net of deferred tax) as at 31 March 2013 was
£1915m (2011712 £1192m), a detenoration of
£72 3m This was principally as a result of a post-
tax actuanal loss (net of deferred tax) in relation to
the pension schemes of £85 5m

The Company made a deficit reparr payment of
£252m to the pension funds In the year as part of
an agreement with the trustees

Adoption of new UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP”)

The Financial Reporting Council has issued a new
set of UK GAAP accounting standards for UK
companies (FRS 100, 101 and 102) which are
broadly in line with International Financial Reporting
Standards These new standards will be required to
be appled by the Company mmitially for the financial
year ending 31 March 2016  Preparation has
commenced to identify the set of standards that the
Company will use and the resultant recognition,
measurement and presentational adjustments that
will be made to the accounts For example, both
options will require the Company to bring on to its
balance sheet the market value of its debt related
swaps and hedges, which in turn will impact the
Company’s reserves and increase the volatiity of its
profit or loss between accounting periods

In order to strengthen the reserves ahead of
conversion, on 3 October 2012 the Company
completed the legal process of a capital reduction by
solvency statement as laid out In sections 641 to
644 of the Companies Act 2008 The Board of
directors, at a meeting on 3 October 2012, approved
the reduction of the Company's share capital from
£1,0290m to £290m and the capital reduction
became effective on 5 October 2012

This reduction n share capital increases the
Company's profit and loss reserve by £1,000 Om
Total shareholder funds reman unchanged at
£1,314 5m after conversion This capital reduction
was consistent with the Company's financing
arrangement and will not compromise its dividend
policy Furthermore, it neither affected the
Company’s gearing ratio, nor its credit rating

Principal nsks and uncertainties
The Company I1s exposed to a number of nsks and

uncertainties that could have a matenal impact on its
long-term performance These Include

Delivery of the Thames Tideway Tunnel — As an
innovative solution to the challenge of reducing
sewage discharges into the Thames, the design and
construction of the Thames Tideway Tunnel present
a number of major technical and logistical
challenges These include the need to secure a
number of construction stes in central London,
obtaiming planning consent wa the process for major
projects set out in the Planming Act 2008 and
managing the nevitable disruption caused by
construction activities A key challenge 1s to manage
the impact of the project (which 1s intended to be
undertaken by a stand-alone Infrastructure Provider
("IP")) on the Company's credit ratings The
Government has indicated that it walt provide support
to the IP for certain of the exceptional nsks involved
in the project, but the detalls of this support and the
residual nsk to the Company have yet to be
finalised

Mitigation. The Company 1s working closely
with the Government and Ofwat to agree the
funding mode! and the  appropnate
organisational structure The preferred route of
the stakeholders 1s to establish an independent
IP which will raise funding and deliver and
operate the tunnel This will provide value for
money and transparency around nsk and
reward, and it 1s expected that the Company will
be prevented from investing in the IP but will
continue to be involved through, amongst other
things, a contractual relationship with the IP and
significant activities of its own 1n respect of the
project A development consent application has
been submitted and accepted for examination by
the Planning Inspectorate

Price Review 14 (“PR14") determination — All UK
water and sewerage companies must justify the
operating costs and capital investment needed to
deliver service to customers In the five-year perod
from Apnl 2015 Failure tc demonstrate the
Company's case to Ofwat's satisfaction may mean
that it 1s unable to invest in asset improvements
and/or provide services that the Company believes
will benefit 1ts customers in the long term or to
finance its business plans

Mitigation* The Company 1s well advanced in
developing capital plans and has consulted
widely with customers and the Customer
Challenge Group Operating plans are
progress, looking to mimimize costs Our
approach bulds on the expenence ganed
during previous Price Reviews




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Business review (continued)

Increased competition in the water industry —The
draft Water Bill published in July 2012 develops
Government's competitton proposals from the
previous Water White Paper The legislation will
change existing retal and upstream markets by
allowming a choice of retaller for all business
customers Further liberahsation of upstream water
and sewerage markets 1s enabled by the draft Bill
but the full scope and timing of any change remain
very uncertain

Customer experience — Ofwat measure companies
customer service performance using the Service
Incentive Mechanism (“SIM}  The Company is
currently at the bottom of the industry’s SIM ranking
and has seen a decrease In qualtative customer
satisfaction in 2012/13  Failure to meet the SIM
target for the Company over the remaining years of
this regulatory penod could fead to a financal
penalty in the next regulatory penod, although it 1s
not clear how the penalty would be applied

Mitigaton The Company 1s responding to
increased competition for commercial customers
by creating a key accounts team to provide
bespoke services suitable for our larger
customers Comphance with compettion law
and applicable regulation will remain a key
focus The full response to market hberahsation
may require structural change

Employee pension scheme funding The
Company operates two major defined benefit
pension schemes Although both are closed to new
entrants, the Company remains liable for the histonic
nghts earned by past and present employees, and
both schemes are currently in defict on a Gilts
valuation basis Under current assumptions, the
deficit 15 expected to increase and this could cause
increased employer contributions

Mitigation® The Company has closed the
defined benefit schemes to new joiners, and
moved a number of senior employees onto a
defined contribution scheme In addition, for the
larger scheme benefits are now being accrued
on a career average related earnings basis
Together with the scheme trustees, the
Company continues to review mechanisms that
can reduce its nsk, while maintaining adequate
funding of the schemes

Failure to maintain adequate funding
arrangements — The Company will need to renew
£450 0m of 364 day committed facilities by August
2013 As a regulated utiity, the Company expects
to be able to access financing, but an increase n the
cost of funds may put pressure on key financial
covenants (as defined by the Company's capital
structure)

Mitigation: The Cormpany has responded to this
ranking position by developing a 10-point plan to
improve  customer service which was
implemented in 201213 In addition, significant
extra rescurce has bheen brought into the
customer service team These changes have
contnbuted to a marked reduction in the number
of written complaints 1in 2012/13 The Company
1s currently redesigning its processes across all
customer facing functions with the am of
delivering significant service improvements for
our customers

AMP 4 sewer flooding programme - The
Company responded to an information request from
Ofwat 1ssued under section 203 of the *“Water
Industry Act 1991" concerning the properties
clamed as safeguarded from internal sewer flooding
by captal schemes completed in 2009/10,
specifically concerning ewvidence that properties
were lkely to have flooded in the past The principal
question will be whether the Company has met its
legal obhgations by complying with the relevant
gudance, and Ofwat has indicated that st 1s unlikely
to conclude s investigations unt! the end of
2013 If Ofwat concludes the Company has mis-
reported its sewer flooding outputs, it may seek to
impose sanctions including financial penalties of up
to 10% of Company turnover attrnbutable to
regulated sewerage services

Mitigation* The Company has provided all the
information that has been requested to support
the numbers claimed and has met with Ofwat on
several occasions to discuss its concerns  The
Company awaits the conclusion of Ofwat's
investigation and will continue to work with
Ofwat and will provide any further information
required

Mitigation The Company has an established
funding strategy which 1s reviewed by the Board
annually As of 31 March 2013, the Company
has adequate quid funds of £681 7m (2011/12
£622 1m) and undrawn committed bank facilities
of £1,6150m (2011/12 £1,200 0m) n place to
provide quidity as required
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Business review (continued)

Credit rating - Any change to the regulatory
landscape, including increased competition and any
changes to the licence, could have a detnmental
effect on the credt rating of the secter The
Company's credit rating may also be affected if the
delivery model for the Thames Tideway Tunnel
project exposed the Company to increased nsk, or in
the event of an unfavourable determunation in
respect of AMP 6 A downgrade in the credit rating
would increase borrowing costs and reduce access
to long-term debt markets, putting at nisk the ability
to meet financial covenants and potentially
preventing the Company from paying dividends

Mitigation The Company is working to ensure
that ts Price Review preparations, Thames
Tideway Tunnel plans and other significant
business changes are credit rating neutral The
Company 1s working with Government and
Ofwat to ensure the financing impact of future
changes to licence conditions are fully
considered Licence changes implemented for
2015-20 are viewed by Moody's as likely to be
credit rating neutral

Failure to meet regulatory targets — The Company
Is required to meet targets set by Ofwat, the EA, the
Drinking Water Inspectorate and other regulators In
order to achieve this, the Company must continue to
deliver cost and efficiency savings 1n line with a
challenging Final Determination, while maintaining
and improving operational performance and the
standard of customer service The Company has a
regulatory target to mantamn the serviceability of its
assets as at least stable Dunng 2012/13 there have
been Increased incidences of polluton from its
waste network, and as a consequence the reported
status of the wastewater network (wastewater asset
performance below ground) has been downgraded
from “stable” to “marginal”

Mitigation Performance against regulatory
measures IS the subject of regular management
review Specifically in relation to the wastewater

network, the Company has put increased
financial and management resource nto
managing the network In additien, the

Company continues to develop plans to return
the wastewater network to stable seniiceability
by wentfying and then mplementing the
additional activity necessary to reverse the trend
In performance

The effects of climate change and long-term
changes in weather patterns — As the Company
continues to supply an increasing population, the
effects of chimate change could adversely affect its
ability to maintain its Secunty of Supply Index (SoSl)
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requirements

Mitigation® The Company has been working on
measures to reduce demand, mounting
widespread  awareness campaigns  and
providing free water saving devices, as well as
making provision for new sources of potable
water and improving the integnty of its network
Together with other water companies and
regulators, the Company 18 actively participating
in work to dentify the wider water resources
needs across South East England

Future changes in laws or regulations - The
Company 1s not funded by Ofwat for changes in
obligations that would affect the whole economy
Consequently the Company may, for example, have
to meet the obligations resulting from changes in
environmental legistatton without adequate funding

Mitigation. Changes that are specific to, or are
more matenal for, the water industry may be
funded by Ofwat as a relevant change of
circumstance The Company engages actively
with regulators where a change 1s lkely, to
ensure the mplications are understood, and
monitors the impact of recent changes to ensure
it can demonstrate the case for additional
funding where 1t 1s justified

Fallure of a major asset — A failure at one of the
Company's major assets could significantly impact
the safety of its workforce and the public, as well as
interrupting supply to customers and breaching
environmental and regulatory targets The impact
would be both financial and reputational

Mitigation® The Company has a specific
complance process to manage each of the
identified nsks

Impact of low inflation or deflation — In return for
therr capital investment in assets, regulated water
companies earn a return on ther RCV, which s
adjusted by the RPI  In times of low nflation or
deflation, the return on this investment will decrease
relative to the cost of funding, reducing cash flow
and shareholder value

Mitigation. In order to reduce the impact of low
inflation  or deflation, around half of the
Company’s debt 1s indexed to RPI, either directly
in the underlying debt instrument, or by use of
RPI swaps
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Business review (continued)

impact of recession on our bad debt charge -
Continued economic weakness will make our
customers more hkely to default on thesr water hills,
leading to Increased bad debt expense to the
Company

Mitigation The Company keeps its debtor
collection process under review to ensure that it
1s fit for purpose During the year the process
has been externally benchmarked and a new
stage in the collection process has been added
The Company s planning to submit an
Intermediate Determination of K to Ofwat for the
Increases tn bad debt linked to the recession If
agreed this would increase customers’ bills In
2014115

Financing

Pnmanly via the Company's financing subsidiary,
Thames Water Utlties Cayman Finance Limited
(*TWUCFL"), the Company has been a regular
Issuer of debt in the capital markets since the
establishment of the Whole Business Secuntisation
in 2007 The Company has demonstrated an ability
to access a variety of sources of debt funding,
including international markets, to ensure it can
maintain the necessary liquidity to fund the business
going forward

Detalls of the treasury policy are set out in the
Governance report

The Company operates within a Whole Business
Securtisation (WBS) capital structure alongside
Thames Water Utiities Holdings Limited (which 1s
the immediate parent company) and the Company’s
financing subsidianies Thames Water Utilities
Finance Limited, Thames Water Utilites Cayman
Finance Holdings Limited and Thames Water
Utilties Cayman Finance Limited Together these
companies are known as the “Secuntisation Group”
The WBS structure and financial covenants define
the key financial metncs the Company must
maintain 1n order to support a strong investment
grade credit rating

Within the WBS there are two “classes” of debt,
known as “Class A" and “Class B" debt obligations
Class A 1s the sentor class of debt within the
Secuntisation Group, rated A3/A- by Moody's and
S&P respectively Within the WBS Class A debt
cannot exceed 75% of stated RCV Class B debt s
subordinated to Class A, specifically it ranks behind
Class A debt in terms of pnionty of repayment and it
1s therefore of lower credit quality Class B debt is
rated Baa3/BBB by Moody’s and S&P respectively
Under the WBS Class A and Class B debt combined
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cannot exceed 85% of RCV

During the year TWUCFL issued two £300m Class A
fixed rate bonds, maturing :n 2034 and 2046
respectively In addiion the Company arranged and
drew £300m of bank loans from a relationship bank,
consisting of a £100m Class B floating rate loan that
matures in 2015 and a £200m Class A RPI-linked
loan that matures in 2017 The Company also
signed a new £430m loan facility from the European
Investment Bank (EIB), £215m of which was drawn
in RPI-linked form, maturing in 2023 The Company
repaid capital of £74 5Sm relating to outstanding
finance leases and also a €500m bond 1ssued by
TWUCFL that matured in the year

The Company held £6817m of cash and hqud
funds {net of overdraft) at 31 March 2013 {31 March
2012 £622 1m) and also had access to undrawn
commutted facilities in place with a syndicate of 14
relattonship banks to the value of £1.615 0m (31
March 2012 £1,2000m), tncluding the £215m
undrawn element of the new EIB facility signed In
the year These facilities, together with the cash and
current asset investments provide the Company with
the necessary liquidity to fund the operation of the
business for at least the next fifteen months based
on the Company's budget for 2013/14 and forecasts
for the remainder of AMP 5, forming the basis of the
directors’ assessment of the Company as a going
concern
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Business review (continued)

Covenant comphance

Under the terms of its finance documents (see
Treasury section in Governance), the Company Is
required to comply with varnous covenants such as
interest cover {post-maintenance interest cover ratio
(*PMICR™}) and net debt to RCV These covenants
are measured and submitted to the Secunty Trustee
semi-annually and involve both actual data and
forecasts PMICR is the ratio of the cash generated
by the business, after maintenance expenditure, to
the net external interest paid The two main ratios
are discussed further below

Senior adjusted Interest cover ratio (trigger
1.1x)"* For the year to 31 March 2013 the ratto was
17x {2011/12 1 4x) The improvement in the ratio
was driven by the Increase in cash inflow from
operating activittes Iin 2012/13, partialty offset by
higher capital maintenance expenditure and net
interest paid compared to 2011/12

Senior Debt/RCV ratio (trigger: 85%)* At 31
March 2013 the ratio was 77 4% (31 March 2012
78 3%)

There are other vanations on these ratios on class A
and Senicr Debt, which the Company s also
required to calculate to show compliance with its
covenants The Company 15 compliant with these
ratios as at 31 March 2013 and 1s forecast to remain
compliant

Regulatory Capital Value

The RCV 1s calculated by Ofwat annually and was
£10,897m at 31 March 2013 The RCV 15 a
measure of the Company’s value as assessed by
the regulator and 1s used to determine the expected
retums to investors In the finat determination
Internally we monitor economic RCV, which 1s
expected (in Apnl 2015) to be around £800m lower

! Following the occurrence of a Tngger Event and at any time until
such an event has been wawved by the Secunty Trustee or
remedied, no Obligor within the secuntisation group may make
any Restncted Payment The definiton of Restncted Payment
includes Distnbution, which i1s also a defined term to include any
paymenls including any payments of distnbutions, dividends,
bonus ssues, retum of capital, fees, interest, pnncipal or other
amounts whatsgever Adjusted Interest Cover Ratio 1s calculated
as operating cashflow adjusted for expenditure on depreciation
and infrastructure renewals divided by interest paid

z Following the occumrence of a Tngger Event and at any tme
until such an event has been waived by the Secunty Trustee or
remedied, no Obligor withun the securitisation group may make
any Restricted Payment The definition of Restricted Payment
includes Distnbution which 1s also a defined term to include any
payments including any payments of distnbutions, dividends,
bonus 1ssues return of capital, fees, interest, pnncipal or other
amounts whatsoever
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than the Ofwat calculated RCV as at 31 March 2015
as a result of inflation related adjustments which are
expected to be implemented in the Ofwat calculated
RCV  Our policy requires the Company to ensure
that the forecast net debt 1s at least 2% below the
tngger ratio of 85% from Apnl 2015

Martin Baggs
Chief Executive Officer
6 June 2013
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Directors’ report

The directors present ther report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013 These are the Company's statutory accounts
as required to be delivered to the Registrar of
Companies

Principal activities and hkely future
developments

The principal activities of the Company (Registered
number 02366661) are the supply of water and the
collection and treatment of sewage, serving
approxamately 14m customers in London and the
Thames Valley

Business review

The Business review {(which forms pant of the
Directors’ report) compnses an analysis of the
development and performance of the business and
includes an assessment of future prospects, details
of mportant events that have occurred since 31
March 2013 and Key Performance Indicators
{"KPis"), see pages 6 and 14

Detals of parent and subsidiary undertakings are
gven n notes 11 and 29 to the Financial
statements, on page 78 and 98 respectively, and the
Company has no branches outside the United
Kingdom

Results and dividends

The profit and loss account on page 61 gives the
Company'’s financial results for the year

The Company pad intenm dividends totalling
£231 4m durning the year (2011/12 £279 5m)

The Company’s dividend policy 1s

« To pay a pregressive dividend commensurate
with the long-term returns and business
performance, after considering the business's
current and expected regulatory and financial

performance, regulatory restrictions,
management of economic nsks and debt
covenants

Directors, In assessing the dividend to be paid (to a
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maximum of statutery distnbutable reserves), are
required to ensure that

« sufficient iquidity 1s maintained to enable the
business to meet its financial obligations for at
least 15 months

¢ post-dividend financial ratios remain within thew
agreed Imits at both the balance sheet date
and on a forward-looking basis

The Board does not recommend a final dividend
(2012 £nif)

Intermediate and ultimate parent company and
controliing party

Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, 15 the immediate
parent company

Kemble Water Fiance Limted, a company
incorporated 1in the Unted Kingdom, 18 an
intermediate parent company and the smallest group
to consolidate these financial statements

The directors consider that Kemble Water Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the Urmited
Kingdom, 1s the ultmate and controling party and
the largest group to consolidate these financial
statements

Kemble Water Holdings Limited 1s owned by a
consortium of long term infrastructure Investors
The investors include Bntish and international
pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, insurance
companies and experenced global institutional
investors led by funds managed by the Macquane
Infrastructure and Real Assets division of Macquane
Group

Copies of the accounts of all of the above
companies may be obtained from The Company
Secretary's Office, Thames Water Group,
Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading,
Berkshire, RG1 8DB or the Company's website
www thameswater co uk
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors

Details of the directors who served from 1 Apnl
2012 to the date of this report are shown below
The composition of the Board i1s covered in more
detall in the Company’s Governance report, which
can be found on pages 28 to 46

All Board members from 1 Apnl 2012 to 31 March
2013 nclusive were non-executive directors

(*NEDs”), with the exceptton of Martin Baggs
(Chief Executive Officer) and Stuart Siddall (Chief
Financial Officer) The independent non-executive
directors required by the Company’s licence are
Dame Deirdre Hutton, Michael Pavia and Edward
Richards

Directors serving from 1 Aprl 2012 to the date of signing of this report are as follows

Director

Appointment

Resignation

Sir Peter Mason KBE — Chairman

M W Baggs

E Beckley

R Blomfield-Smith

29 November 2012

C R Deacon

S R Eaves

Dame D M Hutton CBE

G | W Parsons

M J Pavia

D Rees

29 October 2012

2 January 2013

E C Richards

K Roseke

2 January 2013

24 May 2013

D J Shah OBE

Y Shi

28 September 2012

S J Sddaill

M S W Stanley

7 September 2012

R Verrion

29 Cctober 2012

L Webb

D Xu

29 October 2012

The following directors have formally appointed alternate directors, duning the year, to represent them when

they are unavailable

Director Alternate Director
Name Appointment  Resignation | Name Appointment  Resignation
E Beckley G 1 W Parsons
R Blomfield-Smith 29 November 2012 P Noble 29 November 2012
C R Deacon R Evenden
S R Eaves M C Hill
G | W Parsons E Beckley
D Rees 29 October 2012 2 January 2013 | S Kolenc 29 Cctober 2012 2 January 2013
K Roseke 2 January 2013 24 May 2013 D Rees 2 January 2013 24 May 2013
D J Shah OBE K Roseke 2 January 2013

C Van Heyningen 2 January 2013

Y Shi 28 September 2012 | F Sheng 28 September 2012
R Vermen 29 October 2012 | S Kolenc 29 October 2012
L Webk C Pham
D Xu 29 October 2012 F Sheng 29 October 2012
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Directors’ report (continued)

Matenal financial instruments

Financial nsk management 1s covered on page 38
of the Governance report

Key supplers and contractors

In 2012/13 the Company spent in excess of £1 4bn
on construction, goods and services with a range
of supphers and contractors (2011112 in excess of
£1 1bn} Approximately 19 key supplers (2011/12

23) were engaged with a spend greater than £10m
each The Company's policy s to establish trading
arrangements, which are made following an open
non-discnminatory, competitive bidding process
Procurement processes reflect the Company's
corporate responsibility commitments and, where
applicable, comply with the requirements of the
Utiities Contracts Regulations 2006 (as amended)

Procuring supphes efficiently and sustainably

In 2012/13 we reduced the number of suppliers we
used from almost 5,000 to 3,200 t¢ improve our
efficiency

In our capital procurement programme, we
continued to work closely with major contracting
partners to extend our buying power and influence
further down their supply chains

In preparation for the next five-year investment
penod from 2015, we consulted more than 40
companies In our extended supply chain As a
result we are focusing on delivering enhanced
value for our customers and shareholders through
longer term relationships with our suppliers

Research and development

The Company's research and development
programme consists of a portfollo of projects
designed to address technical needs across the
range of water cycle actvites Research and
development delivers nnovative  technical
solutions through a research programme aligned
with business needs to address challenges for
AMPS and also provide specialist technical support
to the business Expendture on research and
development totalled £3 9m for the year (2011/12
£3 9m)

Intellectual property
The Company protects intellectual property of

matenal concem to the business as appropnate,
including the filing of patents where necessary

Employees

Information relating to the Company’s employees
has been covered in the Business review on pages
8to 9

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company's policy 1s to pay all supplers,
contractors and service providers according to pre-
agreed terms Dunng the year under review, the
average amount due to trade creditors represented
63 days (2011/12 60 days) purchases received
from these creditors

Market value of land and buildings

The directors have considered the market value of
the Group's land and buldings and are satisfied
that their market value i1s not less than thewr net
book value

Political and charntable donations and
expenditure

No political donations were made by the Company
(2012  £nil) The Company made chantable
donations totalling £551,599 (2012 £1,019,340)
Details of these chantable donations are,

» £284360 (201112 £743,759) to Ten for Ten
projects, of which £30,360 went to various
educational and recreational projects and
£254,000 to the Thames Water Trust Fund for
income deprived families,

« £154,443 (2011112 £118,680) to the Chanties
Aid Foundation,

o £19,2%4 (2011112 £61,129) to the Company's
principal chanty, WaterAid,

s £85000 (2011112 £60,000) to Thames 21, a
range of charties which assist in cleaning nvers
and streams within the Thames Valley,

e £8,502 (2011112 £35,772) of other donations

In addtion, fund raising activities by employees
and contractors raised £113,000, to which the
Company added matched funding of £62,167
(included n the donations shown above)
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Directors’ report (continued)

Going concern

The directors beleve, after due and careful
enquiry, that the Company has sufficient resources
for its present requirements and, therefore,
consider 1t appropriate to adopt the going concem
basis i prepanng the 201213 financial
statements

The Company's business activities, together with
the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the
Business review on pages 6 to 22 The financial
position of the Company, its cash flows, liquidity
position and borrowing facilities are described in
the Business review on pages 21 to 22

Day to day working capital requirements are
funded by the business During the year,
£657 1m, net of bond 1ssuance costs, of new debt
was secured and there 1s no current requirement
to raise additional finance to meet future project
oblhgations  There are also cash balances of
£6817m and undrawn commited facilites of
£1,6150m The undrawn committed facilities
consist of the following

s  £2150m bilateral amortising loan facihty that
Is expected to be utiised in 2013/14

e £2000m bilateral loan faciity that must be
drawn down by 30 September 2013 and has a
matunty of 2 years from date of draw down

e £1.2000m fachites with a group of banks
made up of a £750 Om revolving credit that
expires In September 2017, that 15 not
expected to be used in the ordinary course of
business, and £450m of 364-day hquidity
facitities due to renewal in August 2013 The
hquidity facilities can only be used if the
Securntised Group 1s 1n standstill

The Company's forecasts and projections, taking
account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance, show that the Company should be
able to operate within the level of its current
facilthes for at least 15 months

Bisclosure of information to the auditor

The dirrectors who held office at the date of
approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far
as they are each aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditor Is
unaware and each director has taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a director to make
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themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to estabhsh that the Company's audtor is
aware of that information

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has made qualfying third party
indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors
and for the benefit of other persons who are
directors of associated companies and these
remain in force at the date of this report

Insurance

The Company maintams a comprehensive
insurance programme, renewed annually This
includes cover for a range of insurance classes
including Pubhc Liability, Property, Employers
liability, Construction, Motor, and Directors &
Officer hability cover

The insurance coverage has been reviewed and
approved by an independent insurance adviser
retained to ensure that the Company’s insurances
are consistent with Good Industry Practice, have
regard to the nsk being covered and address the
interests of the Company

Auditor

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act
20086, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed
and KPMG Audit Plc will therefore continue In
office

Approved by the Board of directors on 6 June
2013 and signed on is behalf by

Joel Hanson

Company Secretary

Clearwater Court
Vastern Road
Reading
Berkshire

RG1 8DB
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual report
and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financia! statements for each financial year Under
that law they have elected to prepare the financial
statements in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law, the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that year In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are
required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any
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matenal departures disclosed and explained In
the financial statements, and,

« prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it 15 inappropnate to
presume that the Company will continue In
business

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibiity for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website
Legislation 1n the UK governing the preparation
and dissemmnation of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Governance

Letter from the Chairman

As Charman and on behalf of my Board
colleagues, | recognise the importance of good
corporate governance and, in particular, applying
‘the UK Corporate Governance Code 2010" (the
Code) as far as possible As with previous years,
we have evaluated our performance and reported
on our compliance with the Code min this Annual
report

The Board accepts that it 1s respensible to its
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders
for the performance of the Company and in
promoting its long term success The way in which
we operate as a Board, we beleve, already
reflects good corporate governance, but we
welcome the emerging developments in this area
Our view 1s that such changes can only enhance
the performance of companies for the benefit of all
stakeholders and we will positively address any
changes as required

The Board 1s confident that it acts independently
and that it takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company It also believes that it
has demonstrated its commitment to ensunng that
the Company’s obligations to its stakeholders are
understood and met, and that the necessary
financial and management resources and systems
of planning and internat contral are in place to fulfil
these obligations Supported by the CEQO and the
executive team, the Board continues to take
positve action towards regenerating the
Company’s values and standards and establishing
a clear strategic direction for the future

A schedule of matters on which decisions are
reserved to the Board and the authonty given to
the CEQ and his Executive team is set out in the
schedules of Board reserved matters and
delegated authonty (*“SODA”) respectively

The Board 1s fully supportive of the strategic ams
and initiatives of the CEQ and his executive team
Qur role 15 to ensure that we provide strategic
oversight, constructive challenge and support to
the executive team As Chairman, | fully embrace
my posttion as leader of the Board and ensunng
that, as individuals, we cperate collectively in our
decision-making to acheve our wvision for the
company and with the intention of furthernng its
fong term success

As individuals, and as a Board, my feliow directors
and | have many years’ experience across a wide
range of actvites and industries relevant to
Thames Water, as can be demonstrated in the
biographies section of this report {pages 29 to 31)

oot

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Chairman
6 June 2013
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Governance

Overview of the Board

The directors have specialist knowledge of the
water industry and other regulated utiities and
have a wide range of expenence to draw upon
Recent appointments have bwit on existing
strengths and add to the diversity of the Board and
its discussions This provides sufficient challenge
and support to the strategic decision making
process and the necessary continuity to ensure
decisions are taken wth the background
knowledge of the recent history of the group Non-
executive directors (NED) are supported in therr
ability to seek independent specialist advice

Dame Deirdre Hutton (Chair, UK Cwil Awviation
Authority), Michael Pavia (former Chief Financial
Officer of the London Electrncity Group) and
Edward Richards (Chief Executive of Ofcom) are
considered independent NEDs

The Company does not consider the Chairman
independent The Company does not currently
appoint a senior independent non-executive
director as it considers that the shareholders have

Board of Directors

Sir Peter Mason KBE, Chairman {66)

Sir Peter became Chairman of Thames Water in
December 2006, and brings extensive expenence
In engineenng, construction and complex capital
investment businesses He retired as CEQ of
AMEC plc in September 2006, and previously was
Chairman and CEQ of Balfour Beatty Limited Sir
Peter 1s currently the senior non-executive director
of BAE Systems plc and of Subsea 7 SA, and
until October 2008 was a Board member of the
2012 Olympic Delivery Authonty He 15 a non
executive member of the Board of Spe SA Sir
Peter was made a Knight Commander of the
Bntish Empire (KBE) for services to international
trade in 2002

Martin Baggs, Chief Executive Officer (48)

Martin was appointed Chief Executive Officer of
Thames Water on March 2010, having previously
served as Intenm Chief Executive Officer from
December 2009 Before joiming Thames Water
Utilihes as a non-executive director in 2008, Martin
was Managing drrector at South East Water,
managing the divestiture of the company from
Macquarnie Capital Funds (Europe} Limited Prior to
that, Martin served as Operations and Assets
director at Southern Water Martin has extensive
water industry experience covering all aspects of
the utiity business He has a recognised
successful track record n the delivery and
implementaton of new ntiatives and the
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approprnate access to the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
through their Board representation

The Board of directors 1s appointed in accordance
with the shareholders' agreement and comprises 2
Executive directors, 10 NEDs (including the
Charman) and 3 independent NEDs (see
Directors report for appointment details of
individual directors) The NEDs are nominated and
appointed by the shareholders of Kemble Water
Holdings Limited in accordance with the terms of
the shareholders’ agreement and are therefore,
not determined to be independent

The Chairman's responsibilities include leadership
of the Board, ensunng its effectiveness, setting its
agenda and ensuring effective communication with
the Company's shareholders Additionally, he s
responsible for ensuring that the directors receive
accurate, timely and clear information and that
constructive relations exist between the Board and
the executive team

leadership and management of diverse functions
through organisational change His past roles have
included asset management, operations and the
delivery of large construction programmes

Stuart Siddall, Chief Financial Officer (60)

Stuart joined Thames Water in September 2011,
having previously held the position of Chief
Executive of the Association of Corporate
Treasurers Stuart joined Price Waterhouse In
Johannesburg after qualfying as a Chartered
Accountant Returning tc the UK, he held several
senior financial roles and was among the first
students to qualfy with the Associatton of
Corporate Treasurers Stuart has gamned extensive
expenence 1n the construction, engineering and
utilities sectors, ncluding serving as finance
director for Amec ple, Balfour Beatty Limited and
Manweb plc He i1s the second executivé member
of the Thames Water Board, alongside Chief
Executive Officer Martin Baggs

Non-executive Directors

Edward Beckley (37)

Edward became a non-executive drector of
Thames Water Utiities in January 2008, having
served as an alternate since March 2008 He i1s
head of Macquarie infrastructure and Real Assets
business in Europe and the Middle East
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Rosamund Blomfield-Smith (64)

Rosamund became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utiities in November 2012 She
spent almost 30 years in the City, first as a project
financier and subsequently as a corporate
financier with a varnety of investment banks,
including Schroders and Rothschilds She s
currently chairman of Moat Homes Limited, a
director of the Wales Audt Office and recently
retired after ten years on the Board at British
Empire Securities, a FTSE 250 investment trust

Chrnistopher Deacon (65)

Christopher became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utilities in December 2006 He
brings extensive experience as a banker and
adwvisor in major Infrastructure and project finance
Presently, he 1s an adviser to OFGEM on the
offshore wind transmission programme and a
member of the Investment Committee for the
Dutch Infrastructure Fund He 15 a non-executive
director of various other companies and a member
of the Franco British Council

Simon Eaves (45)

Simon became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utilities in January 2012 He I1s a
Regional Head in the Infrastructure division of the
Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA) and has
over 20 years expenence in the utiities sector
around the world, have previously worked for a
number of multinational compantes, Including
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, International Power and
the GCC Energy Fund He has been responsible
for completing several investments in the utiities
sector and has actively managed those
investments as a director on the companies’
boards and management committees

Gordon Parsons (45)

Gordon became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utilbes 1n June 2010 He 1s an
executive director In the Macquarne infrastructure
and Real Assets division of Macquane Group
Lmited and s responstble for the asset
management of UK managed assets

Dipesh Shah (60}

Dipesh became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utilties in October 2007 He 1s a
ncn-executive director on the Boards of Canaccord
Financial Inc, JKX Oil & Gas Plc (where he 1s
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), The
Crown Estate, EU Fund for Energy, Clmate
Change and Infrastructure (the Marguente Fund)
where he s Charman of the Investment
Committee, Trustee of the Bruish Youth Opera,
Governor of Merchant Taylors’ School, and
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Chairman of ANHD Internationai Advisory Services
Ltd He was the chief executive of the UK Atomic
Energy Authorty and of vanous large businesses
in the BP Group, and a non-executive director of
Babcock International Group plc and Lloyd's of
London He was chairman of Vindian Group pic,
HgCapital Renewable Power Partners LLP and a
European trade association He was also a
member of the Government's Renewable Energy
Advisory Committee from 1994 to 2002

Lincoln Webb {42)

Lincoln became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utiities n November 2011 He 1s
the Vice President of Private Placements for
Brtish  Columbia  Investment Management
Corporation (bclIMC) The Pnivate Placements
group has been involved in pnvate equity and
infrastructure investments since 1995

Dapeng Xu (41)

Dapeng became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utilities in October 2012 He 1s a
director In the Special Investment Department of
CIC (China Investment Corporation) Pnor to
joning CIC he worked on asset valuation and
transaction structunng for several utility companies
inthe US and Canada

Independent non-executive Directors

Dame Deirdre Hutton CBE (64)

Dame Derrdre Hutton was appointed as an
independent non-executive drector of Thames
Water Utiities in July 2010 She 1s Chair of the
Cwil Aviation Authonty and also sits as a non-
executive member of the Treasury and of Castle
Trust She was previously Charr of both the
National Consumer Council and Food Standards
Agency and formerly Vice President of the Trading
Standards Institute She has alsc held a number of
positions on a vanety of bodies dealing with food
Issues

Michael Pavia (66)

Michael became a non-executive director of
Thames Water Utiites in December 2006 He
brings extensive experience N management of
regulated businesses He was previously Group
Finance director of SEEBOARD group and Chief
Financtal Officer of the London Electricity Group
(EDF Energy Group) He i1s currently a non-
executive director of Salamander Energy ple,
Telecom Plus PLC and Wales & West Utihties Ltd
and chairman of therr audit committees He s also
non-executive  charman and a  founder
shareholder of PetroGranada Ltd, an ol
exploration company and Hon Treasurer of the
charity Elizabeth Finn Care
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Edward Richards (47)

Ed Richards was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Thames Water Utilities 1n
July 2010 He has been the Chief Executive of
Ofcom since October 2006, having previously
been the Chief Operating Officer He was
previously a senior policy adwisor o the Prime
Minister for media, telecoms, the internet and e-
government and Controller of Corporate Strategy
at the BBC He has also worked in consuiting at
London Economics Ltd, as an advisor to Gordon
Brown MP and began his career as a researcher
with Diverse Production Ltd where he worked on
programmes for Channel 4 He i1s also a Vice
Chairman of the Body of European Regulators for
Electronic Communications (BEREC), a director of
Donmar Warehouse and a Governor of the London
School of Economics

Executive Team

Thames Water's Executive 1s responsible for the
day-to-day running of the business Our Executive
consists of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and
Chief Financial Officer {CFQ) and eight executives

Richard Aylard CVO, External Affairs and
Sustainability Director

Richard joined Thames Water
Corporate Responsibility Director

in 2002 as

He leads the company's engagement with external
stakeholders, including  Government, the
Environment Agency and the Consumer Council
for Water, and (s the principal spokesperson with
the media and other audiences

As Sustainability Director, Richard 15 the Executive
team member with responsibility for envtronmental
and social 1ssues

Natalie Beckerman, Customer Service Director
Natale was appointed as Customer Service
Director in August 2011 and s the Executive team
member with responsibility for customer service
and the end-to-end proposition

She also looks after our contact centre in Swindon
and leads the transformational change required to
improve service, processes and experience for our
customers

Janet Burr, Human Resources Director
Janet was appointed Human Resources Director
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on 25 November 2010, having previously served
as Interm Human Resources Director from June
2010

Janet 15 the Executive team member with
responsibiity for all employee 1ssues The HR
function contnbutes to the overall business
strategy, particularly through the company's
People Strategy, which underpins the vision,
mission and values reguired to achieve the
business goals of profitable growth and operational
delivery

Piers Clark, Commercial Director

Piers was appointed Commercia! Director in May
2011, having previously served as Intenm Asset
Management Director from March 2010

Bob Collington, Operations Director

Bob was appointed as Operations Director on
September 2012, having previously served as
Asset Management Director He 1s responsible for
more than 2300 employees who operate and
maintain our water and wastewater treatment
plants and networks

Nick Fincham,
Director

Nick was appointed Strategy and Regulation
Director in April 2011, having previously served as
Head of Regulation from June 2010

Strategy and Regulation

Michael Gerrard, Managing Director for the
Thames Tideway Tunnel

Michael was appointed Managing Director for the
Thames Tideway Tunnel project in May 2011

Lawrence Gosden, Asset Director

Lawrence was appoinied Asset Director in May
2013, having previously been Capital Delivery
Director since Oct 2011 He joined Thames Water
in October 2007 and has previously held semor
positions n Southern Water and South East
Water

He 1s responsible for Thames Water's £5bn capital
programme in the five years to 2015, including the
Lee Tunnel, Thames Tideway sewage treatment
works improvements and the four joint ventures
responsible for the majonty of our remaining
programme
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Compliance Regime

The term “corporate governance” s generally
taken to refer to the supervision of the way In
which a company 1s operated and managed It
embraces, infer alia, regulation, corporate
structure and the function of the Board of directors
and s committees

The Company’s directors, shareholders and the
shareholders of the ulbimate parent company are
committed to mantaining high standards of
corparate governance Under the terms of its
Licence from Ofwat, the Company 1s required to
have particular regard to the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code"), which 1s
something that generally apples only to
companies whose shares are listed on the London
Stock Exchange The Code acknowledges that
departure from its provistons may be justifiable in
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particular circumstances and that

companies explain those departures

requires

This corporate governance report also describes
how the Board and its committees discharge therr
duties and how we apply the main principles of the
Code This report together with the remuneration
reports on pages 47 to 58, forms part of, and
should be read In conunchon with, the directors’
report set out on pages 23 to 26

The Company complies with the code, unless it I1s
inappropriate in which case the Company's
position 1s explained The table below provides a
summary of our compliance with sections of the
Code which require a specific response or
statement




Code

provision
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Comply (v}
or Explain
(E)

MNotes

A1l1
The annual report should 7 The Board meets regularly and 15 responsible for setting the
iInclude a statement of how strategy of the Company and has responsibility for the internal
the board operates, control systems operated across the Group, allowing
including a high level assessment and management of the key issues and risks
statement of which types of impacting the business
decisions are to be taken
by the board and which are v The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it, which
to be delegated to ensures that it 15 responsible for approwing the Company's
management overall strategic direction, values and standards, reviews
management performance and assesses whether the company
has the necessary resources in place to meet its objectives
v The authonty given to the Chief Executive Officer and the
executive team 1s set out in the Schedule of Delegated Authonty
("SoDA™)
A12
The annual report should 4 The names of our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, members
dentify the chaiman, of our Board and committees and chairs thereof are set out on
deputy charman (where pages 40 to 45
there 1s one), the chief
executive, the senior v The number of meetings of the board and committees and the
independent director and individual attendance at such meetings by directors 1s set out on
the chaimen and members page 36
of the board committees it
should also set out the E The Company does not appoint a Senior Independent NED
number of meetings of the since the shareholders have representation on the Board and
board and ts committees therefore have appropnate access to the Chairman, Chief
and individual attendance Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
by directors
Michael Pavia, Edward Richards and Dame Deirrdre Hutton are
B11 considered Independent NED
The board should dentify 7
in the annual report each The remaining 10 NEDs are nominated and appointed by the
Non Executive Director i shareholders of Kemble Water Holdngs Limited and are
considers to be therefore not determined to be independent
independent E

i3
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B24

A separate section of the
annual  report  should
descrnibe the work of the
nomination committee,
tncluding the process it has
used in relatton to board
appointments

The activittes of the Compensation & Human Resources
Committee (“CHR committee™) which broadly includes the role of
a nominations committee are descrnibed on page 46 and also In
the Directors’ remuneration Report on pages 47 to 58

Although the CHR commitee 1s nvolved in selection of
independent NEDs, Board appointments are made by the
Company’s shareholders and are, therefore, not considered by a
separate nomination committee

Bé61

The board should state in
the annual report how
performance evaluation of
the board, its committees
and its individual directors
has been conducted

For the Board & Committee Evaluation please refer to page 37

In ight of the Company’s ownership structure, the performance
of individual directors 1s not evaluated

CAa1

The  directors should
explain their responsibility
for preparing the annual
report and accounts, and
there should be a
statement by the auditor
about thear reporting
responsibilities

A statement of Directors’ responsibiities 1s included in the
annual report on page 27

c.1.2

The  directors should
include in the annual report
an explanation of the basis
on which the company
generates or preserves
value over the longer term
(the business model) and
the strategy for delivering
the objectives of the
company

The Company's prime function 1s to pronide a safe, reliable and
sustainable water and waste services to its customers and
stakeholders It 1s regulated by Ofwat and aims to meet or beat
its regulatory outputs and financial settlement to provide the
returns our shareholders expect and require whilst maintaining
affordable customer bills

CA1.3

The directors should report
in the annual and half
yearly financial statements
that the business 1s a going
concern, with supporting

assumptions or
qualfications as
necessary

A ‘Going Concern’ statement 1s made as part of the Directors’
Report on page 26
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C33

The terms of reference of
the  audt committee,
including its role and the
authonty delegated to it by
the board, should be made
avaitable A separate
sectien of the annual report
should describe the work of
the audt committee n
discharging those
responsibilities

/ The terms of reference of the ARRC are approved by the Board

Details of the responsibtities and work of the Audit & Risk
Review Committee can be found on pages 41 {0 43

c3a7

The annual report should v The annual report sets out the Audtor's independence and
explan to shareholders objectivity on page 42

how, f the auditor provides

non-audit services, auditor

objectivity and

independence 1S

safeguarded

E12

The board should state in v The NEDs are all nominated and appointed by the shareholders

the annual report the steps
they have taken to ensure
that the members of the
board, and in particular, the
Non Executive Directors,
develop an understanding
of the wews of major
shareholders about the
company, for example
through direct face-to-face
contact, analysts’ or
brokers' bnefings and
surveys of shareholder
opInion

of Kemble Water Holdings Limited (the uftimate parent) and the
shareholders, therefore, have representaton on the Board
Therefore, the Board considers that ¢ has an appropnate
understanding of the Company's shareholders and s able to
seek such views as specific 1Issues should this be requested
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The Board of directors

The names of our current directors who served
durning the year and their biographies are set out
on pages 29 to 31 The Board met six imes durnng
the year and in additon held three telephone
meetings dunng the year The table below shows
the attendance of each of our directors at Board
and standing commitiee meetings including where

they are not formally Committee members

All directors are entitled to attend Board meetings
either in person or by felephone and are also
entitled to attend and observe Committee
meetings Certain members of the Company's
senior management team will aiso attend Board
and Committee meetings by invitation

T
o
= »
z 5 g 4 © =
= »w 3 = o a)
= ? 2R3 & & o
2 » € & 3 5 3 §
@ 2 5 ® = = -t
2 <2 2 = 3 2 =
= 3 @ o O
£ 3 = 2
o
=
Total number of meetings held 9 4 7 4 7 10 4 5
Sir Peter Mason 9 - - (1 7 10 - 5
Martin Baggs 9 @ (M ¥ M (10 @ 6
Edward Beckley 9 - 2 - - 5 . -
Rosamund Blomfield-Smith ® 4 - - - - - -
Chnistopher Deacon 9 - (B (1) 7 (100 - 4
Simon Eaves 6 - (N - - @ - -
Dame Deirdre Hutton 7 - - 3 - - 4 -
Gordon Parsons 8 4 7 3 (h 6 2 -
Michael Pavia 9 4 (8 - 7 10 - -
Dawid Rees " 3 - (M N )
Ed Richards 7 M 5 - - - 4 -
Kevin Roseke ® 1 - - - - - - -
Dipesh Shah B (1) 6 3 - 7 - -
Yaping Shi ™ 1 - - - - . - -
Stuart Siddall 9 @ (B - (3 (100 (1) (2
Martin Stanley 0 e
Rob Verron ™ 2 2 - M - - 2 -
Lincoln Webb 3 - - - - - . -
Dapeng Xu " 5 - - - - - ..
Key

{1} Appointed 29/11/12
{n) Appointed 29/10/12, resigned 02/01/13
{m) Appointed 02/01/13, resigned 24/05/13

{iv) Resigned 28/09/12
{v) Resigned 07/09/12
{w1) Resigned 29/10/12
{wn) Appointed 29/10/12

{) figures in brackets denote additional
attendance at Committee meetings
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Board and Committee Evaluation

As recommended by the Code, the Board
undertakes an annua! evaluaton of s own
performance and that of its committees Typically,
the Company engages the services of an external
Board evaluation consultant at least one year out
of three In between the external evaluations,
reviews are facilitated by the Company's
Secretarat

A Board effectiveness review was carmed out in
March 2013 This involved the use of a
questionnaire to all directors and covered a range
of issues around Board and commitiee processes,
Board roles and responsibilities Questionnaires
are confidential between the indvidual and the
facilitator and responses are analysed and
thereafter presented to and discussed by the
Board

The findings of the review were considered by the
Board at the 25 Apnl 2013 Board meeting, with
several iImprovements suggested as a result

Induction and Traiming

On joning the Company, directors are offered
induction matenal and are invited to receive a
tanlored induction programme and the opportunity
to meet other directors, the Company Secretary
and Executive Team as well as being given the
opportunity to visit operational sites

Dunng 2012/13, guidance was provided to the
whole Board on topics such as the proposed new
regulations within the water industry Half Day
meetings are arranged in advance of Board
meetings to update the Board and other
stakeholders on key matters in more depth Our
major regulators are also invited to meet with the
Board from time to time

Conflicts of Interest

Since October 2008, all directors have been under
a statutory duty to avoid any situation in which they
have, or can have, a direct or indirect interest
which conflicts or possibly may conflict with the
interests of the Company As 1s permitted, our
articles of association contain provistons which
permit the unconflicted directors to authonse
conflict situations and procedures have been put in
ptace for the disclosure of any conflicts by the
directors to the Board and for the consiwderation
and, If appropnate, authonsation of such conflicts
The procedures permit any authonsation to be
subject to any terms and/or conditions that the
unconflicted directors think fit All directors are

37

asked on an annual basis if ther other
commitments and interests have changed and are
given the opportunity at each Board meeting to
disclose any new conflicts or interests In any
case, all directors are required to notfy the
Charrman or Company Secretary if they believe a
conflict situation has ansen or might arise

information, support and advice

The Chairman 1s responsible for ensunng that
directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information on a regular basts to enable them to
perform ther duties properly Supported by the
Company Secretaniat meeting papers are made
avallable seven days in advance of scheduled
Board meetings to enable directors to obtain a
thorough understanding of the matters tc be
discussed and seek clanfication if required

Ali directors have sufficient resources and access
to independent professional advice, at the
Company's expense, In order to discharge their
responsibilities Addiionally, all directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who i1s responsible to the Board for
ensunng that Board procedures are complied with
The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretary 1s a matter reserved for the Board

In addition to such indemnity protection as may be
provided by the Company itself under law, the
Company has in place appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against its directors

Tax Policy

The Company's tax department cares out its
activities In accordance with policies approved by
the Board of directors The Company I1s committed
to complying with its cbligations to HM Revenue
and Customs, and does not engage in any tax
planning activities that would be considered as
artificial or aggressive tax avotdance

Treasury policy

The Board oversees the Company's treasury
activites, reviewing polcy and approving the
Treasury plan and policy on an annual basis

The Company's Treasury operations are managed
centrally by a small speciahst team, which
operates with the delegated authonty of, and under
policies approved by, the Board of directors The
Treasury function does not act as a profit centre
and does not undertake any speculative trading
activity The key objectives of the funding strategy
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are defined by the regulatory regme within which
the Company operates and are intended to ensure
that it meets all funding related requirements under
the terms of s Licence This includes maintaining
cash reserves and access to undrawn committed
bank facilittes sufficient to fund at least 12 months
net cash flow (as discussed on page 23 - the
Company’'s dividend policy extends this to a 15
month period) and to use all reasonable
endeavours to maintain an investment grade credit
rating (see “Debt financing” section below) as set
out in Condition F of the Licence

A key objective of treasury policy 1s to ensure
comphance with financia! covenants, including
interest cover and geanng ratios, maintain quidity
and a balanced debt matunty profile, and ensure
that at least 85% of the interest cost within the
Secuntisation Group, (being Thames Water
Utiities Holdings Limited, the Company, Thames
Water Utihties Finance Limited, Thames Water
Utities Cayman Finance Holdings Limited and
Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Limited)
15 based on either fixed or RPI-inked interest
rates

Financial nsk management

The Company's Executive Team (“the Executive”),
receives regular reports from all areas of the
business to enable prompt identfication of financial
and other nsks so that appropnate actions can be
taken

The operation of the treasury function 1s governed
by policies and procedures, which, amongst other
things, set out guidelnes for the management of
interest rate nsk and foreign exchange nsk and the
use of financial instruments Treasury policy and
procedures are ncorporated within the financial
control procedures of the Company

The Company's operations expose it to a vanety of
financial nsks that include the effects of changes in
debt market pnces, pnce nsk, hquidity nsk, interest
rate nsk and exchange rate nsk

Denvative financial instruments, including cross
currency swaps, Interest rate swaps and forward
currency contracts are employed to manage the
interest rate and currency nsk arising from the
primary financial instruments used to finance the
Company’'s activities  Matching of assets and
llabiities m foreign currencies 1s also applied
wherever practicable The Company actively
maintains a broad portfolio of debt, dversified by
source and matunty and designed to ensure the
Company has sufficient avallable funds for
operations
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The Company 15 exposed to commodity price nsk,
especially energy pnce nsk, as a result of s
operatiocns The Company aims fo manage its nsk by
fixing contract pnces where appropnate

Debt financing

Debt financing 1s raised by the Company or
through the Company's wholly owned subsidiary,
Thames Water Utiities Cayman Finance Limited
Previously, debt had been raised through Thames
Water Utilties Finance Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary

Moody's Investor Service (*Moody's™) rates Class
A debt i1ssued by Thames Water Utiities Cayman
Finance Limited, A3 long term with stable outlook
and Class B debt at Baa3 with stable outlook
Moody's also 1ssues a Corporate Family Rating for
the Secuntisation Group of companies, which
stands at Baa1, with stable cutlook Standard and
Poor's Rating Services (“Standard and Poor's™
rates Ciass A debt as issued by Thames Water
Utiittes Cayman Finance Limited at A- and Class
B debt at BBB  Accordingly, the Company
maintains an investment grade 1ssuer credit rating

Capital structure

Key features of the Company's capital structure
are as follows

» all debt 1ssued by the Securntisation Group 15
documented pursuant to a Common Termns
Agreement as part of the Whole Business
Secunitisation entered into in August 2007

» net debt issued by the Secuntisation Group
Class A ratio of net debt to RCV 1s limited to
75%

s since 1 Apnl 2010, the Company and the
Secuntisation Group has the option to 1ssue
Subordinated Debt {*Class B"} At the same
time, there 15 an increase n the combined
Class A and Class 8 (together "Semor”) net
Debt/RCV ratio to a maximum of 85%

o each Oblgor ({the companies within the
Securhisation Group) had entered into the
Security Trust and Inter-creditor Deed (*STID")
with the Secunty Trustee pursuant to which
Thames Water Uthties Holdings Limited
guarantees the obligations of each other
Obligor under the finance documents and the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries
guarantee the obligations of each other under
the finance documents, In each case to the
Secunty Trustee
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as part of the WBS Thames Water Utilities
Holdings Limited has granted share secunty
over its shares in TWUL

TWUL 15 subject to certan restrictions in
paying dividends as part of its covenant-based
nng-fencing Due to the WBS and creation of
the "ring-fenced” group, TWUL 15 only entitled
to pay dividends or make any other payments
if certan conditions are satisfied and s
restricted on the amount of any such
payments

following an event of default, the documents
provide for an automatic 18 month standstill of
the clams of the creditors that have entered
into the STID
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Committees of the Board

The Board has formally delegated specific
responsibiities to certan committees Each
committee has written terms of reference (which
have been approved by the Board) and the
collective function of the Commuttees 1s to exercise
oversight on behalf of the Board and to prowvide
advice to the Board All of our Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to undertake
therr duties and are supported by our secretanat
team In addition, directors have the authonty to
seek ndependent advice f they feel it 1s
appropriate Each Committee reviews its terms of
reference and effectiveness on an annual bass,
and makes appropriate recommendations back to
the Board Other Committees are formed as and
when required to deal with specific matters Due to
its signficance, a Board committee ("Tideway
Committee”) was created in October 2007 to
oversee the Tideway project Additionally, the
Board created the AMP 6 Capital Works

Committee to oversee the development of the
Company's procurement plans for the next
regulatory period

The five standing committees of the Board are as
follows

Audit and Risk Review ("ARRC")
Regulatory

Health, Safety and Environment

Compensation and HR

Customer Service

Committees of the Board

» Membership of the Committees in operation
dunng the year ended 31 March 2013 15 set

out below

Audit and Risk Review Committee

M Pavia (Chairman)

G | W Parsons

R Blomfield-Smith (appointed 07/03/13)
R Vernon {resigned 29/10/12)

Regulatory Committee

G | W Parsons (Chairman)
E Beckley

E C Richards

D Shah

Health, Safety and Environment Commuttee

G | W Parsons (Chairman)
Dame D M Hutton
D Shah

Compensation and HR Committee

Sir P J Mason (Chairman)

M Stantey (resigned 07/09/12)
C Deacon

M Pavia

Customer Service Committee

Dame D M Hutton {Chairman)

G | W Parsons

E C Richards

R Verrion (resigned 29/10/12)

D Rees (appointed 07/03/13, resigned 24/05/13)

Tideway Tunnel Committee

Sir P J Mason (Chairman)

E Beckley

G | W Parsons

D Shah

M Pavia

R Blomfield-Smith (appointed 07/03/13)

AMP 6 Capital Works Committee

Sir P J Mason (Chairmany}
C Deacon
P Dyer
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The Audit and Risk Review Committee

The ARRC compnises two NEDs and one
independent NED, Michael Pavia, who 1s the
Committee Chairman The ARRC 1s attended by
the CEQ and CFO and other senior managers as
appropnate The external auditors also attended
these meetings The Chaiman of the Committee
also met with both the Head of Internal Audit and
the external audit lead partner outside of
Committee meetings as required throughout the
year

The Committee met four times during the financial
year ended 31 March 2013 Two Committee
meetings were inquorate following the resignation
of Robert Vernon in QOctober 2012 However, this
situation did not matenally impact on the workings
of the Committee and was rectfied by the
appointment of Rosamund Blomfield-Smith to the
Committee in March 2013

The Board reviews nsk  management
arrangements and the effectiveness of the
Company’s interna! control systems through the
work of the ARRC The Committee’'s prnmary
objectives are

() Exercising oversight over the accuracy
and completeness of the financial
statements and the Annual Performance
Report to Ofwat,

(ny Making informed decisions regarding
accounting policies, practices and
disclosures,

(m) Reviewing the scope and results of
internal and external audits,

(v) Assessing the adequacy of the
Company's internal control framework to
ensure compliance with policies approved
by the Board,

(v) Maintaining open lines of communication
between the Board, management and the
external auditor,

(vi) Monitoring compliance with the nsk
management framework n relation to
financial operational matters

The ARRC also reviews the Company's
procedure for handing allegations from
whistleblowers as set out in the Company's
Honest and Ethical Behaviour Policy Any
whistleblowing events are brought to the attention
of the ARRC and are promptly investigated by the
Head of Internal Audit

Dunng the year, the Committee discharged its
responsibilities in the following manner
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Financial Reporting

The Comrritee considered, prior  to
recommending their approval to the Board, the
integnty of the financial statements of the
Company and, together with the Regulatory
Committee, reviewed the Annual Return to Ofwat
In undertaking this review, the Committee
discussed the cntical accounting policies and
judgments applied with management and the
external audtors It discussed a report from the
external audtors dentfying the significant
accounting and judgmental 1ssues that arose In
the course of the audit The ARRC also
considered the management letter for any non-
standard 1ssues and monitored action taken by
management as a result of any audt
recommendations

In respect of these financial statements, the key

issues addressed by the Commdtee included

s recoverability of the Company's debtors,
provisions for bad debt and the level of bad
debt expense,

s the level of accruals for contractor clams and
disputes associated with work performed
dunng the current and previous financial
years,

* the market value of the Company's land and
buildings assets, and,

* the avalabilty of financial resources,
borrowing facilites and the assessment of
going concern

The consistency of accounting policies across the
Company and the methods used to account for
significant or unusual transactions was reviewed
by the Committee It assessed whether the
Company had followed appropnate accounting
standards and had made approprate estimates
and judgements, taking mnto account the views of
KPMG Audt plc The Committee further
considered whether appropriate disclosure had
been made in the financial statements, the
business review and the Corporate Governance
Statement (insofar as it relates to the audit and
nsk management) The Commitee reviewed all
statutory financial reporting and internat control
certifications required to be entered into or sighed
by the directors indwidually or the Board
colflectively prior to these being presented to the
directors or Board, as appropnate, for formal sign-
off

Internal Audit

The Committee monitored and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
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function in the context of the Company's overall
nsk management systems In particular, the
Committee considered and approved the remit
and actvities of the internal audit function,
ensunng that it had adequate resources and
appropriate access to information to enable i to
perform its function effectively, in accordance with
the relevant professional standards, and was free
from management or other restrictions It
reviewed and assessed the annual internal audit
plan and any reasons for any change or delay to
that programme The ARRC considered reports
on the Company from the intemal auditors,
including management’s responsiveness to the
findings and recommendations of the internal
audit team

External Audit

The Committee oversaw the relationship with the
external auditors KPMG Audit ple including {but
not limited to) whether fees for audit or non-audit
services were appropriate It reviewed KPMG
Audtt plc's terms of engagement, engagement
letter and the scope of ther audit work The
Committee assessed the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors, taking into
account relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements and the relationship with the
auditors as a whole, including the provision of any
non-audit services In accordance with the Policy
for the Prowision of Non-Audit Services The
Committee met regularly with the external
auditors, which, at least once, was without
management being present, to discuss their remit
and the findings of the audit and any related
Issues, errors or audit judgements

Auditor's independence and objectivity

The ARRC monitors regularly the non-audit
services provided to the Company by KPMG Audit
plc The auditor does not

s self review,

» Make management
Company,

+ have a mutualty of financial interest with the
Company,

« act in the role of advocate for the Company

decisions for the

Approval of the ARRC s required for any services
provided by the external auditor for which the fee
Is likely to be in excess of £100,000

Details of the fees paid to the external auditor
during the year ended 31 March 2013 for audit
and ncon-audit services are set out in note 3 to the
financial statements on page 70 of this Annual
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report and financial statements

Internal Controls

Systems

and Risk Management

The Company's nsk management process IS
integrated within the business and i1s designed
both to identify emerging risks and to minimise the
adverse tmpact of emerging and existing nsks
Each business area 1s responsible for managing
its nsks and maintaining a nsk register Significant
nsks are escalated and reviewed by the
Executive, and the process 1S overseen by the
ARRC

The Committee kept the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls
and nsk management systems under review and
approved for recommendation to the Board the
statements to be included in any statutory or
regulatory reports concerning internal controls
and nisk management The Committee reviewed
the nsk management strategy approved by the
Board and ensured that the Board received
regular and sufficient reports on internal controls
from management It ensured that effective nisk
management controls were kept in place and
embedded into normmal management and
governance processes Including, amongst cther
things, an organisation-wide risk register and
continuous monitonng of the most significant
rsks The Committee ensured that there were
clear reporting lines for all 1Issues associated with
risk management and reviewed the adequacy of
structures, processes and responsibiities for
identifying and managing key nsks facing the
organisation It confirmed the existence of policies
for comphance with relevant regulatory, legal and
code of conduct requirements (including amongst
other things the Instrument of Appointment, the
UK Corporate Governance Code, Ofwat's
Regulatory Accounting Guidelnes and other
relevant publications), the operational
effectiveness of polcies and procedures and
ensured that appropnate audit work was
undertaken on nsk management

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Committee reviewed the matenal nsks and
uncertanties appearing at pages 18 to 21
Following detalled consideration, it also
considered the appropniateness of the Company's
mitigation plans (including through engagement
with responsible Executive members)

Comphance, whistleblowing and fraud
the Company’s

The Committee reviewed
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arrangements for its employees and contractors
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
wrongdoing n financial or regulatory reporting or
other matters The Committee ensured that these
arrangements  allowed  proportionate  and
independent investigation of such matters and
appropriate follow up acton It considered the
Company's procedures for detecting fraud and its
systems and controls for the prevention of bnbery
and recewved reports on non-comphance

Reporting Responsibilities

The Committee Chairman reported formally to the
Board on the ARRC’'s proceedings and on all
matters within its duties and responsibilities at
each subsequent Board meeting The Committee
made recommendations to the Board as it
deemed appropriate on any area within its remit
where action or mprovement was needed and
reported to shareholders on its activities through
the circulation of the Committee minutes The
Head of Internal Audit was given direct access to
the Chairman of the Committee and to the
Chairman of the Board

The Company’s System of internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for the
Company’'s system of internal control This 1s
designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk
of falure to meet business objectives and can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance
against matenal misstatement or loss

The key features of the system of internal control
and nsk management are as follows

s a control environment with clearly defined
crganisational structures operating within a
framework of policies and procedures
covering every aspect of the business

+ comprehensive business planning, nsk
assessment and  financial reporting
procedures, including the annual preparation
of detalled operational budgets for the year
ahead and projections for subsequent years

e« regular monitonng of nsks and control
systems throughout the year, supported by
the use of nsk registers

s a self-certification process whereby
management 1s required to confim that the
system of internal control 1s operating
effectively

¢ an internal audt functon  providing
independent scrutiny of internal control
systems and nsk management procedures

+« a review of reports produced by internal and
external audit

The directors routinely review the effectiveness of
the system of internal control and nsk
management, principally by means of

s regular presentations to the ARRC and the
executive by heads of individual business
units and functional heads, descrnbing therr
rsk management strategies and detalling the
status of significant business nisks,

» reports of significant changes to the
Company's overall nisk profile, which are also
reported to the ARRC,

» standing reports from Internal Audit to the
ARRC,

» reports to the ARRC on the results of the self-
certification process and independent reports
thereon by Internal Audit, and,

« an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Company’s systems of nsk management and
internal controf by the Board

Regulatory Committee

Given the Company's status as a regulated utility,
the Board has created a standing Committee (the
“Regulatory Committee”) to provide oversight and
guidance in respect of regulatory 1ssues

The main objectives of the Regulatory Committee

are to assist the Board in reviewing any matters of

significance affecting the regulation of the

Company including

(1} reviewing the governance, policy and strategy
of decisions with regulatory implications,

(n) providing guidance on current, emerging and
future regulatory and competition matters and
advise the Board on regulatory and
competition strategy,

(m) reviewing progress in relatton to delivering
regulatory outputs,

(v} overseeing the preparation, and approving
submission, of
» the principal statement required by Ofwat,
+ the Annual retumn required by Ofwat,

e information relating to performance
aganst the AMP Monitoring Plans,

e action plans (as required by Ofwat) and
performance monitoring against these
plans,
responses to regulators’ consultations,
price determinations, and

s other matenal regulatory commitments
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Dunng the year in addition to the performance of
its activities set out above, the following subjects
were specifically considered by the Committee on
the agenda

+ Annual Retumn 2013 and the development
of the 2013 Annual Return

s preparations for PR14 including the
development of the Company’'s Business
Plans
Strategic Direction Statement
the Company’s response to various Ofwat
consultations including Future Price
Limits — Statement of Principles

» Joint meeting with the Audit & Risk
Review Committee to approve the Annual
Return

+ Water Resource Management Plan
preparations
review of 2013-14 charges

response to  Information  Provision
Consultations

o Counters Creek (Sewer Flooding
Programme)

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

As stated elsewhere in this report, the Company
Is committed to the highest standards of health
and safety and environmental compliance in the
performance of its activiies

To ensure that health and safety and
environmental 1ssues recewve appropriate Board
oversight, the Health, Safety & Environment
Commiitee assist's the Board as necessary in
relaton to health, safety, environmental and
corporate responsibility matters affecting the
Company

Its terms of reference include

(1) environmental protection,

(u} social and ethical policy and performance,

(m} incident and accident prevention,

(iv) the promotion of a health and safety culture,

(v) the evaluaton of health and safety
procedures and performance,

{v1) mplementation and compliance with respect
to applicable standards,

{vn) contractor management, and

{vin) workplace planning, control and reporting

1Ssues

Dunng the year Health, Safety & Enwvironment
Committee meetings specifically considered the
following items
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« health, safety and environmental
performance

¢ the Company's Health, Safety &

Wellbeing Business Plan

cychst Safety

Process Health & Safety Management

confined Spaces working

pollution Incidents

the management of catastrophic nsk

Tideway Tunnel Committee

In hght of the significance of the Tideway project
to the Company, the Tideway Committee was
constituted to progress matters in respect of the
structunng and financing of the proposed Tideway
Tunnel

The scope of its activities include

() to progress the structuring and financing of
the Project and to make recommendations to
the Board in respect of the same,

{1} to enter into discussions In respect of and
make any appointments on behalf of TWUL
that are th the opnion of the Committee
necessary or desirable for the purposes of the
Project, including without !mitation the
appointment of Adwisors and the negohation
of and entry into the Project Advisory
Agreement,

{(m) to authorise the making of submissions to and
filmgs with any legal or regulatory authorty
(including Ofwat) and to enter Into
agreements with, and/cr give undertakings to,
any such authonty, in each case on terms that
the Committee may consider necessary or
desirable, and

(iv) to pay or authonse the payment of all fees,
expenses or charges (including any VAT
payable thereon) incurred by or on behalf of
TWUL or its subsidianies in connection with
the Project, including (but without limitation)
the fees and expenses of financial and
professional advisors

During the year, and in addition to performing the
actvitles set out above, the Committee
specfically considered the following
e progress against key activittes such as
planning and property acquistion,
* the ongoing development of a Project
delivery model,
stakeholder engagement and impact,
preparations for the procurement of the
project and underlying works contracts,
¢ project timetable and mitestones
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Customer Service Committee

The Board recognises the importance of the
Company providing a good service to iis
customers and to dnve improved customer
service and experience, has set up a Customer
Service Committee

The Committee focuses on Customer Service,
Engagement and Communications and its
activities include
() Performance — review of current company
position and performance against industry
comparators and external best practice
companies
(1) Strategy - reviewing the development of the
customer service strategy reflecting the
challenges faced by the company over the
next five years
» understanding the future ambittons of the
Company and the dnvers for change
including market reform
+ review and analysis of the potential
options to achieve the Company goals
¢ adwvising the Board on key issues and
decisions
{m) Customer Consultation and Engagement
« review and advise on the varous
communications routes with consumers
and customers including
o future plans for formal representation
via the Consumer Council for Water
o communication channels and
contacts routes
o nature and content of subject areas
and messaging
o consultation processes on strategic
projects and intiatives

In addition to performing the core activities set out
above, the following tems were specifically
discussed at Customer Service Committee
meetings

» customer Engagement & Customer
Engagement Strategy,

« customer Service Improvement initiatives,

customer reaction to the Drought
retall Strategy / PR14
Custormer Challenge Group feedback on
Company performance

« vreview of the Company's Customer
Service performance metrics, Customer
Equity and Social Tanffs proposals
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AMP & Capital Works Commuttee

The Commitee was formed on 13 September
2012 s terms of reference are to assist in the
development and progression of the Company’s
AMP 6 Capital Works procurement plans in the
lead up to the next regulatory period

Specifically, the Commuttee considered
e the development of the Company's
alhancing model for AMP 6
e the procurement strategy for the AMP 6
Capital Works programme
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Compensation & Human Resources
Committee

The Company operates a Compensation &
Human Resources Committee (‘the Committee”)
which broadly functions as both a remuneration
and a nomination committee

The Commuttee's responsibilities include, but are
not imited to, making recommendations {0 the
Board on the Company’s executive remuneration

Key activities

pohcy and directors' terms of appointment Dunng
the year, the Commitiee advised the Board of
directors and received advice and input from
vanous directors and specialist staff within the
Company, including the CEO and the director of
Human Resources {(both of whom are invited to
attend meetings from time to time) No indviduals
are involved in the determination of therr own
remuneration

The Committee’s activities during 2012/13 were as follows -

Meeting Activities
February 2012 |« Setting bonus plan for 2012/13
May 2012 + Reviewing performance against targets 2011/12
y « Reviewing salanies for Senior Executives 2012
» Board meeting to approve bonus payments 201 1/12, payments made July 2012
June 2012 « Board meeting to approve salary reviews for Senior Executives, increases effective July
2012
» Setting bonus plans for 2013/14
February 2013 » Reviewing salaries for Sentor Executives 2013, agreed no increases to be apphed
May 2013 s Reviewing performance against 2012/13 bonus and 2010-2013 LTIP targets Resulting
payments to be made July 2013
June 2013 » Board to approve bonus and LTIP payouts

To ensure that the Company's remuneration
practices are competitive, the Committee has
access to detalled external research on market
data and trends from PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP
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Succession of Senmor Management

As part of its role, the Compensation and HR
Committee s responsible for ensunng that there
are plans in place for the orderly succession of
executive directors and the Company's senior
management (including the executive team)
During the year there has been further focus on
succession planning




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Directors’ remuneration report

The directors’ remuneration repert 1s unaudited as
it s not a statutory requirement to do so
However, the Company provides this information
in accordance with its regulatory Licence

In this section of the Annual report, the Company
describes how the Chairrman, executive directors
and non-executive directors are remunerated The
total remuneration awarded for services to the
Group, the element of this awarded for services to
the Company and the element that relates to
regulatory performance I1s disclosed

Remuneration policy

The Committee bases its decision-making with
respect to remuneration policy on a number of
underying pnnciples, which can be summarised
as follows,

+ arrangements should attract, retain, motivate
and reward high calibre drectors and
executives,

* packages should be aligned with the interests
of the Group's stakeholders, in particular its
shareholders and its customers,

» packages should be commensurate with
those provided by other companies of similar
size and complexity, taking into account
individual contribution and expernience,

+ policy should establish firm links between an
executive's performance and remuneration
and between the Group's performance and
the executive’s total remuneration,

¢ packages should include a mix of basic salary
plus performance related incentives Further
detail is included within the bonus section on
pages 49 to 52 which indicates how Directors’
pay I1s inked to standards of performance

The Committee considers carefully the blend of
remuneration linked to regulatory performance
and remuneration linked to other performance
measures (n order to produce weli balanced short-
term and long-term incentive plans  These
arrangements are designed io incentivise value
creation and a high qualty service to customers
and are algned with both the internal
remuneration policy and external corporate
governance requirements

The committee 1s also mindful of pay and
conditions for the wider employee population
when determining executive remuneration

The Comnuttee will continue to review
arrangements regularly to ensure that they remarmn
effective and appropnate to the Company's
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circumstances and prospects, and to monitor the
level of potential awards

Summary of remuneration and overview for
the year to 31 March 2013

The remuneration of the Executive Directors i1s
linked to the performance of the Company and the
Group and therr own personal performance

A summary of remuneration for 2012/13 15 as

follows,

» Martin Baggs, Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
received an increase In salary of 5 9% and
Stuart Siddall, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
received an increase In salary of 3 3%,

« annual bonus payments for the year 2012/13
reflected the Company’s challenging financial
perfformance as well as its strong
performance againsi some of its key strategic
imitiatives  This resulted in total payouts
relating to services lo the Group of 60 8% of
salary for Martin Baggs, Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and Stuart Siddall, Chief
Financial Officer (CFQ),

+ payment of the 2009 Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) i July 2012 as a result of the
Group's performance against key financial,
regulatory and sustainability targets dunng
the performance period with payment levels
of 67 5% of salary for Stephen Shine, Former
Chief Operating Officer (FCOO), and Mark
Brathwaite, Former Chief Financial Officer
(FCFQO) Mark Braithwaite’s payment was pro-
rated to reflect service dunng the scheme
period A Long Term Incentive Plan is offered
to ensure that Executive Directors are
incentivised to deliver long term, sustainable
performance over a period of several years
and i1s separate from a bonus which rewards
in-year performance Payouts are made
based on performance agamst agreed targets
and are dependent on the Directors remaining
employed by the Group at the end of the
performance penod, unless the Committee
exercises ther discretion to make a payment
in other circumstances
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There have been no significant changes to
remuneration pelicy for 2013/14 Points to note
are as follows,

s toughening and reweighting of performance
conditions 1n the annual bonus with greater
focus on financial performance,

Remuneration of Executive Directors

the first payment will be made under the 2010
LTIP in July 2013 as a result of performance
agamst key financial, regulatory and
sustanability targets during the performance
perniod which has run for the last three years
The payout fevel 1s expected to be 81 3% of
current base salary for Martin Baggs, CEO
Steve Shine, FCOO also 15 expected to
receive a payment of 83 3% of basic salary at
date of leaving, under this scheme

The remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors are summarised below

Element |Description Level 2012/13 Level 2013/14
Base Base salanes for the Executive Directors | Salary increases for 2012/13 No salary increases wili be
salary are reviewed annually, taking into range from 3 3% to 5 9% for awarded to Executive Directors
account therr mdividual performance, the |Executive Directors in 2013/14
external market and internal and external
economic factors, with any changes
taking effect from 1 July each year
Annual The performance conditions are selected |« Target award of 56 25% of Target award of 56 25% of
bonus to motivate Executive Directors to base salary for 2012/13 base salary for 2013/14
achieve the Company's key financial, awards awards
operational and strategic objectives o Maximum award of 112 5% Maximum award of 112 5%
through a combination of financial, of base salary of base salary
corporate and personat performance
targets
The bonus 1s structured to reward
significant improvement in the Group's
financial and operational performance
Long term | Plan rewards performance over 2010-15 |« Annual target award of 75% Annual target award of 75%
incentive | (AMPS), with deferred payouts over of base salary of base salary
plan 201317 » Annual maximum award of Annual maximum award of
(LTIP) Vesting 1s conditicnal on the following 150% of base salary 150% of base salary
performance conditions -
s Financial performance (40%),
« Sustainability (40%), and
* Regulatory and customer (20%)
Pensions | Provide competitive cost effective saving {Contribution of 25% of base Contnbution of 25% of base
benefits for employees salary for Execulive Directors | salary for Executive Directors
Benefits The Executive Directors received a car allowance, private medical insurance, ife assurance, Group Income

Protection and 25 days holiday The Chief Executive Officer also received a housing allowance
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The following table summanses the total cash elements of the package of the Executive Directors and their
value as a percentage of salary The table also shows the proportion of these payments related to vanable

and long term performance

Components of Executive 201213 201314
Director remuneration Value (% salary) Value (% salary)
Target Maximum Target Maximum

performance performance performance performance

Salary 100% 100%

Pension 25% 25%

Bonus 56 25% 112 5% 56 25% 112 5%

LTIP 75% 150% 75% 150%

Total 256 25% 387 5% 256.25% 387 5%

x/aortlg::;alﬁ pay — Bonus and LTIP 51% 68% 51% 68%

T

Base salanes and benefits

Base salanes for the Executive Directors are
reviewed annually, taking intc account therr
individual performance, the external market and
internal and external economic factors, with any
changes taking effect from 1 July each year
Base salarnes are a fixed sum payable monthly

Martin Baggs, CEO, receved a 59% pay

increase on 1 Apnl 2012 This was the first
review of his annual salary since his appointment
n 2010 Stuart Siddall received a 3 3% increase
on 1 July 2012 The average pay increase for
employees across the Company was 3% for this
perod

Executive director

Salary at 31 March 2013

Martin Baggs, CEQ

£450,000

Stuart Siddall, CFO

£310,000

Bonuses

Executive Directors are elgible to participate in an
annual bonus scheme, which 18 designed to
motivate them to achieve the Company's key
financial, operational and strategic objectives
through a combination of financial, corporate and
perscnal performance targets

The amount of any annual incentive award i1s
determined by performance aganst set targets
and 1s at the discretion of the Committee The
Commuttee reserves the nght to reduce bonus
payments If overall Group performance does not
warrant payment The Board believes that this 1s
the most appropriate means of aligning directors’
remuneration to performance
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Executive Directors’ annual bonus

measures 2012/13

plan

The 2012/13 annual bonus plan aimed to reward
significant improvement in the Group's financial
performance and corporate perforrmance whilst
recognising individual  performance The
maximum level of award for the 2012/13 scheme
for Executive Directors was 112 5% of salary
based on three equally weighted performance
areas, financial, corporate challenge and

personal

The financial targets and corporate challenges
were selected as being the most critical for the
organisation durning 201213 The personal
performance element of the bonus 1s based on
the performance of the Executive Directors
against thewr key business abjectives which Iink to
the Groups overall key operaticnal and strategic
objectives

Executive Directors’ annual bonus plan measures 2012/13 (continued)

Performance measure

2012/13 actuevement (% of maximum

Weight for 2012/13
(as % of
maximumy}

bonus)

Martin Baggs
CEO

Stuart Siddall
CFO

Financial measures

Regulated net
capital expenditure

1 11%

337%

Group cash flow

1 1%

567%

before funding

Group Earnings
Before Interest Tax
Depreciation &
Amortisation
(EBITDA)

11 11%

0%

Corporate
Challenges

Tideway Tunnel
delivery mode! and
funding
arrangements
Customer Service
stabthsation
Management of
impact of the
Olympics
Management of the
impact of the
drought mcluding
achievement of
leakage target
Implementation of
new working
patterns

Reduction in central
overhead costs

3333%

25%

Personal performance

33 34%

20% 20%

Overall (% maximum}

100%

52 04% 54 04%

Payout for 201213

£273,5565 £188,449

There was a requrement that all related
regulatory outputs must be achieved for the net
capital expenditure measure to pay out and that
there must be no increase tn opex creditor days
for the cash flow before funding measure to pay
out These were both achieved Furthermore,
there was a financial underpin on the personal
element of the 2012/13 bonus whereby no
payment would be made aganst the personal
element of the annual bonus unless the Group
cash flow before funding target was achieved,
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which was attained

The payments under this scheme will be made in
July 2013
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Executive Directors’ annual bonus plan
measures 2013/14

The 2013114 annual bonus plan will follow the
overall structure of the 2012/13 plan however two
thirds of the personal performance element have
been allocated to performance against the Group
EBITDA target

As a result of this change, the structure of the
bonus plan for 2013/14 for the Executive Directors
will be as follows -

Performance measure

Weight for 2013/14 (as % of maximum)

Regulated net capital expenditure

11 11%

efficiency
Financial
measures Cashflow before funding 11 1%
EBITDA 11 1%
Corporate challenges 33 34%
Personal performance — based on performance against 11 1%
objectives ’
Personal performance — based on EBITDA performance 22 22%
Overall (% maximum) 100 00%

As n the 2012/13 bonus, the related regulatory outputs must be achieved before the capital expenditure
efficiency measure will pay out and there must be no increase in creditor days for the cash flow befare
funding target pays out The financial underpin on the personat element of the bonus will continue to be a

Group cash flow before funding target

Long Term Incentive Plans ("LTIP")

In order to focus executives on long term,
sustained performance and to aid retention, the
Company's Executive Directors and Senior
Management are from time to time invited to
participate in an LTIP

The LTIP 2008 was a three year plan with a
performance related payout at the end of the
vesting penod The LTIP 2009 vested in July
2012, folloming Board approval of the audited
accounts

The current plan, the LTIP 2010, 1s a multiple year
plan, with the performance penod running from
July 2010 to July 2015 and payouts being made in
each year from July 2013 to July 2017

Payouts are only made n full if the performance
targets are met and the Directors remain
employed by the Group at the end of the
performance perniod, unless the Commitee
exercises thew discretion to make a payment In
other circumstances
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The performance measures selected for the LTIP
are considered to be algned to the creation of
value for the Company, meeting and exceeding
regulatory performance requirements and
managing key strategic intiatives to deliver
improved future performance As a privately held
Company, total shareholder return (*TSR") 15 not
relevant or meaningful measure for the Company,
therefore, a benchmark TSR performance graph
has not been included in this report

LTIP 2009

A LTIP was offered covering the period 1 Apnil
2009 to 31 March 2012 in which Steve Shine,
FCOO, and Mark Brathwaite, FCFQ, participated
Following Board approval of the audited accounts,
payments were made in July 2012, pro-rata to the
length of service during the performance perod
The plan 1s based on the Company's performance
against the following measures between 1 April
2010 and 31 March 2012 -
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Measurement area Description Overall weighting
Delivering on core financial targets over AMP
5
Financial performance | These measures are based on regulated net 40%
capital expenditure, operating expenditure,
cash flow and EBITDA
Delivering on measures that ensure a
sustainable future and success beyond AMP
5
This includes
+ strategic intiatives around improving
operating efficiency, for example
WAMI and SCADA,
e developing a successful business
ptan for AMP 6, including an
assessment of the quality of
Sustainability stakeholder engagement, business 40%
planring and efficiency bandings,
» significantly mproving employee
engagement as measured by our
annual employee engagement
survey plus an overall review of the
levels of employee engagement, and
« 1mproving health & safety standards,
taking into account the nature and
seriousness of accidents as well as
the Company’s accident injury rate
Improving the Company's scores under
Efsgglr:teorry and Operational Performance Assessment 20%
{"OPA") and Ofwat's core measure, SIM
The performance measures are reviewed Ofwat's core performance measures The value

annually taking relevant economic factors in to
account For the payments to be made in 2014
onwards, OPA 15 being replaced with the
Company's KP| dashboard which includes
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of the awards that have vested are shown n the
LTIP award tables on page 53
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LTIP 2040

A new five year LTIP was intrcduced in 2010 for the Executive Directors and senior managers in kKey
strategic positions across the Company The performance penod of the plan runs from 1 Apnl 2010 to 31
March 2015 The plan focuses on the key objectives for the next regulatory peniod which are cntical to the

Company’s business plan as follows

Measurement area

Description

Overall weighting

Financial performance

Delivening on core financials over AMP 5
These measures are based on regulated net
capital expenditure, operating expenditure,
cashflow and EBITDA

40%

Delivenng on measures that ensure a
sustainable future and success beyond AMP

5
This includes

Sustainability

+ strategic intiatives around improving
operating efficiency, for example
WAMI and SCADA,

+ developing a successful business
plan for AMP 8, including an
assessment of the quality of
stakeholder engagement, business 40%
planning and efficiency bandings,

+ significantly improving employee
engagement as measured by our
annual employee engagement
survey plus an overall review of the
levels of employee engagement, and

« improving health & safety standards,
taking into account the nature and
senousness of accidents as well as
the Company's accident injury rate

Regulatory and
customer

Improving the Company’s scores under OPA 20%
and Ofwat's core measure, SIM °

The performance measures are reviewed
annually taking relevant economic factors nto
account

The plan 15 a five year plan where paricipants at
the Executsve Director level were granted five
times their annual target award of 75% of basic
salary in 2010 No further grants will be made to
participants over the performance penod

For threshold performance, half the award will
vest, nsing to two times the award for maximum
performance f performance does not reach the
threshold level for any of the targets, no payment
will be made under the plan

Under normal circumstances 20% of the total
award can be released each year from July 2013
to July 2017 based on performance achieved as
follows
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o 20% of the award will be paid in July
2013, based on performance from March
2010 to March 2013,

e 20% of the award will be paid out 1n July
2014, based on performance from March
2010 to March 2014,

« the remaining 60% of the award will vest
in March 2015 based on performance
from March 2010 to March 2015 and will
be paid out in three equal tranches over
July 2015 —~ July 2017

In exceptional circumstances the pay-outs 1n 2016
and 2017 may be reduced, for example in the
event of a matenal deterioraton n financial
performance or a significant fall in service after
the AMPS period In addition, the Commuitee has
the discretion not to pay under the regulatory and
customer area if falure to meet targets in any
area leads to regulatory action
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New joiners after 1 Apnl 2010 are ehgible to
participate in the LTIP 2010 at the discretion of
the Committee For new joiners, the first payment
from the LTIP will be made on the next vesting
date following completion of two years’ service
This payment will be pro-rated based on the part
year service No amount will be received if there
15 less than two years’ service for that award and
awards are not pro-rated where the new joiner
has served over 3 years of the performance
period

Pro-rating also applies to good leavers and 1s
subject to the Committee’s discretton and was
applhed to Steve Shine (FCOOQO)

The value of the awards that have vested and that
will be paid In July 2013 are shown in the LTIP
award tables on page 53

Pensions

Each Executive Director 15 eligible to receive
payments into pension worth 25% of base salary
The Committee has agreed that where
Executives' accumulated pension rnghts are
already In excess of the Lifetme Allowance or
where the value of ther contnbutions would
exceed the Annual Allowance, a cash payment In
lieu of this payment to pension may be made No
element of bonus or LTIP I1s pensionable

» Martin Baggs, CEO, participates in the
Company Defined Contnbution pension
scheme and recewves contributions of 25% of
base salary capped at the value of the
Annual Allowance with the balance being
paid as a taxable monthly allowance directly
to the Executve Company contributions to
the pension scheme for the year were
£50,000 (2011/12 £106,250) and the value
of the allowance paid was £62,500 (2011/12
£nil)

Stuart Siddall, CFO, recewves a salary

supplement of 25% of base salary In lieu of a

pension contribution Cash payments for the year

were £76,875 (2012 £40,057)
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Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Charman and Non-Executive Directors
receive a fixed fee for ther duties which reflects
therr responsibilities and time commitments They
are not entitled to any annual bonus, long term
incentives, pension benefits or benefits In kind

The Chairman receives an annual fee of £300,000
and Non-Executive Directors receive an annual
fee of £45000 Michael Pavia receives an
additicnal annual fee of £10,000 for his role as
Chairman, Audit & Risk Review Committee Fees
are reviewed regularly by the Committee and no
individuals are involved In the determination of
their own remuneration

Further details of the Charman and Non-
Executive Directors' remuneration are set out In
the emoluments table on page 56

For 2013/14, the fees payable to ali NEDs, with
the exception of Gordon Parsons and Edward
Beckley (who are nominated by Macquarie), will
Increase by £4,000 per annum

Service contracts

Reflecting current market practice, the Executive
Directors do not hold service contracts that
provide for a notice period longer than one year it
is not the Committee’s mtention to recommend
the appointment of any new Executive Directors
with contracts that provide for a longer notice
penod

The Committee endorses the principle of
mitigation of loss on early termination of a service
contract and generally seeks to achieve that
objective where possible and approprtate in the
event that the Company wished to terminate an
Executive Director's contract other than n
circumstances where the Company 1s entitied to
summarly dismiss an Executive Director, 1t would
need to give either 12 months' notice or make a
payment in lheu of salary For Non-Executive
Directors, no compensation 15 payable on the
event of early termination
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Service Contracts

Contract start date as
Executive Directors Executive Director Service peniod Notice period
& months by employee, 12
Martin Baggs, CEQ 5 March 2010 nfa months by company
6 months by employee, 12

Stuart Siddall, CFQ 20 September 2011 nfa months by company

Length of Each Expiry Date of Current

Inmitial Contract start date Penod of Contract

Appointment
Chairman
Si Peter Mason | 01 December 2006 | 3 years 9 June 2014
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dame Deirdre Hutton 22 July 2010 3 years 21 Juiy 2015
Michael Pavia 01 December 2006 3 years 21 July 2015
Edward Richards 22 July 2010 3 years 21 July 2015
Non-Executive Directors
Edward Beckley 26 March 2008 n/a n/a
Rosamund Blomfield- 29 November 2012 n/a n/a
Christopher Deacon 01 December 2006 n/a n/a
Simon Eaves 20 January 2012 n/a n/a
Gorden Parsons 10 Jupe 2010 n/a n/a
David Rees' 29 Cctober 2012 n/a n/a
Kevin Roseke? 02 January 2013 nfa n/a
Dipesh Shah 15 Qctober 2007 n/a n/a
Yaping Sh® 19 January 2012 n/a n/a
Martin Stanley* 01 December 2006 n/a n/a
Robert Vernon® 01 January 2011 n/a nfa
Lincoln Webb 21 November 2011 n/a n/a
Dapeng Xu 29 October 2012 n/a n/a

'David Rees resigned with effect from 2 January 2013
?Keven Roseke resigned with effect from 24 May 2013
aping Shi resigned with effect from 28 September 2012

* Martin Stanley resigned with effect from 7 September 2012
* Robert Vemon resigned with effect from 29 October 2012

appointed and can be removed without notice by
the shareholders of the Company in ine with the
Shareholder Agreement

The Chairman and Independent Non-Executive
Directors have fixed appointment periods, the
other Non-Executive Directors do not as they are
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Emoluments table (Excluding LTIPs)

Group Company | Company
) Annual Group

Directors Benefits nl  Allowances Pension cash Total year Total year Total Total

salanes / kind £7000 £'000 Allowance boOnUS to 31 1o 31 March Yearto 31 | Yearto 31

fees £°000 £000 £000 arch 2013 2012 £000 March 2013 | March 2012

£000 £'000 £000
[Executive Directors
M Baggs * 450) 2 51 63 274 840 8943 ssa] 627]
S Siddall® 308 2 13 77 188 5sﬂi 369 412 258
IChairman
Sir P Mason 300 1 ] ] ; 300 300 180 180)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dame D Hutton 45 ] ] i i 45{ 45l 45 45
M Pavia 58 | J 4 4 54 55 55' 55
E Richards* 45 L E g E 45l 45 44 45
INon-Executive Dirgctors
E Beckley pp | ] ] ] R sl 45 ] |
k)
IR Blomfield-Smth 51 i | J J 51 46| 38 30
IC Deacon’
104 E E E e 105 107] 50 1
IS Eaves* 45 ] .| J 4 45 11 1 1
G Parsons* 45 i ] i g a8 45 i i
D Rees* g ] ] i j g ] ] )
1
K Roseke 41 ] | ] ] 11 J 4 p
D Shah* 45 ] ] ] ] 4sl 45 E g
-l

¥ St 23 23 11 ] ]
M Stanley*® 19 i i i 4 19 45 1 .
R Vermon® 26l i 7 J E 26‘ 45 - b
L. Webb* 45 ] J ] J 4# 22 1 1
D Xu™ 19 19 ] ] -
Totai 1,690 4| 64 140f 462 2,360 2,132 1,411 1,240

The Group 1s Kemble Water Holdings Limited and the Company refers to TWUL
*Director's fees are paid to the shareholder's nominated company and not to the individual director

!Allowances for Martin Baggs compnise £15,000 car allowance and £36,000 housing allowance

2Allowances for Stuart Siddall compnse £12,500 car allowance

*Rosamund Blomfield-Smith was re-appointed on 29 November 2012 Fees shown include a consultancy fee of £36,000 for work on the
Tideway Improvements project pnor to her re-appeintment to the Board

* Fees shown include a consultancy fee of £60,000 (2011 £61,666) for work on the Tideway Improvements project
*Dawvid Rees was appointed on 29 October 2012 and resigned with effect from 2 January 2013

*Kevin Roseke was appomnted on 2 January 2013 and resigned with effect from 24 May 2013

7Yapmg Shi resigned with effect from 28 September 2012

*Martin Stanley resigned with effect from 7 September 2012

® Robert Vernon resigned with effect from 29 October 2012

' Dapeng Xu was appointed on 29 October 2012
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The following table sets out the proportion of the bonus which is attributable to regulatory performance for
2013 -

Executive Directors Proportion determined by regulatory
performance
Martin Baggs, CEQ £232,522
Stuart Siddall, CFO £160,182

Long term mcentive awards

The following table sets out the awards under the LTIP 2009 and vested and unvested awards under the
LTIP 2010 The potential vatues shown are the maximum cash levels attainable subject to the performance
conditions set out on pages 49 to 52 The expected value shows the level of vesting anticipated based on
estimates of current performance, and in the case of the LTIP 2010 will only be payable if performance
continues at the same level and if the Executive remains employed at the end of the performance period,
unless the Committee exercises their discretion to make a payment in other circumstances The actual
payments to be made in July 2013 under the LTIP 2010, represent a payout of 57 4% of the maximum,
which can be broken down as follows

Measure Weighting % Actual payout %
Regulated net operating expenses 100 83
EBITDA 100 83
Regulated capital efficiency 100 100
Cash flow before funding 100 100
OPA 100 33
Sim 100 -
AMP 6 planning 100 50
Employee engagement 100 50
Health & Safety 100 50
Strategic initiatives 100 25
Total 100 0 574
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Potential Value of Group | Company-
value of | Potential | awards |Value of | Potential | Expected | refated
awards | value of | vestng | awards | valueof | value of | Expected
held at 31] awards | dunngor | lapsed | awards awards value of
Date of March granted | related to | dunng held at | held at 31 lawards he!d
Performance potential 2012 |dunngthe| the year |the year| 31 March | March [at 31 March
enod ayment [Individual £'000 |year £'000] £'000 £'000 [2013 £'000{2013 £'000| 2013 £'000
LTIP 2010
1 Apnl 2010 — 31 Puly 2013 | 2 4
March 2013 M Baggs 638 366 272 166 2586
S Shine® 450 4 2587 192 1 258 181
IS Siddall 1 1 1 4 1 1 1
1 Apnl 2010 — 31 {uly 2014 M Baggs 638 4 - - 638 447 313
March 2014
S Siddall 225 . . . 225 158 114
1 Apnl 2010 - 31 July 2013 M Baggs 638 4 4 4 638 447 313
March 2015
S Siddall 450 . - 450) 3§ 224
Uuly 2016 M Baggs 638 . . . 638 447 313
S Siddall 450 - . . 450 315 22
Muly 2017 M Baggs 638 4 - . 638 447 313
S Siddall 450 . - - 450 314 221
LTIP 2009
- S Shine? 300 . 203 97| ) 1 7
1 Apnl 2010 - 31 uly 2012 Ine
March 2012 M Braithwaite 300 - 146 154 1 1 1

'Based on perfarmance to date
%will be paid n July 2013
*Steve Shine resigned as a Director on 31 March 2012

The expected value of the awards attributed to the Company relate fully to regulatory performance

The amounts shown in the above table are the total amounts that potentially will vest on maturty The
amount accrued n the year are shown In note 5, page 72 of the financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors on 6 June 2013 and signed on its behalf by

=

Sir Peter Mason, KBE
Chairman, Compensation and HR Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Thames Water
Utilities Limited

We have audited the financial statements of
Thames Water Utlites Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2013 set out on pages 60 to
98 The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation 1s applicable
law and UK Accounting Standards (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose

To the fuliest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anycne
other than the Company and the Company's
members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors'
Responsibilities Statement set out on page 27,
the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for
being satsfied that they give a true and far
view

Qur responsibility 1s to audit, and express an
opinion on, the financial statements n
accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Irefand) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

A description of the scope of an audit of
financial statements s provided on the
Financial Reporting Council’'s website at

www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements
» give a true and farr view of the state of the

Company's affairs as at 31 March 2013 and
of its profit for the year then ended
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» have been properly prepared in accordance
with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

* have been prepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the
Directors' report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared (s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters where the Companies Act
2008 requires us to report to you If, 1n our
opinion

+ adequate accounting records have nct been
kept, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited
by us, or

« the financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made, or

» we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

L Meed T

W Meredith (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

6 June 2013
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Profit and loss account

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Note 2013 2012
£m £m
Turnover 1,781 9 1,694 9
Operating costs before exceptional item (1,242 6) (1,091 0)
Exceptional tem pension curtarment gain 3 - 400
Operating costs 3 {1,242 6) (1,051 0)
Operating profit 5493 643 9
Profit on sale of fixed assets 4 108 39
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (491 8) (504 7)
Interest receivable 7 86.5 815
(405 3) (423 2)
Other finance expense 26 (99) {(24)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1449 2222
Taxation credit on profit on ordinary activities 8 51 250
Profit for the financial year 21 1500 247 2

There are no differences between the profit on ordinary activities before taxation for the pencds as stated

above and therr histonical cost equivalents

All amounts above relate to continuing operations

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Note 2013 2012

Em £m

Profit for the financial year 1500 247 2
Actuarial loss on pension scheme 26 (106 8) (94 4)
Deferred tax relief relating to actuanal loss 213 214
Total recognised gams in the year 645 174 2
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Balance sheet

As at As at
31 March 31 March
Note 2013 2012
£m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 9,297 9 8,788 3
Investments 11 01 01
9,298 0 8,788 4
Current assets
Stocks 12 8.4 96
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 13 5728 647 9
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 14 2,0150 20150
Total debtors 2,587 8 26629
Investments 17 7487 6194
Cash at bank and in hand 17 - 27
3,344 9 32946
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 15 {957 3) (1,460 4)
Net current assets 2,387.6 1,834 2
Total assets less current liabilities 11,6856 10,622 6
Creditors' amounts failing due after more than one year 16 (9,216 0) (8,050 2)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 18 {1,044 4) (1,052 6)
Net assets excluding net pension liabilities 1,425 2 1,5198
Net pension liabilties
Total of defined benefit schemes
With net habilities (214 5} (144 4)
With net assets 230 252
26 (191 5) {119 2)
Net assets including net pension habilities 1,233 7 1,400 6
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 19 29.0 10290
Share premium account 20 1000 1000
Profit and loss account 21 1,104.7 2716
Total shareholder’s funds 22 1,233.7 1,400 6

The notes on pages 64 to 98 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 6 June 2013 and signed on 1ts behaf by

Stuart Siddall
Chief Financial Officer

Company registered number 02366661
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Cash flow statement

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Note 2013 2012
£m £m
Net cash tnflow from operating activities 27(a) 1,057 0 9247
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest receved 1227 106 1
Interest paid (375.4) (354 1)
Interest element in finance lease payments (8 4) 69
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and
servicing of finance (261 1) {254 9)
Taxation - 796
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Gross cost of purchased fixed assets (903 5) {993 6)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (185 7) {176 8)
Receipt of grants and contnibutions 514 44 3
Movement on long term Igans to group companies - {150 0)
Sale proceeds of fixed assets 128 §8
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial
investment (1,025.0) (1,267 3)
Equity dividends paid 9 {231 4) (279 5)
(460 5) (797 4)
Management of hiquid resources
{Increase)/decrease In current asset investments 27(b) & (129 3) 156 4
()
Net cash outflow before financing (589.8) (641 Q)
Financing
Capital element in finance lease payment {74 5) (78
New loans 1,064 6 657 1
Repayment of loans (470 0) (92)
Net cash inflow from financing 27(b) & 520 1 640 1
(c)
Decrease in cash 27(b) (¢) (69 7) (09)
& (d)
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policles

The following accounting policies have been applied
consistently mn dealing with tems, which are
considered matenal to the financal statements,
except as noted below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared In
accordance with the historical cost convention and
with applicable accounting standards in the UK
and, except for the treatment of certain capital
contributions, with the Companies Act 2006 An
explanaton of this departure from the
requirements of the Act 1s given in note 1(b)
below

The directors believe, after due and careful
enquiry, that the Company has sufficient
resources for its present requirements and,
therefore, consider it appropnate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparnng the 2013
financial statements

The Company has not prepared consolidated
group financial statements, as permitted under
section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 The
Company and its subsidianes are included in the
consolidated financial statements of its ultimate
parent company Kemble Water Holdings Limited,
a company registered in the United Kingdom

Changes to accounting policies

There have been no changes to the accounting
policies from those used for the year ended 31
March 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Revenue recognition

Turnover represents the fair value of the income
receivable in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided and are recognised
in accordance with FRS 5 “Reporting the
Substance of Transactions” Turnover Is
recognised at the time of delivery of the service
Should the Company consider that the criteria for
revenue recognition are not met at the time of a
transaction, recognition of the associated turnover
would be deferred untl such ttme as the cntena
have subsequently been met No adjustment Is
made to turnover for estimated bad debt charges
These are charged to operating expenses
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For metered customers, turnover includes an
estimate of the sales value of water supplied and
waste water charges to customers between the
date of the last meter reading and the period end,
exclusive of value added tax The estimated
usage I1s based upon histonical data, judgement
and assumptions, actual results could differ from
these estimates, which would result In turnover
being adjusted in the penod for which the revision
to the estimates 1s determined The amounts
recognised in tumover, but unbilled at the balance
sheet date are recorded as a prepayment

When a new property 1s connected to the
Company's networks, an estimate 1s made of the
sales value of water supphed and waste water
charges to customers between the date of
connection and the penod end

For customers who do not have a meter, the
amount billed 1s dependent upon the rateable
value of the property, as assessed by an
independent rating officer  The amount billed 15
apportioned tn turnover over the penod to which
the bill relates

Addrtional charges added to a customer’s account
as a result of debt recovery activity, such as court
costs or solictors fees, are not recognised In
turnover They are recognised as favourable
operating costs when payment I1s receved

The Company only raises bills in the name of the
*occupier’ when 1t has ewvidence that an
unmeasured property 15 occupied but cannot
confirm the name of the occupier When the
Company identifies the occupants the bill 1s
cancelled and re-billed in the customer's name If
the Company has not idenbfied an occupant
within 6 months the bill 15 cancelled and the
property is classified as empty

(b) Tangtble fixed assets

Tangble fixed assets comprise nfrastructure
assets (mains, sewers and pumped raw water
storage reservors and sludge pipelines), plant
and equpment, land and buildings, and assets
under the course of construction

The Company capitalises the directly attnbutable
costs of procunng and constructing tangible fixed
assets These costs include employee costs and
other internal costs that are incremental to the
business due to the scale and nature of the capital
implementation programme of the Company
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropnate, only when it 15 probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured rehably Interest costs are not
capitalised

The estimated useful economic lives of fixed
assets and ther residual values are based on
management's judgement and expernience of the
type of asset These judgements are reviewed
annually and when management identifies that the
actual useful hves of a specific asset or group of
assets differ matenally from the estmates used,
the depreciation charge 1s adjusted prospectively

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or
retirement of an asset i1s determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognised in
the profit and loss account

Land and Buildings

Land and bulldings are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation Freehold land 1s not
depreciated Builldings are depreciated down to
therr residual value over 15 to 60 years on a
straight-line basis

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation Plant and equipment
consists of operational structures, operational
assets, fixtures, fittings, vehicles and computers,
and fixed and mobile plant

These assets are depreciated down to therr
residual values on a straight-hine basis as follows

Operational structures 15-100 years
Other operational assets 5 - 40 years
Fixtures and fittings S -7vyears
Vehicles 4 -5 years
Computers 3 -7 years
Fixed and mohile plant 3-40vyears

Assets under the course of construction

Assets In the course of construction represent the
directly attnbutable costs of projects that are
expected to result in a tangible fixed asset being
commissioned and capitalised at the end of the
project The balance 1s not depreciated as assets
are not considered to commence their economic
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Ives until they are commissioned (and transferred
into the appropnate classification of tangible fixed
assels)

Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise networks of below
ground systems (water and sewerage networks)
All expenditure on nfrastructure assets s
capitalised at cost The planned element incurred
in maintaining the cperating capability of the
network 1n accordance with defined service
standards 1s expensed as Infrastructure Renewals
Charge ("IRC") Included within the total
depreciation charge reccgnised in the profit and
loss account

The IRC recogmised n 2013 reflects the
Company’'s expenditure plans for infrastructure
assets for the penod 2010 to 2025 (AMPs 5 to 7)
as presented In the 2009 Final Business Plan
The level of charge 1s kept under rewview and
updated annually to reflect the current level of
infrastructure renewals expenditure

Capital contnibutions

Capital contributions received in respect of
infrastructure assets have been deducted from the
cost of fixed assets This s not in accordance with
Schedule 1 to Statutory Instrument 2008/410
made under the Companies Act 2008, which
requires fixed assets to be stated at therr
purchase price without deduction of contributions,
with the contributions being accounted for as
deferred income This departure from the
requirement of the Act i1s, in the opinion of the
directors, necessary for the financial statements to
give a true and far view because infrastructure
assets do not have a determinable finite ife  As
infrastructure assets are accounted under
renewals accounting, related capital contributions
are not recognised in the profit and loss account

The financial effect of this departure 1s disclosed
in note 10

Grants and capital contrnbutions recewed towards
the cost of non-infrastructure assets are
accounted for as deferred Income and released to
the profit and loss account over the estimated
economic ives of the assets

{c) Impairment of tangible fixed assets

Fixed asseis are assessed for imparment
whenever there 1s an indication of impairment to




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

determine whether any assets may have suffered
an impairment loss If any such indication exists,
the recoverable arnount of the asset 1s estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, If any Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of farr value
less costs to sell and value in use Value In use
represents the net present value of expected
future cash flows discounted on a pre-tax basis
using a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) 15 estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
{or cash-generating unit} 1S reduced to its
recoverable amount Impairment of non-current
assets 15 recognised in the profit and loss account
within operating costs

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
it is recognised in the profit and loss account and
the carrying amount of the asset I1s increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but not so as to exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no imparrment
loss been recognised 1N pnor years

The calculation of estimated future cash flows and
residual values 15 based on the directors’ best
estimates of future prices, output and costs and 1s
therefore subjective

(d) Stocks

Stocks other than Water Efficiency products, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value Costs comprise direct materials and, where
applicable, direct labour costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition
Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average
method Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estmated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distnibution

Stocks of Water Efficiency products, which are to
be provided to customers free of charge as par of
Thames Water's ongoing water efficiency
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measures are recorded at cost and expensed to
the profit and loss account when they are given or
sent to the customer

{e) Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of current
tax and deferred tax

Current taxation

Current taxation, including UK corporation tax, 1s
based on the taxable profit for the penod and I1s
provided at amounts expected to be pad (or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Taxable profit differs from the profit on ordinary
activities before tax as reported in the profit and
loss account because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductibte in other
years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation s recogmsed without
discounting, in respect of all tming differences
between the treatment of certain items for taxation
and accounting purposes, which have ansen but
not reversed by the balance sheet, except as
otherwise required by FRS 19 “Deferred tax”

A net deferred tax asset 1s recognised only when
it 1s regarded as recoverable, in that it s
considered more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits against which to recover
carried forward tax losses and from which the
future reversal of underlying timing differences
can be deducted

Deferred taxation 1s measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the periods in which the
timing differences are expected to reverse based
oh tax rates and laws that have heen enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited n the profit
and loss account except when it relates to items
charged or credited to equity, in which case the
deferred tax 1s also dealt with via the Statement of
total recognised gains and losses
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(f) Leased assets

Leases are classified according to the substance
of the transacton A Ilease that transfers
substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee i1s classified as a finance
lease All other leases are classified as operating
leases

Finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised in the balance
sheet at their fair value or, If lower, at the present
value of the minmum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease

The corresponding hability 1s shown as a finance
lease abligation to the lessor Leasing repayments
comprise both a capital and a finance element
The finance element 1s wntten off to the profit and
loss account so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
outstanding obligaton  Such  assets are
depreciated over the shorter of therr estimated
useful lives and the penod of the lease to the first
break clause

Operating leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit
and loss account on a straight-ine basis over the
period of the lease

(g) Pensions

The Company operates two defined benefit
pensicn schemes These schemes are closed to
new employees The Company accounts for these
schemes In accordance with FRS 17 “Retirement
Benefits”

These schemes are independently, administered
funds Actuanal valuations are cared out as
determined by the pension scheme trustees using
the projected unit credit method for both pension
schemes at intervals of not more than three years,
the rates of contnbution payable and the pension
cost being determined on the adwvice of the
actuaries, having regard to the results of these
valuations The Company believes that the
assumptions utilsed 1n recording oblhgations
under the two schemes are reasonable based on
prior experience, market conditions and the
advice of scheme actuanes However, actual
results may differ from such assumptions For
any intervening reporting pernod, the actuanes
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review the continuing approprateness of the
contribution rates

Defined benefit assets are measured at fair value
while liabilities are measured at present value

The difference between the assets and lhabilities
of the schemes are recognised as a surplus (to
the extent that the surplus 1s recoverable) or
obligation in the balance sheet, net of associated
deferred tax

The cost of providng pension benefits to
employees 1s included in the profit and loss
account within the cost of employee benefits The
expected return on scheme assets and interest on
scheme liabilities are included within other finance
expense n the profit and loss account

Actuaral gains and losses are recognised outside
the profit and loss account in retained earnings
and are presented In the Statement of total
recognised gains and losses

In addition to the defined benefit schemes, the
Company operates a Defined Contribution
Stakeholder Pension Scheme (‘DCSPS),
managed through Standard Life Assurance
Limited (*Standard Life") From 1 Apnl 2011, the
DCSPS 1s the only scheme to which new entrants
to the Company will be eligible The assets of the
DCSPS are held separately from those of the
Company and that the amounts charged to the
profit and loss account represents contributions
payable to the scheme

The Company also operates two closed defined
contribution pension schemes The Company has
no further payment obligations for these Schemes
However, defined funds for individuals are held
within these schemes

{h) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded
using the rate of exchange current at the date of
the transaction Monetary assets and lhabihties
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into sterhng using the rate of exchange current at
the balance sheet date Gains and losses arising
on retranslation are included in the profit and loss
account for the year

{n Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank
and in hand, deposits, and short-term highly hquid
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investments which are readily convertible on initial
investment into known amounts of cash at any
bme without penalty or if a matunty or penod of
natice of not more than 24 hours or one working
day has been agreed

)] Provision for doubtful debts

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates
the collectability of trade receivables and records
provisions for doubtful receivables based on
experience These provisions are based on,
amongst other things, compansons of the relative
age of accounts and consideration of actual write-
off history The actual level of recevables
collected may differ from the estimated levels of
recovery, which could impact operating results
positively or negatively

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates
the value of cancellations that will occur in the
future against turnover booked, and not to be
rebilled The provision 1s based on history of
cancellations and subsequent rebills, which could
affect operating results positively or negatively

(k) Financial habilities and equity

Financial habiibes and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into An equity
instrument 1s any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its habilities

Equity instruments i1ssued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct
ISsue costs

Borrowings

Interest beanng bank iocans and overdrafis are
recorded as the proceeds receved, net of direct
Issue costs Fiance charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redemption and direct
Issue costs, are accounted for on an amortised
cost basis in the profit and loss using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying
amount of the instrument to the extent that they
are not settled in the period in which they arise

Financial instruments and derivatives

Interest rate swap agreements and financial
futures are used to manage Interest rate
exposure Cross currency forward exchange
contracts are used to manage foreign exchange
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exposure associated with borrowings that are not
GBP denominated

Foreign currency and interest rate swaps are all in
hedging relationships and amounts payable or
receivable on these denvatives are accounted for

on an amortised cost basis Swaps are included
within the appropriate caption in note 17

The Company currently does not apply FRS 26
“Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement”, and accordingly the disclosure
requirements of FRS 29 “Financial Instruments
Disclosures” are not applicable

Therefore, the presentation requirements of FRS

25 “Financial Instruments Presentation” have
been applied
(n Research and development

Expenditure on research and development s
written off to the profit and loss account in the
year in which it 1s incurred

(m) Provisions and contingencies

The Company I1s subject to a number of claims
that are incidental to the normal conduct of its
business These relate to and include commercial
and contractual claims, which are handled and
defended in the ordinary course of business The
Company routinely assesses the likellhood of any
adverse judgments or outcomes to these matters
as well as ranges of probable and reasconably
estimated losses Reasonable estmates involve

judgments made by management after
considening nformation including notifications,
settlements, estimates performed by independent
partes and legal counsel, avallable facts,

identification of other potentially responsible
parties and therr abilty to contribute, and pror
experience

Provisions are recognised when the Company has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount can be relably
estmated Insurance provisions are recognised or
released by assessing therr adequacy using
current estimates of future cash flows under
insurance contracts Provisions are recorded in
the balance sheet at therr full value and are not
therefore discounted
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(n} Related party disclosures

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption under paragraph 3(c) from the
provisions of FRS 8 “Retated party disclosures”,
which requires the disclosure of the details of
material transactions with other wholly owned
subsidiaries within the Kemble Water Holdings
Limited Group, on the grounds that it 1s a wholly
owned subsidiary of Kemble Water Holdings
Limited, a company registered in the United
Kingdom

{o) Dividends

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only
recognised as a liability at that date to the extent
that they are appropnately authonsed and are no
longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid
dwvidends that do not meet these cntena are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

(p) Long Term Incentive Plans (“LTIP”) and
bonus

Cash based LTIP awards are accrued Iin the
financial statements for the duration of the award
The accrual 1s based on the values assessed for
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the apphicable schemes taking into account the
duration of the indivdual scheme and by
comparing the Company’s performance against
the assumptions used to award payments

Bonus payments are accrued in the year based
on assessments of performance against targets
set at the beginming of the financial year
Bonuses are paid in the following financial year
once actual performance has been measured
against the targets set

(q) Exceptional items

ltems that the directors consider one-off In nature
and are of such significance that indvidually or
combined they require disclosure to understand
the performance of the business are disclosed as
exceptional items There are no such items In
2013 (2012 see note 3)

2 Segmental analysis
The directors consider that the Company has one

class of business and this 18 conducted wholly
within the United Kingdom
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3 Operating costs

Analysis of operating costs by type of expense

Year ended  Year ended

Note 31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Staff costs excluding exceptional tem 5 1985 199 4

Exceptional item — pension curtailment gain * 26 - (40 0)

Materials and consumables 1429 15656

Other operating charges 5817 476 4

Depreciation

Owned assets (Infrastructure renewals charge) 10 1353 1295

Owned assets (non-infrastructure) 10 3126 2765

Assets held under finance leases (non-infrastructure}) 10 9.6 86
Rental under operating leases

Hire of plant and machinery 58 100

Other 63 57

Research and development 39 39

Other operating income {6 6} (7 1)

1,3900 1,219 5

Own work capitalised (staff and other costs) (147 4) (168 5)

1,2426 1,051 0

* Prior year exceptional item was a curtalment gan of £40 Om ansing from changes to certain provisions, In

respect of the Thames Water Pension Scheme

For performance purposes operating costs, operating profit and profit after tax are analysed as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Underlying operating expenses 7851 6754
Exceptional tem — pension curtallment gain - {40 0)
Total operating expenses 7851 6354
Total depreciation 457 5 41586
Total operating costs 41,2426 1,051 0
Underlying operating profit 549.3 603 9
Exceptional tem — pension curtailment gain - 400
Operating profit 5493 643 9
Underlying profit after tax 1500 216 8
After tax impact of exceptional item* - 304
Profit after tax 150.0 247 2

*The tax charge on the exceptional item in 2011/12 1s £9 8m and it had no cash flow impact
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Amounts receivable by the Company's auditor are shown below In respect of the following services to the
Company

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Fees payable to the auditor £'000 £'000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the

Company’s Annual report and financial statements 235 229
Fees payable to the Company’s audttor and its associates for

other services

Audit related assurance services 87 122
All other assurance services 49 6
Taxation compliance services 9 22
Taxation advisory services 105 3
Corporate finance services 1,384 1,881
All other non-audit services 97 264
Total aggregate remuneration 1,966 2,527

Fees for corporate finance services above include £14m (2012 £1 9m) in respect of advice on the Thames
Tideway Tunnel These costs have been capitalised as part of the design phase of the project The contract was
awarded to KPMG following a competitive tenderning process in hne with the Company's procurement processes

No other fees were payable to KPMG Audit Plc in respect of this Company in this year or the prior year

4 Profit on sale of fixed assets

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
fm £m
Net profit on disposal of fixed assets 38 39

Income from insurance claim 70
Profit on sale of fixed assets 108 39

Taxation charge attnbutable, included in the tax charge for

the year 26 16

Income from insurance claim relates to the damage caused to the Company's assets resulting from a fire at
Beddington Sewage Treatment Works The insurance clam has not been settled and 1s subject to further
negotiation
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5 Information regarding directors and employees

Aggregate directors’ emcluments

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Salary 941 1,083
Pension 98 184
Bonus 324 681
LTIPs 593 667
Other benefits 48 66
Total aggregate emoluments 2,004 2,681

Included in the table above, 1s £1,593,000 (2011/12 £2,365,000) for the executive directors for therr services to
the Company In addition, the executive directors received total remuneration of £683,000 (2011/12 £776,000)
for their services to other companies within the Group

At 31 March 2013 no benefits were accruing to any directors (31 March 2012 £2,000 for 2 directors) under
the Group's defined benefit scheme n respect of services to the Company In addition, the Company
contrbuted cash of £140,000 (2011/12 £132,000) as a pension supplement for 2 directors (2011/12 3
directors)

The Company contnbuted £50,000 into the Company's defined contribution pension scheme for 1 director
(2011/12 £74,000 for 1 director)

Highest paid director

Total emoluments, including payments and accruals under long term incentive schemes of the highest pad
director in respect of work done for the Company during the year were £993,000 (2011/12 £1,021,837) The
highest paid director 1Is a member of the Company's defined contnbution pensions scheme and the Company
made contrbutions of £35,000 to the scheme in 2012/13 (2011/12 £74,000) in relation to the director's work for
the Company In addition, emoluments of £426,000 (2012 £438,000) were paid to the highest paid director for
services to other compantes within the Group

Cetails of Long Term Incentive Plans (“LTIP") can be found within the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
51to 54
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Employee information

The average number of persons employed by the Company, including executive directors, dunng the year,
analysed by category, was as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Number Number

Support 402 323
Operations 4,279 4,228
Total employee numbers 4,681 4,551

Employment costs excluding exceptional item {see note 3, page 70) but including executive directors’
remuneration were

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Salanes and wages 167.9 166 3

Social secunty costs 16 6 158

Pension costs — defined benefit scheme 26 18.8 16 4

Pension costs — defined contrnbution scheme 26 22 14

Severance costs 49 13

Total 200 4 2012
Employment costs included within research and

development expense (1.9) {(18)

Net employment costs 3 198 5 199 4

In addition, £17 9m (2012 £S 3m) of employment costs were charged directly to caprtal projects

6 Interest payable and similar charges
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Em £m
Bank loans, overdrafts and other loans

Intercompany interest
Interest expense (328 2) (288 3)
RPI accretion on loans (80 8) {123 8)
Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs (32) (4 8)

Bank and other loans
External interest expense (20 9) 21 1)
RPI accretion on loans (509) (58 5)
Amortisation of debt 1ssue costs (19) (14)
Finance charges in respect of finance leases (59) (6 8)
Interest payable and similar charges (491 B) (504 7)
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7 Interest receivable

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m

Interest receivable
intercompany loans 47 394
Other loans 42 78
Net swaps receivable 376 343
Interest receivable 86.5 815

Amounts recervable on swaps relate to interest rates taken out to hedge rates on borrowings See note 17,
page 82

The net interest receivable on swaps 1s the aggregate effect of alt swaps held in the Company

Interest recevable cash inflow of £122 7m includes £39 4m recewved from Thames Water Utilities Holdings
Limited, which 1s not included in the adjusted interest cover ratio calculations as defined in the Business review
on page 22

8 Taxation

{a) Analysis of charge in the year

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax
Amounts payable in respect of corporation tax for the year 11 -
Adjustment in respect of prior years - {38 3)
Total current tax charge/(credit) 8(b) 11 {38 3)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences 339 43 8
Adjustments in respect of pnor years - 331
Impact on deferred tax of tax rate change to 23% (2012 24%) {41.8) (B0 7}
Deferred tax credit before pension tming differences 18 {7.9) (38)
Timing difference on pension cost charge 17 171
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge (6 2) 133
Taxation credit on profit on ordinary activities (51) (25 0)

The tax charge includes a deferred tax credit of £41 8m to reflect the impact of the reduction of the
corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 This change was substantively enacted on 3 July
2012 An additional charge of £4 3m has been taken to reserves The tax charge in 2012 reflected a deferred
tax credit of £80 7m resulting from the reduction in the corporation tax rate from 26% to 24%

The March 2013 Budget announced that the corporation tax rate will further reduce to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015
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The overall effect of the planned reduchans from 23% to 20% would be to reduce the deferred tax hability by
approximately £125m These planned reductions in corporation tax rates have not been substantially

enacted by 6 June 2013 and so are not recognised in these financial statements

(b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The current tax (credit)/charge 1s based upon UK corporation tax at 24% (2012 26%) The tax charge for
the year 1s lower (2012 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (24%), (2012 26%) The

differences are explained below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 144.9 222 2
Profit on ordinary activittes multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 24% (2012 26%) 34.8 578
Effects of
Disallowable expenditure less non taxable income 3.8 31
Capital allowances for the year in excess of depreciation
and other tming differences {33.9) {43 8)
Pension tax relief higher than pension cost in accounts {3.6) (17 1)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years - {38 3)
Current tax charge/(credit) for the year 1.1 {38 3)
9 Dividends
The application of the intenm dividends are analysed as follows
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
Em £m
External dividend distnibutions * 74.5 165 1
External interest on Kemble Water Eurobond plc debt 17.56 349
Distribution to ultimate shareholders 92.0 2000
External interest on Kemble Water Finance Lirmited debt 60.0 500
Inter-group group relief settlement payments 40.0 -
Inter-group distnbution to parent undertaking ** 39.4 24 4
Inter-group dividend to Kembte Water Limited - 51
231.4 2795

* External dividend distrbution represents the payment made by Kemble Water Holdings Limited, the

ultimate parent company from the dividend it receives indirectly from the Company

** The immediate parent undertaking, Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited (“TWUHL") received £39 4m
{2012 £24 4m) from the Company, which was used by TWUHL to settle its inter-company interest balance

with the Company
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Dividends paid by date are analysed below

Year ended Year ended
Nate 31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Dvidends paid in respect of pnor year but not recognised
as habilities in that year
11 April 2011 (2012 2 4p) per ordinary share - 244
7 June 2012 19 6p per ordinary share 201.4 -
Intenim dividends pard in respect of the current year
23 June 2011 (2012 10 2p) per ordinary share - 1051
30 September 2011 (2012 4 9p) per ordinary share - 500
29 November 2011 (2012 9 7p) per ordinary share - 1000
27 March 2013 £1 03p per aordinary share 300 -
21& 22 231.4 2795
10 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Plantand Infrastructure Assets In Total
builldings equipment assets course of
construction
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 2,591 2 4,768 1 4968 0 15147 13,8420
Additions - - - 1,008 2 1,008 2
Transfers between items 175 1 456 5 199 1 (830 7) -
Disposals {03 (22) - - (2 5)
At 31 March 2013 2,766.0 5,222.4 5,167.1 1,692.2 14,847.7
Capital contributions
At 1 April 2012 - - 663 3 - 663 3
Additions - - 390 - 390
At 31 March 2013 - - 702.3 - 702.3
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 679 2 2,5086 1,202 6 - 4,390 4
Provided dunng the year 427 2795 1353 - 457 5
Disposals (0 3) 0N - - (04)
At 31 March 2013 721.6 2,788.0 1,337.9 - 4,847.5
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 2,044.4 2,434.4 3,126 9 1,692.2 9,297.9
At 31 March 2012 1,912 0 2,259 5 3,102 1 1,614 7 8,788 3
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The net book value of land and bulldings 1s analysed as follows

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Freehold land and buildings 2,0345 1,801 7
Leasehold — over 50 years 7.3 76
Leasehold — under 50 years 26 27
2,044.4 1,912 0

Depreciation has not been charged on freehold land stated in the financial statements at cost of £155 7m
{2012 £120 3m)

Detatls of the Company's tangible fixed assets, which are held under finance leases, are

Total
£m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 and 31 March 2013 263 2
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 146 4
Provided during the year 96
At 31 March 2013 156.0
Net book value
At 31 March 2013 107.2
At 31 March 2012 116 8
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11 Fixed asset investments

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Cost of shares in subsidianes 01 01

At 31 March 2013 the Company held the allotted share capital of the following undertakings

Proportion of nominal
value of 1Issued shares

Nomunal value and
class of shares held

Name of undertaking

Activity

held
Thames Water Utilities £1 Ordinary 100% Finance Company
Finance Limited
Thames Water LMilities $1 Ordinary 100% Finance Company

Cayman Finance
Holdings Limited

Thames Water Utilities Finance Limited was incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom Thames Water
Utiies Cayman Finance Holdings Limited was incorporated and registered in the Cayman Islands and 1s

resident in the United Kingdom for tax

At 31 March 2013 Thames Water Utilities Finance Limited had net iabiliies of £110 5m (2012 liabilties £70 7m)

and incuired a loss for the year ended 31 March 2013 of £39 7m (2012 loss £27 5m)

At 31 March 2013 Thames Water Utilites Cayman Finance Holdings Limited had net assets of £1 (2012 £1) No

profit or loss had been made in the year (2012 £nil)

12 Stocks
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 84 96
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13 Debtors. amounts falling due within one year

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Trade debtors 2000 254 8
Amounts owed by group undertakings

- Interest 45 394

- Non interest 07 40 4

Other debtors 677 705

Insurance claims receivable 620 56 8

Prepayments and accrued income 197 9 186 0

5728 647 9

Prepayments and accrued income as at 31 March 2013 includes water and wastewater income not yet billed
of £161 1m (2012 £146 7m)

Amounts owed by group undentakings are comprised of
. Interest recevable of £44 5m (2012 £39 4m) owed by Thames Water Utilties Holdings Limited, the
immediate parent undertaking, which 1s included within debtors amounts falling due within one year

. All other amounts are unsecured, interest free and payable on demand

14 Debtors' amounts falling due after more than one year

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Amounts owed by group undertakings 2,0150 2,0150

Amounts owed by group undertakings are compnised of

. An unsecured loan of £2.0150m (2012 £2,0150m) owed by Thames Water Utiities Holdings
Limited, the immediate parent undertaking The directors do not anticipate any repayment of
principal within the next twelve months

Interest 1s charged at the London Inter-bank Offered rate ("LIBOR") + 0 35%

79




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15 Creditors amounts falling due within one year

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Overdraft 670 -

Obligations under finance leases 10.5 565

Derivative collateral liabilty 1.3 -

Trade creditors

- Operating 2873 2807

- Capltal 160 4 2430
Amounts owed to group undertakings

- Secured loan amounts (see below} - 417 1

- Interest 142.8 126 8

- Non interest 14.1 89

Other loans and financial instruments - 52 9

Amounts payable in respect of group relief 21 09

Other taxation and social security payable 51 46

Accruals and deferred income 2667 2690

957.3 1,460 4

Accruals and deferred income includes £77 8m (2012 £82 Om) of receipts in advance relating to amounts
recewved from customers for water and wastewater charges and amounts received in advance in respect of
operating costs in respect of 2013/14

The overdraft of £67 Om at 31 March relates to payments processed but not cleared The Company does not
typically utihise overdraft facilities in its banking arrangements
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16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Secured bank loans 1,198 7 666 9

Obligations under finance leases 102.3 130 8
Amounts owed to group undertakings

secured loan amounts (see below) 7,6347 6,9398

Other loans and financial instruments 106 9 13386

Accruals and deferred income 173 4 179 1

9,216 0 8,050 2

Amounts owed to group undertakings for secured ioans in the table below for the year ended 31 March 2013
are shown excluding external cross currency and index linked swaps

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts owed to group undertakings are
Inter-company secured loans
- Within one year - 4171
- After more than one year 7,6347 69398
7,6347 7,356 9
Non-loan amounts due within one year
- Interest 1428 126 8
- Non interest 14.1 89
7,791 6 7,492 6

Inter-company secured loans for the year ended 31 March 2013 as shown in the above table represent the
hability of the Company owed to group undertakings as detalled below and do not include the effect of
denvatives held within the Company

Secured bank loans

Each Obhgor (the companies within the Secuntisation Group) has entered into the Secunty Trust and Inter-
creditor Deed (*STID") with the Secunty Trustee pursuant to which Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited
will guarantee the obligations of each other Obligor under the finance documents and the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidianes will guarantee the obligations of each other under the finance documents, in each
case to the Secunty Trustee
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Amounts due to group undertakings in respect of non-interest amounts are unsecured, snterest free and
payable on demand Loan amounts owed to group undertakings include

£2,790 3m (2012 £2,747 2m) owed to Thames Water Utliies Finance Limited, a subsidiary undertaking,
within creditors due after more than one year

£4,844 5m (2012 £4,623 0m) owed to Thames Water Utiihes Cayman Finance Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking, of which £nil {2012 £417 1m) 1s included within creditors due within one year and £4,844 5m
(2012 £4,205 9m} within crediters due after more than one year

Details of matunty of loans falling due after more than one year are detailled in note 17

17 Financial instruments

FRS 25 requires the disclosure of the funding and treasury policy together with further details on financial
assets and habiities  Funding and treasury policies are described i the Governance section on pages 37 to
338

The financial instruments disclosures presented cover loans, overdrafts, other liabilites considered borrowings
cash and cash equivalents

Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities and assets

After taking into account the Company's interest rate and currency swaps, the interest rate nsk profile of the
Company's financial habilities and assets Is as follows

Financial habilities

Total at floating Total at Total at RPI linked Total
rates fixed rates rates book value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bank loans and overdraft
- £ Sterling 3002 1323 150 177 9505 5168 11,2657 666 8
Other loans and finance leases *
- £ Sterling 733 3160 39695 36802 38129 37346 7,8587 77308
3735 4483 3,984 5 36979 47634 42514 91214 83976

Weighted average period until maturity for

Weighted average Interest rate at which rate s fixed at fixed rate and RPI

fixed rate and RPI linked debt linked debt
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % Years Years
Bark loans and overdraft

- £ Sterling 12 20 100 129

Other loans and finance leases *
- £ Sterling 35 36 225 221
34 36 219 221

* Includes inter-company debt
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The Company's interest rate and cross currency swaps convert £nil (2012 £nil) of floating rate borrowing to
fixed rate and £nil (2012 £235 0m) of fixed rate borrowing to floating rate Cross currency swaps hedge
currency nsk on £1,256 6m {2012 £1,6846 0m) of foreign currency borrowing through conversion to Sterling
Index hnked swaps of £1,394 1m (2012 £894 1m) swapped Inter-company fixed rate debt to index linked
debt All swaps are included at their notienal amount Total accretion on the RPI linked swaps 1s £129 2m
(2012 £132 0m)

Short-term floating rate loans bear interest at rates nked to LIBOR Base rate 1s the benchmark rate for all
cash at bank

Total at floating rates Total at book value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Short term deposits 748.7 6194 748 7 6194
Cash in bank and in hand - 27 - 27
748 7 622 1 748 7 622 1

The totals in the table above are treated as available cash for covenant calculation purposes
Currency nisk

The Company 1s not exposed to any significant currency nisk after taking the effects of its cross currency
swaps into consideration

Fair values

Fair value 1s the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction
between informed and willing parties, other than in a forced or lquidation sale The table below sets out a
companson of the book and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments

Book value Fair value
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
_ £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments
Financial assets
- Short term deposits 748.7 619 4 7487 619 4
- (Overdraft)/Cash at bank and in hand - 27 - 27
Financial liabilities
- Qverdraft (67 0) - (67.0) -
- Bank loans {1,198.7) (666 9) {1,198 7) (666 9)
- Other loans and finance leases * {7,712 9) (7,544 2) (8,9357) (8,1620)
Denivative financial instruments
- Interest rate swaps - - (89 6) (93 0)
- Cross currency swaps (13 6) (54 5) {59 5) (90 3)
- Index inked swaps (129.2) (132 Q) (384.1) (279 9)
Total (8,372 7) (7,775 5) {9,9859) (8,6700)

* Includes inter-company debt
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Thames Water Utiittes Limited does ssue bonds

Other loans include bonds 1ssued by group undertakings and external providers, which are publicly traded
and loaned to Thames Water Utiities Limited Fair values for these have been calculated using the 31 March
2013 quoted pnces

Mark-to-market techniques (discounting expected cash flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates) are
employed in computing farr values for the remaining fixed rate borrowings and all dervative financial
instruments

31 March 31 March
Maturities 2013 2012
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts
- Within one year 670 -
- Between one and two years 995 -
- Between two and five years 3490 -
- After more than five years 750.2 666 9
1,2657 666 9
Other loans including inter-company
- Within one year 13 4700
- Between one and two years 1000 -
- Between two and five years 6342 7343
- After more than five years 7,007 4 6,339 1
7,742.9 7,643 4
Finance leases
- Within one year 105 56 5
- Between one and two years 457 281
- Between two and five years 56 6 802
- After more than five years - 225
112.8 187 3
Total borrowing 9,121.4 8,397 6

Loans are repayable between 2013 and 2062

Loans wholly repayable after more than five years, excluding finance leases are

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

fm £m

Bank loans 750 2 666 9
Other loans including inter-company 7,007.4 6,399 1
7,757 6 7,066 0
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Other listed secured loans repayable to Group undertakings in order of matunty include

£200m 4 90% Fixed rate bond due 2015
€500m 3 25% Fixed rate bond due 2016

£400m 7 241% Fixed rate bond due 2058 (note 1)

£200m 5 05% Fixed rate bond due 2020
£225m 6 59% Fixed rate bond due 2021
£175m 3 38% Index Iinked bond due 2021

£550m 5 38% Fixed rate bond due 2025 (note 2)

£330m 6 75% Fixed rate bond due 2028

£300m 5 75% Fixed rate bond due 2030 (note 3)

£200m 6 50% Fixed rate bond due 2032
£300m 4 37% fixed rate bond due 2034
£600m 5 13% Fixed rate bond due 2037

£50m 3 85% Index linked bond due 2040
£500m 5 5% Fixed rate bond due 2041
£50m 1 98% Index linked bond due 2042
£55m 2 09% Index linked bond due 2042
£40m 1 97% Index inked bond due 2045
£300m 4 625% Fixed rate bond due 2046
£100m 1 85% Index inked bond due 2047
£200m 1 82% Index hnked bond due 2049
£300m 1 68% Index inked bond due 2053
£300m 1 68% Index linked bond due 2055
£200m 1 77% Index linked bond due 2057
£350m 1 76% Index Iinked bond due 2062

20bn Yen 3 28% Fixed rate bond due 2038

Note 1 £400m Class A bond issued with a final matunity date of 9 Apnl 2058 with a fixed coupon of 7 241%
until @ April 2018 If at this date interest rates have nsen, the bond will be “put’ at par by investors and
redeemed by the Company Should interest rates have fallen, the bond will be called by the Company and
either re-marketed for the remaining 40-year period at the underlying PCR rate {4 572%) plus the prevailing
credit spread or the Company will settle related denvative contracts with bank counterparties and redeem the
bond at par If the Company were to account for denvative financial instruments under IFRS a net fair value
loss of £84 4 million would be recognised as at 31 March 2013 This reflects the potential future value of
cash flows relating to the remarketing of the bond

Note 2 £550m Class B bond i1ssued on a fixed coupon basis until 21 Jduly 2017, when the bond resets to
floating rate interest at LIBOR plus margin

Note 3 £300m Class B bond issued on a fixed coupon basis untit 13 September 2022, when the bond resets
to floating rate interest at LIBOR plus margin

See note's 15 and 16, pages 80 and 81 for details of secured bank loans

Loans repayable by instalments after more than five years hence are

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Finance leases - 225

The ranges of interest rates charged on outstanding loans are 0 21% 1o 8 35% (2012 0 21% 1o B 35%)

These interest rates are those contracted on the underlying borrowing before taking account of interest rate
protection There are no interest free loans

Borrowing facilities

At 31 March 2013 the Company had access to committed facilities of £2,816 4m (2012 £1,867 Om) of which
£1,201 4m (2012 £nil) had been drawn at the balance sheet date
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18 Provisions for liabilities

Deferred Insurance

tax habihties Restructuring Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m
At beginning of the year 969 1 56 8 05 262 1,0526
Utised duning the year - - (0 5) (69) (7 4)
{Credit)/charge to profit and loss
for the year (79 52 48 (27) (08)
At end of the year 961 2 620 46 16 6 1,044.4

The deferred tax liability at 31 March 2013 has been calculated based on the rate of 23% (31 March 2012
24%) substantively enacted at the balance sheet date The effect of this change in tax rates has been
reflected In the financial statements for the year, with a credit of £41 8m taken to the profit and loss account
and a charge of £4 3m taken to reserves

The March 2013 Budget announced that the rate will further reduce to 20% by 2015 in addition to the
planned reduction to 21% by 2014 previously announced in the December 2012 Autumn Statement The
overall effect of the further reductions from 23% to 20%, If these were applied to the deferred tax hability at
31 March 2013, would be to further reduce the deferred tax liabiity by approximately £125 4m

The insurance provision Is In respect of insurance claims notified A debtor in respect of these obligations 1s
included in note 13 (see page 79) representing the reimbursement value from captive and third party
Insurance companies

The restructunng provision pnncipally relates to severance costs as a result of the Company’s restructunng
and reorganisation This provision 1s expected to be utilised over the next year

Other prowvisions pnincipally relate to a number of legal claims against the Company and represents
Management's best estimate of the value of settlement and costs It 1s estmated that some claims will be
settled in more than one year

The elements of deferred tax are as follows
31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 967 3 978 4
Tax losses carned forward - (2 8)
Other timing differences (6.1) 67
961 2 969 1
Total deferred tax provision:
Included above 961.2 969 1
Net deferred tax asset recogrnised on net pension deficit 26 (57 2) (37 2)
904 0 9319

At 31 March 2013 there are no amounts of deferred tax unprowided for (2012 £nif)
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19 Called up share capital

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
29,050,000 (2012 1,029,050,000) ordinary shares of £1 21 29.0 1,028 0

each

From 5 October 2012 the Company's issued share capital of £1,029 Om was reduced to £29 Om in shares of
£1, each fully paid (2012 £1,029 Om), all of which s held by the Company's immediate parent company,

Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limited

The capital reduction increased distnbutable reserves by £1,000 Om and was in preparation for the adoption
of new UK GAAP recognising that there will be accounting and presentational adjustments made to the
financial statements New UK GAAP will require the Company to bring on to 1its balance sheet the market

value of s debt related swaps and hedges affecting the Company's reserves
conversion to new updated UK GAAP page 18

Total shareholder's funds are unaffected by this transaction

20 Share premium account

See preparation for

2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 Apnl and 31 March 100 0 100 0

Premium of 25p on 1ssue of 400,000,000 £1 ordinary shares
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21 Profit and loss account

2013 2012
£m £m
At the beginning of the year 2716 3769
Capital reduction 19 1,0000 -
Profit for the year 1500 247 2
Actuarial loss on pension scheme 26 {106 8} (94 4)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 213 214
Dividends paid 9 {231.4) {279 5)
At the end of the year 1,104 7 2716
22 Reconciliation of movements in shareholder’s funds
2013 2012
£m £m
At the beginning of the year 1,400 6 1,505 9
Profit for the year 150.0 247 2
Actuarnal loss on pension scheme 26 (106 8) (94 4)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension scheme 213 214
Dividends paid 9 {231 4) (279 5)
At the end of the year 1,233.7 1,400 6
23 Capital commitments
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided 8425 1,035 5

In addition to these commitments, the Company has long-term capital investment plans to prowvide for future
growth
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24  Contingencies

There are claims anising in the normal course of business, which are in the process of negotiation

The Company has set aside amounts considered appropnate for all legal and similar claims as per note 18
Contingent liabilities - AMP4 sewer flooding programme

The Company has responded to an information request from Ofwat 1ssued under section 203 of the Water
Industry Act 1991 concerning the properties claimed as safeguarded from internal sewer flooding by capital
schemes completed 1n 2009/10 The information requested relates to the level of evidence required to
suppont a judgment that a property 1s likely to have flooded in the past

Ofwat first indicated s concerns in June 2010 and passed the investigation to its casework team in June
2012 Since this ime, Ofwat has been considerning whether to take regulatory enforcement action in relation
to this case The principal question will be whether the Company has met its legal obligations by complying
with the relevant guidance Ofwat has indicated that it 1s unlikely to conclude its investigations until the end of
2013

If Ofwat concludes the Company has mus-reported its sewer flooding outputs, it may seek to impose
sanctions including financial penalties of up to 10% of Company turnover attributable to regulated sewerage
services Any such potential financial impact cannot yet be quantified and, as such, no provision has been
made within these accounts

Contingent habilities — £400m 7 24% Fixed rate bond due 2058

As described in Note 17, if the Company were to account for dervative financial instruments associated with
the bond under IFRS a net far value loss of £84 4 million would be recognised as at 31 March 2013,
reflecting the potential future value of cash flows relating to the remarketing of the bond i Apnl 2018 The
Company expects that it will be able to successfully remarket the bond at fair value and a cash settlement
will not be required and so no provision has been reflected to record this potential hability in these financial
statements (under UK GAAP)

25 Operating leases

At 31 March 2013 the Company was committed to making the following annual payments in respect of non-
cancellable operating leases

As at 31 March 2013 As at 31 March 2012

Land and Other Land and Qther

buildings buildings
£m £m £m £m

Leases which expire

- Within one year 0.2 1 01 -
- In the second to fifth year inclusive 04 09 06 02
- Over five years 61 - 59 12
67 20 66 14

See note 17 “Financial instruments” on page 82 for further information regarding obligations under finance
leases
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26 Pension schemes

Pension arrangements for the majonty of the Company’s employees are of the defined benefit type, funded
through two Group pension schemes, TWPS and TWMIPS (see table below for detalls of each schemes’
respective deficit or surplus), covering employees within the Thames Water Group, whose assets are held
separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds

The defined benefit arrangements were closed to new employees from 1 Apnl 2011 From this date, new
employees have been offered membership of a defined contribution scheme managed through Standard Life,
Contributions to the scheme are charged to the profit and loss account in the period to which they relate

Contnbutions to the defined contribution pension scheme In the year were £2 2m (2012 £1 4m)

The Company's defined benefit pension arrangements are of the group mult-employer scheme nature, such that
the Company's pension schemes’ assets and labilities are included with those of other companies in the
Group The Company contnbutes the vast majority of the contributions into the schemes and any consequence
of there being a surplus or a deficit in the schemes 1s felt by the Company Accordingly, the directors have
decided it 1s appropriate to recognise the net defict of the two Group pension schemes within these financial
statements

The service cost of the Company, as included in the profit and foss account, represents the net of the total
service cost of the Group schemes and the pension contributions made by the other group compantes into
the schemes in the financial period

in addition to the cost of the UK Pension arrangements, the Company operates arrangements under which
augments benefits on retirement In certain circumstances of redundancy These augmentations are funded by
way of additional employer contributions to the schemes  In the year ended 31 March 2013 payments amounted
to £0 2m (2012 £1 5m)
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The latest full actuanal valuation was undertaken as at 31 December 2010 on behalf of the pension Trustees
by AON Hewitt Limited (“Hewitt") {the independent and professionally qualfied consulting actuanes to the
schemes) This valuation has been updated at 31 March 2013 by Mercer Limited {*Mercer”), independent and
professionally qualfied consulting actuanes, using revised assumptions that are consistent with the

requirements of FRS 17 and shown n this note to the accounts

Thames Water Group has taken advice from Mercer in respect of the funding position of the Group pension

schemes

Net liability by pension schemes after deferred tax

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Thames Water Pension Scheme

Deficit in scheme {278 6} (180 0)
Deferred tax asset on deficit 641 456
Net hability of the scheme {214 5) (144 4)

Thames Water Mirror Image Pension Scheme;
Surplus in scheme 557 735
Impact of imecoverable surplus (25 8) {39 9)
Net surplus after impact of rrecoverable surplus 299 336
Deferred tax hability on surplus (6 9) {84)
Net asset of the scheme 230 252
Net pension hability (191 5) (119 2)

The Company has recognised a surplus in the TWMIPS to the extent that it may possibly be able to recover
it by paying a reduced rate of contnbutions in the future The recognisable surplus has been calculated in
accordance with FRS 17 as the present value of the current service cost projected over the future working

Iifetime of all active members of the scheme, using the assumptions adopted at 31 March 2013
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Reconciliation of funded status to balance sheet

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets 1,693 3 1,540 0
Present value of scheme liabilittes (1,916.2) (1,656 5)
Deficit in scheme {222 9) (116 5)
impact of irrecoverable sumplus (25 B) {38 9)
Liabilty recognised on the balance sheet {248.7) (156 4)

Deferred tax asset 572 372
Net pension hability (191.5) {118 2)

The assumptions used in the valuation of assets and labilities of the schemes are the same for both
schemes, see page 95, therefore the following tables are for the combined values for both schemes

Movement in the present value of scheme hahilities

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m

Opening present value of scheme habilities 1,656 5 15100

Current service cost Thames Water Utilities Limited 188 16 4
Current service cost Other Thames Water Group participating

companies 01 01

Interest cost 759 797
Contribution by scheme participants 02 g2

Curtaiiment gain on changes to scheme benefits - {40 0)
Actuanal losses on scheme habilities 2296 1537

Net benefit paid out (65 1) {65 1)
Termination pension cost 02 15

Closing present value of scheme liabilities 1,916 2 1,656 5

92




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Movement in fair value of scheme assets

31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Opening far value of scheme assets 1,540 0 14038
Expected return on scheme assets 66 0 773
Actuanal gains on scheme assets 1087 776
Contrbutions by the employer 432 448
Contributions by Other Thames Water Group participating companies 01 01
Contributions by scheme participants 02 02
Termination pension costs 0.2 15
Net benefits paid out {65 1) (65 1)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 1,693.3 1,540 0
Expense/(Income) recognised in the profit and loss account
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Current service cost 188 16 4
Exceptiona! item — pension curtailment gain - (40 0)
Interest cost 759 797
Expected return on scheme assets (66.0) {77 3)
Total expense/(income) recognised in the profit and loss account 287 {21 2)

The expense/{income) i1s recognised in the following line items in the profit and foss account

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Operating costs staff costs/(income) 18.8 (23 6)
Other finance expense 99 24
Total expense/(income) recognised In the profit and loss account 28 7 {21 2)
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Analysis of amount recognised in the Statement of total recognised gains and losses

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

Em £m

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 108.7 776

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme labiiities (229.6) (153 7)

Adjustment relating to wrecoverable surplus 14.1 (18 3)
Actuanal loss recognised 1n the Statement of total recognised gains

and losses (106 8) (94 4)

Cumutative amount of losses recognised In the Statement of total
recognised gains and losses {436 1} (329 3)

Fair value of scheme assets and return on these assets

The fair value of the assets held by the pension schemes, the long-term expected rate of return on each
class of assets and the average expected long-term rate of return obtained by weighting the individual rates
In accordance with the anticipated balance in the schemes’ investment portfolio are shown 1n the fellowing

table
2013 2012
Long-term Long-term
expected rate of expected rate of
return Value return Value
£m £m
Equities 715% 5755 711% 5330
Bonds 4 30% 1241 463% 329
Gilts 2.90%-3.15% 854.6 186-311% 774 3
Property 6 15% 998 6 11% 1033
Other assets 315% 423 3I11% 965
Wetghted average expected long-term rate
of returnitotal fair value of assets 4.6% 1,693.3 4 6% 1,540 0

The Company employs a building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return on pension plan
assets Historical markets are studied and assets with higher volatiity are assumed to generate tigher
returns consistent with widely accepted capital market principles The assumed long-term rate of return on
each asset class 1s set out within this note The overall expected rate of return on assets I1s then derived by
aggregating the expected return for each asset class over the actual asset allocation for the schemes

94




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The main financial assumptions used for FRS 17 purposes are as follows

2013 2012
Price inflation — RPI 35% 31%
Price inflation — CPI 28% 24%
CARE revaluation (CPIl max 2 5%) 25% 24%
Salary increases - TWPS nfa n/a
Salary increases - TWMIPS 4 0% 36%
Pension increases — RPI 3.5% 31%
Pension increases — CPI 28% 2 4%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4 3% 4 65%

In valuing the liabilities of the pension schemes at 31 March 2013, mortality assumptions have been made as
indicated below These mortalty assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality expenence of
members within the schemes and the assumptions also allow for future improvements to mortality rates

2013 2012
TWPS members who joined before/after 1 January 1995
Life expectancy for a male pensioner from age 60 27 27
Life expectancy for a female pensioner from age 60 29 29
Life expectancy from age 60 for a male pensioner currently aged 40 29 29
Life expectancy from age 60 for a female pensioner currently aged 40 31 31
TWMIPS
Life expectancy for a male pensioner from age 60 26 26
Life expectancy for a female pensioner from age 60 28 28
Life expectancy from age 60 for a male pensioner currently aged 40 28 28
Life expectancy from age 80 for a female pensioner currently aged 40 30 30

History of fair value of assets, present value of llabihties, deficit in scheme and experience gains and

losses:

Yearended Year ended Year ended Yearended Year ended

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Farr value of scheme assets 1,693 3 1,540 0 1,403 8 1,317 4 1,040 3
Present value of scheme labilities {1,916 2) {1.656 5) (1.510 0) {1,466 6} {1,105 4)
Deficit in schame (222 9) (116 5) (106 2) (149 2) (65 1)

95




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Experience adjustments

Yeareanded  Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Em £m £m £m £m
Experience gains/{losses) on scheme assets
Amounts 1087 776 141 2206 (250 4)
Percantage of scheme assets 6 4% 50% 10% 16 7% 24 1%
Experience losses on scheme liabilities
Amounts - (11 0) - - {44 3)
Percentage of scheme habilities - 1% - - 4 0%
Total amount recognised in the Statement of
total gains and losses
Amounts {106 8) (94 4) (2 0) {105 4) (133 0)
Percentage of present value of scheme hiabilities 56% 57% 01% 72% 12 0%

TWUL expects to contribute approximately £44 Om to the defined benefit schemes in the next financial year

27 Cash flow statement

(a) Reconcihation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Year ended Year ended

Note 31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m

Operating profit 549 3 6439
Depreciation (infrastructure renewals charge) 3 1353 1295
Depreciatien {non-infrastructure) 3 3222 286 1

Difference between pension charge and cash contnbutions {24 8) {68 1)
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 11 (13)

Decreasef(increase) in debtors and prepaid expenses 801 (36 3)
Decrease In creditors and accrued expenses 129 (14 4)
Decrease n provisions {(55) (09)
Release of deferred income (13.6) {13 8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,057.0 924 7
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(b) Reconcilhiation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Year ended Year ended

Note 31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m
Decrease in cash in the year (e {27) (0 9}
Cash inflow/{outflow) from increase in liquid resources 129 3 {156 4)
Cash inflow from movement in net debt and financing {587 1) (640 1)
Increase In net debt resutting from cash flows (460.5) (797 4)
Non-cash increase in net debt (136 7) (182 3)
Total increase in net debt (597 2) (979 7)
Opening net debt {7,775 5) (6,795 8)
Closing net debt (c) {8,372 7) (7,775 5)

The non-cash increase In net debt comprises amortisation of bond fees and the carrying value accretion by
RPI, of a number of RPI index-linked bonds and swaps This adjustment for RPI index-linked bonds and
swaps Is in accordance with FRS 4 "Capital instruments”

{c) Analysis of movement in net debt

As at Other non- As at

1 Apnl cash 31 March

2012 Cash flow movements 2013

£m £m £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 27 27 - -
Current asset investments 6194 129 3 - 748 7
622 1 126 6 7487

Overdraft - (67 0) - {67.0)
Debt due within one year (470 0) 4687 - {13)
Debt due after more than one year (7,740 3) (1,083 3) (136 7) {8,940 3)
Finance leases (187 3) 745 - (112 B)
(8,397 6) (587 1) (136 7) {9,121.4)

Total (7,775 5) {460 5) {136 7) (8,372 7)
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(d) Decrease in cash

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

£m £m
Unrestricted cash movement (71 0) {(09)
Restricted cash movement * 13 -
(69 7) {0 9)

*Included in the overdraft in note 15, page 80 and shown within the decrease in cash in the cash flow
statement, page 63, 1s a restrnicted cash receipt of £1 3m (2012 £nil) This receipt 1s currently held within
“Creditors amounts falling due within one year” as a short term loan The net effect of this transaction has a
neutral effect on the Company’s net debt

This cash receipt refates to collateral posted by denvative counter parties that have failed to meet minimum
credit rating critena assigned by Moody’s

28 Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company 1s party to a number of contractual arrangements for the purposes of its principal activities that
are not required to be included on its balance sheet The pnincipal off-balance sheet arrangements are listed
below

s Operating leases (see note 25, page 89)
+ Outsourcing contracts

In respect of outsourcing contracts, the Company has entered into various arrangements to outsource the
provision of certain back-office and operational functions with third party prowders These outsourced
arrangements include IT support, Legal Services, Supply Chain, Metering and Capital Delivery These
arrangements are on commercial terms and no associated penalty or termination clauses will have a matenal
impact ¢n the financial posttion of the Group

29 Intermediate and ultimate parent company and controlling party

Thames Water Utiities Holdings Limited, a company incorporated iIn the United Kingdom, s the immediate
parent company

Kemble Water Finance Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom, 1s an intermediate parent
company and the smallest group to consolidate these financial statements

The directors consider that Kemble Water Holdings L:mited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom,
IS the ultimate and controlling party and the largest group to consolidate these financial statements

Copies of the accounts of all of the above companies may be obtained from The Company Secretary's

Office, Thames Water, Clearwater Court, Vastern Road, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 8DB or from the
Company's website (www thameswater co uk)
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

Explanatory note

The regulatory accounts and required regulatory
iformation on pages 100 to 109 are provided to
comply with Conditton F of the Instrument of
Appointment of Thames Water Utlities Limited as
a water and sewerage undertaker under the
Water Industry Act 1991

The regulatory accounts are prepared in
accordance with the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines ("“RAG") issued by Ofwat These
guidelines were revised in February 2013 being
operative from the financial year ended 31 March
2013 These revised RAGs have been adopted in
the preparation and presentation of these
regulatory accounts

There are differences between UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice and the RAG
Where different treatments are specified under
each, the RAG takes precedence

A glossary of regulatory terms 15 shown on pages
137 to 138

The regulatory financial statements should be
read in conunction with the statutory Annual
report and financial statements ("AR&A") The
AR&A include a Business review (pages 6 to 22)
In addition, the Directors’ report {pages 23 to 26)
inctudes a statement as to the disclosure of
information to the auditor (page 26}, the dividend
policy of the Company which also applies to the
appointed business (page 23) and information in
respect of the Company's chantable donations
(page 25) In addition, the Directors' remuneration
report (pages 47 to 58) includes information
linking therr remuneration with standards of
regulatory performance

Accounting Separation - methodology

The Company has also produced a separately
published Accounting Separation methodology
statement in respect of the operating costs and
associated fixed asset book values in notes on
pages 116 to 121 This methodology statement
detaills the assumptions used in the allocation of
costs into the relevant Accounting Separation
value streams and also includes the Company’s
capitaltsatton policy

Basis of allocation
Finance data within the Company's finance

i00

system (SAP) is recorded by expenditure type
within a cost centre

Where possible, costs are recorded at the lowest
level within the cost centre hierarchy (e the
refevant process level appropriate {o the type of
cost and business value stream However, certain
costs are recorded at a higher level in the cost
centre hierarchy where they do not specifically
relate to a process or If the cost 1s a support
related cost These costs are therefore allocated
to the process level by using pre-determined rules
as defined by management, the appropriate rules
are recorded within SAP

The costs to be allocated are assessed by
management with regard to the nature and type of
cost and an appropnate rule 15 created, this
allocates costs from a sender cost centre to a
receiver cost centre The recewver cost centres are
structured into the Accounting Separation table
value streams

The rules and assessment cycles are reviewed at
least annually to ensure that they are appropriate
and valid, taking into account any business unit
reorganisation and any operational process
changes

The resulis of the allocations are reviewed by
management and revised where necessary
There 1s a clear audit tral in place of any
adjustments that are made

Changes to methodology used in 2013
Management has reviewed the basis of allocation
of general and support services costs and
allocation of power costs The change in
allocation of general and support costs was to
remove a smoothing adjustment made in previous
years Management considered that this
adjustment was no longer appropriate as the
underlying financial system (SAP) holds
information at a more granular level

In addition, management has reviewed its power
cost allocation based on a large sample of Water
Treatment Works This review has indicated that
costs associated with high Iift pumping, previously
reflected in treated Water Distnbution, should be
reported within Water Treatment
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Regulatory accounts and required regulatory information

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for regulatory information

Further to the requirements of Company law, the
directors are required to prepare accounting
statements which comply with the requirements of
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment of
the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by
Ofwat

This requires the directors to

¢ confirm that, in their opinion, the Company
has sufficient financial resources and
faciiies, management resources and
methods of planning and internal control
for the next 12 months,

¢ confirm that, in their opinion, the Company
has sufficient nghts and assets to enable
a special administrator to manage the
affarrs, business and property of the
Company,

¢ confirm that, in therr opinion, the Company
has contracts with any associate
Company with the necessary provisions
and requirements concerning the standard
of service to be supphed to ensure

complance  with the  Company's
obligatons as a water and sewerage
undertaker,

Ring fencing

In the opimion of the directors, the Company was
in comphance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition K
of the Instrument of Appointment at the end of the
financial year This relates to the avallability of
nghts and assets in the event of a special
administration order

Definiions of appointed and non-appointed
business

The appointed business compnses the regulated
activities of the Company as defined in Condition
A of its licence These are activities necessary In
order for a company to fulfill the function and
duties of a water and sewerage undertaker under
the Water Industry Act 1991
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+ report to Ofwat changes in the Company's
activihies, which may be matenal n
relation to the Company’s ability to finance
its regulated achivities,

« undertake transactions entered into by the
appointed business, with or for the benefit
of associated companies or other
businesses or activities of the appointed
business, at arm's length,

s keep proper accounting records, which
comply with Condition F and RAG & 04

These responsibiities are addiional to those
already set out in the statutory financial
statements

Disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who held office at the date of
approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so
far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditor
Is unaware and each director has taken all the
steps that they ought to have taken as a director
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's
auditor 1s aware of that information

In addition to its duties as an appointed business,
the Company also undertakes certain non-
appointed actvities, which are conducted on an
arms lengths basis These activities include third-
party discharges to STWs, property searches,
gravel sales, activihes the company performed for
the Olympic and Paralympic games and certain
other commercial activites The non-appointed
business also includes chantable donations made
on behalf of the shareholder which the customer
does not fund
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Regulatory historic profit and loss account

Year ended 31 March 2013

Year ended 31 March 2012

Non- Non-

Appointed Appointed Appointed  Appointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 1,758 9 330 1,919 1,6709 240 16949
Operating costs” (770 5) {(146) (7851) {665 8) (96) (6754)
Infrastructure renewals charge {(1353) - (135 3) (129 5) - (129 5)
Historical cost depreciation {321.2) (10) (3222) {285 1) (10) (2861)
Operating income 108 - 10.8 439 - 438
Operating profit 5427 174 560.1 634 4 134 647 8
Other expenses (99) - (9 9) (24) - (24)
Net interest payable (405 1) {02) (405 3) (423 0) (02) (4232

Profit on ordinary activities

before taxation 1277 17.2 144 9 2090 132 2222
- current 29 (4.0) {1.1) 413 {30) 383
Taxation _ Joferred 6.4 (0.2) 6.2 (12 9) (04) (133)
Profit for the year 1370 13.0 1500 2374 98 247 2
Dividends (218.4) {(13.0) (231 4) (269 7) (98) (2795)
Retained loss for the year {81.4) - (81 4) (32 3) - (32 3)

*operating costs include exceptional tems  2012/13 £nil (2011/12 £40m pension curtaliment gain)

Statement of total recognised gains and losses (historical cost
accounting) for the appointed business

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2013 - 2012

£m £m

Profit for the year 1370 2374
Actuanal loss on post-employment plans {106 8) {94 4)
Deferred tax relating to actuanal loss 21.3 214
Total recognised gains for the year 515 164 4
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Regulatory historical cost balance sheet

As at 31 March 2013

As at 31 March 2012

Non- Non-
Appointed Appointed Appointed Appointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 9,2213 68 9,228 1 8,747 7 77 8,755 4
Investmenis
- loan to group company 2,0150 2,0150 20150 - 20150
- other 01 01 01 - 01
Total fixed assets 11,236 4 68 11,2432 10,762 8 77 10,770 5
Infrastructure renewals prepayment 698 698 329 - 329
Other current assets 1,323 9 1,3299 12796 - 1,2796
Creditors amounts falling due within
one year
Borrowings (78 8) - (78 8) (526 5) - (526 5)
Other creditors (8651) (6 2} (871 3) 919 4) (73) (926 7)
Total creditors amounts falling due within (943 9) (6 2} {950 1} {1,445 9) (73) (1,4532)
one year
Net current asset / (liahilities) 4558 (62) 449 6 {133 4) (73) (140 7)
Total assets less current liabilities 11,692 2 06 11,8928 10,629 4 04 10,629 8
Creditors amounts falling due after
more than one year
Borrowings (9,042 6) - (9,042 6) (7,871 1} - (7,871 1)
Other creditors {44 6) (44 6} {49 3) - (49 3}
Total creditors amounts faling due after {9,087 2) {9,087 2) (7,920 4) - (7,920 4)
more than one year
Provisions for labilities and charges (1,371 3) {06) (1,371 9} {1,308 4} (04) {1,308 8)
Net assets employed 1,233 7 - 1,233 7 1,400 6 - 14006
Capital and reserves 1,233 7 - 1,233 7 1,400 6 - 1,400 6
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Historical cost reconciliation between statutory and regulatory accounts

2013
Statutory Regulatory Explanation
UK
GAAP RAG 3
£m £m

Profit and loss account

Operating costs (1,242 ) (785 1) The difference of £457 5m I1s due to the
reporting of historic cost depreciation
(£3222m cost) and Infrastructure
renewals charge {£135 3m) as separate
categornes in the regulatory accounts

Operating income - 108 Profit on sale of fixed assets of £10 8m
as reported above are disclosed within
operating Iincome In the regulatory
accounts

Operating profit 549 3 5601 The difference of £10 8m 1s due to the
statutory accounts profit on sale of
assets 1s shown below operating result
Ofwat accounting guidelines state that
this should be classified within
operating costs as “operating income”
for regulatory accounts

Profit on sale of fixed assets 10.8 - The difference of £10 8m i1s due to the
statutory accounts profit on sale of
assets 1s shown below operating result
Ofwat accounting guidelines state that
this  should be classified within
operating costs as ‘operating income”
for regulatory accounts

Profit before taxation 1449 1449 Profit before taxation 1s unaffected by
this re-classification
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Historical cost reconciliation between statutory and regulatory accounts

Thames Water Utilities Limited

2013
Statutory Regulatory
UK
GAAP RAG 3
£m £m

Explanat:ion

Balance sheet
Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets (net
book value)

Investments — loan to group
company

Debtors amount falling due
after more than one year

Current Assets
Infrastructure renewals

prepayment

Short-term and long-term
creditors

Deferred income - grants and

contributions

Provision for habiities and
charges

9,297 9 9,228 1

- 20150

2,015.0 -

- 698

{136.0) -

The difference of £69 8m 1s due to the
infrastructure renewals prepayment as
this 15 excluded from the fixed assets
net book value in the regulatory
accounts This 1s In line with RAG 3 07
as FRS 15 s not appied for
infrastructure renewals accounting for
regulatory accounting purposes  For
more detail see page 106

A loan to the mmediate parent
company, Thames Water Utilittes
Holdings Limited i1s classified within this
category within the regulatory accounts
but disclosed as a debtor amounts
falling due after more than one year In
the statutory accounts

As above

The difference of £69 8m refiects the
reclassification of infrastructure
renewals prepayment descnbed above

Deferred grants and contributions of
£136 Om within the statutory accounts
are analysed between creditors
amounts faling due within one year
(£7 2m) and creditors amounts falling
due after more than one year (£128 8m)
This 18 in contrast to the regulatory
accounts, which shows total deferred
grants and  contrbutions  within
provisions for habilities and charges

- (136 0) As above
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Additional information required by the licence

Basis of preparation

In accordance with Condition F of the Instrument
of Appointment, these regulatory financial
statements have been prepared to show
separately in respect of the appointed business,
non-appointed business and total business, a
profit and loss account and balance sheet
prepared on a histoncal cost basis

In accordance with the requirements of FRS 18,
the directors review the Company's accounting
policies to ensure that they remain the most
appropriate to its particular circumstances for the
purpose of giving a true and farr view

The financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with the historical cost convention
and, except for the classification of profit on the
sale of fixed assets as explaned In note (a)
below, the treatment of infrastructure renewals
expenditure as explained in note (b) below and
the treatment of certain capital contnbutions as
explained in note (¢) below, have been prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 The
departures from apphcable UK Accounting
Standards are necessary to comply with
regulatory reporting requirements laid down by
Ofwat

Accounting policies

The same accounting policies as those used for the
year ended 31 March 2012 have been applied in
these financial statements

(a) Profit on sale of fixed assets

Profit and loss on sale of fixed assets has been
included within operating profit, as operating
income, In accordance with RAG 3 This
represents a departure from FRS 3 as adopted in
the Company's 31 March 2013 statutory financial
statements in which profit and loss on sale of fixed
assets are shown after operating profit

(b}

Infrastructure renewals expenditure ("IRE") has
been accounted for i accordance with RAG 3 07
Accordingly, IRE net of Infrastructure Renewals
Charge {"IRC") has been included within debtors

Infrastructure renewats expenditure

The Company's statutory financial statements
disclose IRE net of IRC In accordance with FRS
15 “Tangbte Fixed Assets” which requires this
ameunt to be included within fixed assets Within
these regulatory historic cost financial statements,
the Company in accordance with RAG 3 067
reports IRE net of IRC within debtors in the
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regulatory historic cost financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013

The reconciliation from the tangible fixed assets
shown in the statutory financial statements to the
regulatory histoncal cost financial statements 1s
shown on page 109

{c) Capital contnbutions

Capital contnbutions received In respect of
infrastructure assets have been deducted from the
cost of fixed assets This 1s not In accordance
with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 2008,
which requires fixed assets to be stated at therr
purchase price without deduction of contributions,
with the latter accounted for as deferred income
This departure from the requirement of the Act 1s,
in the opinien of the directors, necessary for the
financial statements to give a true and fair view
because mnfrastructure assets do not have a
determinable finte hife  Accordingly, related
capital contnbutions would not be recognised In
the profit and loss account

{d}

All direct costs are allocated immediately to the
activity to which they relate Indirect costs and
overheads are apportioned on an appropnate
basis to reflect the incidence of such costs
Indirect costs include administrative expenses and
the provision of common services

Allocation of costs

Direct costs attnbutable to the prowvision of
services other than the Appointed Business are
separately allocated and identfied as “non-
Appointed” Indirect costs, relatng to non-
appointed activities, are recovered as a fixed
percentage of direct costs based upon the
analysis of operating costs

(e)

Turnover represents the far value of the income
receivable from the regulated activities in the
ordinary course of business for water and
sewerage services provided and 1s recognised in
accordance with FRS 5 *Reporting the Substance
of Transactions” Turnover I1s recognised
excluding value added tax and 15 at the time of
delivery of the service Should the Company
consider that the critena for revenue recognition
are not met at the tme of a transaction,
recognition of the associated turnover would be
deferred untl such tme as the cntena have
subsequently been met No adjustment 1s made
to turnover for estimated bad debt charges
These are charged to operating expenses

Revenue recogntition
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For metered customers, turnover includes an
estimate of the sales value of water supphed and
waste water charges to customers between the
date of the last meter reading and the period end,
exclusive of value added tax The estimated
usage 15 based upon histoncal data, judgement
and assumptions, actual results could differ from
these estmates, which would result in turnover
being adjusted in the penod for which the revision
to the estimates 1s determined The amounts
recognised in turnover, but unbilled at the balance
sheet date, are recorded as a prepayment

Where an invoice has been raised or payment
made but the service has not been provided in the
year this will be treated as a payment in advance
This will not be recognised within the current
year's turnover but will instead be recognised
within creditors

When a new property 1S connected to the
Company's networks, an estimate s made of the
sales value of water suppled and waste water
charges to customers between the date of
connecticn and the penod end

For customers who do not have a meter, the
amount billed 15 dependent upon the rateable
value of the property, as assessed by an
independent rating officer The amount billed 1s
apportioned n turnover over the period to which
the bill relates

Additional charges added to a customer’s account
as a result of debt recovery actvity, such as court
costs or solictors fees, are not recognised In
turnover They are recognised as favorable
operating costs when payment 1s received There
Is no difference between the revenue recognition
policies in the statutory financial statements and in
these regulatory accounts

Charging policy

Water and sewerage charges fall into the
following three categones

1) charges which are payable n full

2) charges which are payable in part

3) not chargeable (void properties)

The circumstances in which each of the above
apples are set out below All of the charges
covered in parts 1 and 2 are included mn turnover
1) Charges payable in full

Charges are payable in full in the following
circumstances

a) Occupied and furnished

Water (and sewerage) charges are payable in full
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from the date of connecton or change of
customer on all properties which are recorded as
occupied and furmished

b) Unoccupied and furnished

Water (and sewerage) charges are payable in full

on unoccupied, furnished premises These include

properties

o left with bedding, a desk or other furniture,

¢ used for multiple cccupation with shared
facilities,

e used as holiday, student, hostel or other
accommodation, and

e used for short-term occupation or letting
where the occupation or terms of tenancy 15
less than 6 months

Exceptions to this, where water (and sewerage)
charges are not payable, include where the
customer 1S

« n acare home,

in long-term hespitalsation,

N prison,

overseas long-term, or

in the event of the death of the customer

¢} Unoccupled and unfurnished

Water (and sewerage) charges are payable n full
on unoccupied, unfurnished premises where
water 1s being consumed This includes
e« premises where renovation, redecoration or
bullding work I1s being undertaken,
premises being used as storage,
premises not nomally regarded as being
occupled such as cattle troughs and car
parks, and
+ non-household agncultural properties

2) Charges payable in part

The following charges only are payable in certain

circumstances

a) metered standing charges - payable on
unoccupled, metered properties which are shill
connected,

b) surface water charge - payable on
unmeasured properties which are temporanly
disconnected,

¢) sewerage unmeasured tanff - payable on
unmeasured, occupied properties where the
water supply i1s disconnected but sewerage 1s
stili provided,

d) surface water and highway drainage - payable
on furmished properttes where the water
supply 15 disconnected

3} Not chargeable

Properties which are unoccupied, unfurnished and




Thames Water Utilities Limited

disconnected are not chargeable for water and
sewerage therefore no billing s raised and no
turnover recognised in respect of these properties

Uncccupied properties pohicy

The Company only raises bills in the name of the
“occupter” when it has ewvidence that an
unmeasured property 1s occupied but cannot
confirm the name of the occupier When the
Company identfies the occupants the bill I1s
cancelled and re-billed in the customer's name  If
the Company has not identified an occupant
within 8 months the bill 15 cancelled and the
property 1s classified as empty

The Company has a process for dealing for empty
properties When a property 1s classified as
empty, a defined process 15 followed to verfy
when the property becomes occupied andfor
obtain the name of the customer in order to inthiate
biling The empty property process comprises a
number of steps which include using externa! and
internal Information for desk-top research to
confirm the property status {occupied/empty) and
where possible identfy the occupier name
Where this s unavailable the company also
undertakes physical visits to a property to confirm
whether the property 15 empty or cccupied, and If
possible confirm the name of the occupier If the
occupier name 15 not obtained at point of physical
visit the property will remain classified as empty
and a subsequent review I1s re-started after 1 to 6
months  If these steps confirm that a property
appears to be empty then the supply may be
turned off The property will only cease to be
classified as empty when a named customer Is
dentfied and billed The Company does not
recognise income In respect of empty properties
If the Company has turned off the supply of water
at the mains to a property at a customer’s request
then water supply charges are not payable A
customer may request the supply to be turned off
in Instances such as the property 15 to be
demolished or where a house previously
converted into flats (and additional supplies made)
Is to be converted back into a house

New properties

All new properties are metered Charges accrue
from the date at which the meter 1s installed The
developer s billed between the date of connection
and first occupancy and this I1s recognised as
turnover

If the developer 1s no longer responsible for the
property and no new occupier has been identified
the property management process referred to
above 1s followed to identify the new occupier
Until the new occupier has been identified the
propenty is treated as unoccupied and 1s not billed
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Provision for bad debt

Information regarding the Company's policy for
providing for bad and doubtful debts can be found
within Note 1, Pnncipal accounting policies on
page 68 of the statutory financial statements
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Reconciliation of tangible fixed assets shown in the statutory financial statements

and their regulatory financial equivalents:

Infra-
Other structure
assets assets Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2013 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15} 9,6806 5167 1 148477
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in previous years - (1,236 4) (1,236 4)
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year - {172 2} (172 2)
Disposals in prior years - 09 08
Cost at 31 March 2013 per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) 9,680 6 3,759 4 13,440 0
Capital contnbutions
Contnbutions at 31 March 2013 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) - 7023 702 3
Contnbutions at 31 March 2013 as per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) - 702 3 7023
Depreciation
At 31 March 2013 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) 3,509 6 1,337 9 4 847 5
Infrastructure renewals charge Iin previous years - (1,203 5} {1,203 5)
Infrastructure renewals charge in the year - {135 3) (135 3}
Disposals in prior years - 09 09
Depreciation at 31 March 2013 per requlatory accounts (RAG 3) 3,5096 - 3,509 6
Net bock value
At 31 March 2013 as per statutory accounts (FRS 15) 6,171 0 31269 9,297 9
Adjustment for infrastructure renewals accounting (see below) - (69 8) {69 8)
At 31 March 2013 per regulatory accounts (RAG 3) 6,171 0 3,057 1 9,228 1
Adjustment for infrastructure renewals accounting
{nfrastructure
assets
£m
RAG 3 net infrastructure renewals reclassification
Infrastructure renewals prepayment at 31 March 2012 329
Infrastructure renewals expenditure capitalised in the year 1722
Infrastructure renewals charge in the year (135 3)
Infrastructure renewals prepayment at 31 March 2013 698
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Regulatory current cost financia! statements

Introductory note

The Current cost information within pages 112 to 123 1s provided in accordance with RAG 3 07 (issued
February 2013), which replaces RAG 306 There are certain departures from the information previously
required under RAG 3 06 and these are listed below

The following financial statements are no longer required

current cost balance sheet

turnover analysis

movement in current cost reserve

net debt analysis

net cash flow from operating activities

reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt for the appointed business

The format of the following financial statements has changed

format of the current cost profit and loss account has been amended to mclude detalled tumover
analysis previously provided as a separate note to the accounts

format of the current cost statement of cash flows has been amended to include analysis of net cash
flow from operating activities previously provided as a separate note

the format of the Operating costs and associated fixed asset book values and the Current cost analysis
of fixed assets by asset type have been amended The Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset
type statements are now stand alone statements and are not linked to any pnmary statement

There are two new requirements to be published

[ ]

an analysis of capital expenditure, grants and land

a non-financial Properties analysis
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Regulatory current cost profit and loss account for the appointed
business

Year anded 31 March 2013 Year ended 31 March 2012
Water Sewerage Total Water Sewerage Total
Note
£m £m

Turnover

- household 480 1 4778 957 9 468 7 448 4 917 1
Unmeasured 1 n-household 72 6§ 137 56 50 16
Measured - household 1830 2311 4141 1741 2051 3792

- non-household 156 6 127 4 2840 157 5 1175 2750
Trade effluent - 68 68 - 66 66
Bulk supplies / inter company payments 30 - 30 30 - 30
Other third party senvices (incl non-
potable water) 22 10 32 27 57 84
Other sources 392 a7 o 76 2 388 312 700
Total turnover 8713 8876 1,758 9 8514 8195 16709
Current cost operating costs - retail 2 (106 2) (1112) (217 4} (95 6) (74 7) (170 3)
Current cost operating costs - wholesale 2 (527 4) (5873) (1,114 7) {490 9) (516 3) (1,007 2)
Cperating incorne* 47 48 95 225 218 44 3
Working capital adjustment 52 53 105 102 99 201
Current cost operating profit 2476 199 2 446 8 2976 260 2 557 8
Net interest * - {4150)| | . (425 4)
Financing adjustment L}m !'U..ml‘ 508 |2t ““,‘."“Ea‘n’"“i e 410
Current cost profit before taxation 826 173 4
Net revanue movement out of tariff 06 - 06 {(16) (0 4) 20

basket

* Operating income includes exceptional tems 2012/13 £ml (2011/42 £40m pension curtaiment gain)
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Regulatory current cost cash flow statement — Appointed business only

Yearended Yearended
31 March 31 March

2013 2012
£m £m
Current cost operating profit 44568 557 8
Working capital adjustment (105} (20 1)
Movement in working capital 501 101
Current cost deprectation 429.0 3755
Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets (95) (4 3)
Current cost exceptional tem - (40 0)
Infrastructure renewals charge 1353 1295
Difference between pension charge and cash contnbution (24 8) (68 1)
Other non-cash tems (Including movement in provisions) 9.8 (27 1)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,0262 9133
Returns on investments and servicing of finance (260 9) (254 7)
Taxation received 40 830
Capital expenditure and financial iInvestment
Gross cost of purchased fixed assets (903.4) {993 O)
Receipt of grants and contnbuttons 514 44 3
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (1722) {179 4)
Disposal of fixed assets 128 88
Movement on long term group loans to group companies - (150 0)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,011.4) (1,269 3)
Equity dvidends paid (218 4) (269 7)
Net cash (inflow)/outflow from management of quid resources {129.3) 156 4
Net cash outflow before financing {589.8) (641 0)
Net cash inflow from financing 520.1 640 1
Decrease in cash {697) {0 9)

14




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

1 Current cost accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with guidance 1ssued by the Water
Services Regulation Authority for modified real term
financial statements suitable for regulation in the
water industry They measure profitability on the
basis of real financial captal maintenance, Iin the
context of which assets are valued at ther current
cost value to the business

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicable RAG  In respect of cost
allocations, the Company has continued to allocate
costs by cost centre as in previcus years rather
than on an actwity based method, which 1s the
preferred system under RAG 3 07

The pnncipal current cost accounting policies used
are the same as those adopted in the regulatory
histonical cost financial statements, except as set
out below

Accounting policies

The same accounting policies used for the year
ended 31 March 2012 have been applied in these
financial statements

(a) Valuation bases for determining the
current cost of fixed assets

)] Tangible fixed assets

The assets have been valued in accordance with
RAG 105, on an MEA basis Depreciation 1s
charged over the estimated remaining economic life
of the asset Infrastructure assets are not
depreciated

Addtions dunng the year are taken at their historical
cost values Disposals are stated at the value of
the replacement assets

. Land and buildings

Non-specialised operational properties are valued
on the basis of estimated open market value for
existing use at 31 March 1991, indexed since that
date by the movement in the RPI, except for certain
properties which have been valued at 31 March
1995 by professionally qualfied employees of the
Company

Specialised operational properties acquired since
31 March 1990 are valued at the lower of
depreciated replacement cost and recoverable
amount, restated annually, between penodic
reviews of replacement costs, by adjustng for

L1535

inflation as measured by changes in the RPI
. Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, mpounding and pumped raw water
storage reservorrs, and sludge pipelines are stated
at therr MEA value, in the manner descnbed above
Due to the nature of these assets, the MEA value is
calculated based on the length of sewer or pipe, or
the capacity of the asset

Following the repeal of Section 24 of the Public
Health Act 1936 by the Water Act 1989, the
Company assumed responsibility for the
maintenance and operation of a significant iength of
additional sewers The Company has estimated the
length of these pipes in order to include therr asset
values In these accounts The value i1s £6,732m
{2012 £6,480m) based upon a pipe length of
19,000km (2012 19,000km) Adjustments may be
required to those estimates in future years as more
accurate information becomes available

. Specialised/non-specialised assets

Speciallsed operational assets include those
assets, used routinely in operating the business,
which are directly attnbutable to water supply or
sewerage services

Non-specialised assets are those assets used
routinely within the business, which cannot be
directly attnbuted to either part of the business

. Surplus land

Surplus land 1s valued at recoverable amounts less,
where appropnate, that part of any proceeds to be
passed on to customers under Condition B of the
Licence

(ni) Capital contributions

All third party capital contnbutions received since 31
March 1890 are camed forward as deferred income
to the extent that any balance has not been credited
to revenue, or deducted from net operating assets
in the case of infrastructure assets The balance
cammed forward 1s restated in accordance with the
change in the RPI for the year

(b) Real finance maintenance
adjustments

capital

The following adjustments are made to histoncal
cost profit in order to amve at proft after the
maintenance of financial capital in real terms




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

\]] Depreciation adjustment - this 15 the
difference between depreciation based on the
current cost value of assets i these financial
statements and depreciation charged in armving at
histoncal cost profit

{1i} Working capital adjustment - this 1s
calculated by applying the change in the RPI over
the year to the working capital of the Company at
the beginning of the year

() Disposal of fixed assets adjustment -
this 1s the difference between the net book values of
assets disposed realised assets in the current cost
financial statements and ther histoncal cost
equivalent values as shown in the histoncal cost
financial statements

(v} Fmancing adjustment - this i1s calculated
by applying the change in the RPI over the year to
the opeming balance of net finance, which
compnses all monetary assets and habilites in the
balance sheet apart from those included in working
capital, but excluding index rate linked debt and the
deferred tax provision

{c) Operating costs

In note 2, direct costs incurred with associated
companies are less than 20% of the total operating
costs of the business before interest and tax
Therefore the costs have been allocated across the
appropriate headings in accordance with RAG 3 07
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

2 Operating costs and associated fixed asset book values for year ended 31 March 2013
2a Water Services
Raw water Treated
Resources distribution Treatment distribution Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 85 31 280 68 464
Service charges 185 - - - 185
Other operating expenditure 109 61 403 1246 1819
Local authority rates 17 20 31 279 347
Total operating expenditure
excluding third party services 396 112 714 1593 2815
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 85 - - 693 778
Current cost depreciation 156 34 98 5 505 1680
Amortisation of deferred credits {0 1) {0 1) {0 3) (12) (1.7)
Total capital maintenance
excluding third party services 240 33 98.2 1186 2441
Third party services
Operating expenditure 03 - 10 05 1.8
Total operating costs 639 14 5 170 6 2784 5274
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

2b Sewerage Services
Sewerage  Sewerage Sludge Sludge
£m collection  treatment treatment, disposal  Total
Operating expenditure
Power 101 350 60 - 511
Income treated as negative expenditure - (38) 33 - (71)
Service charges 24 32 - - 56
Other operating expenditure 90 3 748 253 227 2131
Local authonity rates - 288 100 14 402
Total operating expenditure excluding
third party services 1028 1380 38.0 241 3029
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 575 - - - 575
Current cost depreciation 485 1425 382 22 2314
Amortisation of deferred crediis (7 5) (0 6) (0 1) - (8.2)
Total capital maintenance excluding
third party services 98.5 141.9 381 22 2807
Third party services
Operating expenditure 10 17 03 07 37
Total operating costs 202.3 281.6 76.4 270 5873
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Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Thames Water Utilities Limited

2c Retail Services
Non-
Household household Total
£m £m £m
Operating expenditure - direct costs
Customer services 358 48 40 6
Debt management 186 19 205
Doubtful debts 823 114 937
Meter reading 50 19 69
Support for trade effluent compliance - 10 10
Services to developers - 18 18
Other operating expenditure 175 54 22,9
Local authority rates 03 01 04
Total operating expenditure 1595 28.3 1878
Capital maintenance
Current cost depreciation 251 45 296
Total capital maintenance 251 45 296
Total operating caosts 184 6 328 2174
Debt written off 713 56 76 9
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type

Water Services current cost fixed assets

Treated
Raw Water Water
Resources Distribution Treatment Distribution Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Non-infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 3938 58 4 27687 16175 4,8384
AMP Adjustment 28 02 167 98 293
RPI adjustment 131 19 914 534 159 8
Disposals (30) - ©17) (582) {122.9)
Additions 53 12 842 496 1403
At 31 March 2013 411.8 617 2,899 3 1,6721 5,044.9
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 2158 340 14889 7141 24528
AMP Adjustment 14 02 104 52 17 2
RPI adjustment 71 11 49 2 236 810
Disposals 30 - (617) {(581) (1228)
Charge for year 156 34 985 505 168 0
At 31 March 2013 236 9 387 1,685 3 735.3 25962
Net book amount at 31 March
2013 174 9 230 1,314 0 9368 24487
Net book amount at 1 Apnl 2012 1780 24 4 1,279 8 9034 2,3856
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 534 3 1,216 6 02 10,5177 12,268.8
AMP Adjustment 37 55 69 3 785
RPi adjustment 176 401 - 347 3 405.0
Disposals - - - (43 4) (43 4)
Additions 13 - - 280 29.3
At 31 March 2013 556.9 1,262 2 02 10,918.9 12,738.2

Note The disposal of £43 4m (2012 £48 6m) of infrastructure assets within Treated water distnbution, shown
above, relates to the MEA value of the length of main abandoned as a result of the Victonan mains

replacement programme
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Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Sewerage Services current cost fixed assets

Sewage

Sewage

Sludge

Sludge

collection treatment treatment disposal Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 2194 9 5617 3 9718 1023 8,886.3
AMP adjustment 136 310 89 08 54.3
Reclassification adjustment (17 6) - - - (17 6)
RPI adjustment 719 1853 322 34 2928
Disposals (217) {89 0) 257) (02 (1366)
Additions 776 2589 925 32 4322
At 31 March 2013 23187 6,003 5 1,079 7 1095 95114
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 1,259 1 3144 4 444 4 231 48710
AMP Adjustment 86 208 48 04 346
RPI adjustment 416 103 8 147 08 1609
Disposals 217) (857) (257) (02) (1333)
Charge for year 485 1425 382 22 2314
At 31 March 2013 1,336.1 3,325.8 476 4 26.3 5,1646
Net book amount at 31 March 2013 982 6 26777 6033 83.2 4,346.8
Net book amount at 1 April 2012 9358 24729 527 4 792 40153
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apni 2012 75,510 1 221 29 - 75,5351
AMP adjustment 3784 - 01 - 3785
Reclassification adjustment 176 - - - 176
RPI adjustment 2,490 3 07 01 - 24911
Additions 186 0 - - - 196 0
At 31 March 2013 78,592.4 228 31 - 78,6183
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Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Retall current cost fixed assets

Household | e:g:‘c; Total
£m £m £m

Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2012 3096 63 4 3730
AMP Adjustment 553 50 60.3
RPI adjustment 120 22 142
Disposals (6 0) (12) (72)
Additions 316 65 381
At 31 March 2013 402 5 759 478 4
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2012 2091 42 8 2519
AMP Adjustment 335 31 366
RPI adjustment 80 15 95
Disposals (6 0) (12) (7 2)
Charge for year 251 45 296
At 31 March 2013 2697 507 3204
Net book amount at 31 March 2013 1328 25.2 1580
Net book amount at 31 March 2012 100 5 206 1211
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Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Analysis of capital expenditure, grants and land

Year ended 31 March 2013 Year ended 31 March 2012
£m £m
Grants & Grants &
Gross contributions Net Gross contnbutions Net
Capita! expenditure - water
Base
Infrastructure Renewals Expenditure 1137 147 990 1499 153 1346
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 1383 23 1360 1825 27 149 8
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 294 194 100 249 120 129
Non-infrastructure enhancements 400 - 400 439 - 439
Total capital expenditure - water 3214 36 4 2850 3712 300 3412
Grants and contributions - water
Infrastructure charge recerpts - new L . o
connections en e 93 R BS I®3"v ¥
LA = Fa s TTFIY. S w o VIR %
Total grants and contributions - water e e 93 : 85 -
Capital expenditure - sewerage
Base
Infrastructure Renewals Expenditure 99 1886 733 677 230 447
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNJ) 1514 37 1477 1657 44 1613
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 867 - 867 726 - 726
Non-infrastructure enhancements 2809 - 2809 3994 - 309 4
Large projocts capex
Infrastructure enhancements 109 2 - 109 2 574 - 57 4
Total capilal expenditure - sewerage 7201 223 697 8 7628 27 4 7354

Grants and contributions - sewerage
Infrastructure charge receipts - new

connechons i 103 i

Total grants and contributions - sewerage { N ._:dg 103 | > ] 118 |, e,

Tota! capital expenditure 1,041 5 783 963 2 11340 775 1,056 5
- ™ ]

Land sales - Proceeds from dispasals of iy g - ) l e T

protected land iﬁ‘f N 64| _ . L 67 (X
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Notes to the regulatory current cost financial statements

Current cost working capital

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2013 2012
£m £m
Stocks 8.4 96
Trade debtors
- Measured household 65.1 770
- Unmeasured household 88.4 1152
- Measured non-household 333 399
- Unmeasured non-household 14 17
- Other 11.8 210
Measured income accrual 161.1 146 7
Prepayments and other debtors 36.7 393
Trade creditors (287.3) (280 7)
Deferred income — customer advance receipts (17.8) (87 8)
Capital creditors (160.4) (243 0)
Accruals and other creditors {187.9) {178 6)
Total working capital (307.2) (339 7)
Total revenue outstanding
- household 2985 3032
- non-household 67.5 65 5
Analysis of net debt, gearing and interest costs
Fixed rate  Floating rate Index linked Total
£m £m £m
£m
Borrowings (3,984 5) (306 5) (4,763 4) {9,054 4)
Overdraft {67.0)
Short term deposits 7487
Net debt (8,3727)
Regulatory capital value 10,897.0
Gearing 76.8%
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost (205 4) (18 8) (72 6) {296 8)
Full year equivalent cash interest payment (208 3) (19 5) (727) {300 5)
Indicative interest rates
Indicative weighted average nominal
interest rate 15% 3.3%
Indicative weighted average cash interest 15% 3.3%
rate
Weighted average years to maturity 187 74 275 22.9
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

Property analysis

Year ended 31 March
2013

Year ended 31 March
2012

Number of properties ('000s)
Households billed

Water Sewerage

33639 5,184 1

Water Sewerage

3,347 1 5,166 0

Nen-households billed 2141 297 6 2149 2903
Household voids 659 1135 600 108 5
Non-household voids 229 331 236 336
Properties served by new appointee in supply area

as at 1 Apnl 2009 - - - -
Per capita consumption (excluding supply pipe

leakage) V/h/d*

Unmeasured household 164 1 . 169 1 }
Measured household 131.9 - 1386 -
Volume (Mt/d)**

Bulk supply export 95.2 - g5 4 -
Bulk supply input 0.4 1.0 04 06
Distnbution input 2,526 1 - 255190 -

"litres per household per day (“ifh/d")
** Megalitres per day {“MI/d")
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

RAG 5 intra-group trade

Dunng the year there were no contracts in excess of 0 5% (£8 8m)} of the Company's turnover with any
subsidiary of the Thames Water group of companies

The Company voluntanly discloses all transactions with associated companies of Kemble Water Holdings
Limted and transactions with companies whereby certain directors of the company have interests in the
companies listed

Associated company

Turnover of Terms of Value of turnover
associate in the  supply received
Service Company year (£'000) (£'000)
Property Thames Water Property
management Services Limited 1,113 Third party 745
Ste sales and Kennet Properties Limited
rents 10,378 Third party 2,580
3,325
Directors’ interest
Value of cost
Terms of incurred
Service Company supply {£'000)
Macquane capital funds (Europe)
Advisory fees Limited Agreed cost 3,160
Subscription fees Water UK Agreed cost 545
Rent of parking spaces National Car Parks At cost 176
Maps Cranfield university Third party 179
4,060

Dividends paid to associated undertakings

Dunng the year, the Company paid intenm dividends totalling £231 4m (2012 £279 5m) to Thames Water
Utiities Holdings Limited  Full disclosure of these dividends are provided in note 9 on pages 75 to 76 of the
statutory section of these financial statements

Transfer of assets by or to the appointee

There was no transfer of assets or liabiliies by or to the Company In excess of the matenality imit (2012

£nil)
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Thames Water Utilities Limited
Borrowings
All borrowings from the Company’s wholly owned subsidianes are as follows for the year ended 31 March
2013
Amount Total book value *
Instrument borrowed
Thames Water Utilities Cayman Limited
$156m 3 month US$ LIBOR + 0 95% floating rate bond due 103 1 1031
2015
€500m 3 25% Fixed rate bond due 2018 422 4 422 4
£400m 7 24% Fixed rate bond due 2058 4000 398 8
$150m USPP Fixed rate bond due 2019 99 1 97 3
€113m 2 30% CPI index linked bond due 2022 955 985
$150m USPP Fixed rate bond due 2022 99 1 99 1
$200m USPP Fixed rate bond due 2024 1322 1322
£6550m 5 38% Fixed rate bond due 2025 5500 546 7
$250m USPP Fixed rate bond due 2027 165 2 1652
£300m 5 75% Fixed rate bond due 2030 3000 296 9
20bn Yen 3 28% Fixed rate bond due 2038 1399 1399
£50m 3 85% !Index inked bond due 2040 500 567
£500m 5 5% Fixed rate bond due 2041 5000 489 2
| £50m 1 98% Index inked bond due 2042 500 594
£55m 2 09% Index linked bond due 2042 550 632
£40m 1 97% Index inked bond due 2045 400 439
! £100m 1 85% Index linked boand due 2047 1000 1188
| £200m 1 82% Index inked bond due 2049 2000 2372
£200m 1 77% Index linked bond due 2057 2000 2372
£350m 1 76% Index hnked bond due 2062 3500 4150
£300m 4 375% Fixed rate bond due 2034 3000 294 8
£300m 4 625% fixed rate bond due 2046 3000 2828
Total 46515 4,808.3
Thames Water Finance Limited
£200m 4 90% Fixed rate bond due 2015 2000 2000
£200m 5 05% Fixed rate bond due 2020 2000 2000
£175m 3 38% Index inked bond due 2021 1750 2434
£225m 6 59% Fixed rate bond due 2021 2250 2250
£330m 6 75% Fixed rate bond due 2028 3300 3279
£200m 6 50% Fixed rate bond due 2032 2000 198 1
£600m 5 13% Fixed rate bond due 2037 6000 596 6
£300m 1 68% Index linked bond due 2053 3000 3760
£300m 1 68% Index inked bond due 2055 3000 376 0
Total 2,530.0 2,743 0
Grand total 71815 7,551 3
* Total book value includes interest accretion of index linked bonds and unamortized bond fees
See page 84 for analysis of the above amounts owed to group undertakings within one year and after more
than one year
| To the best of the directors’ knowledge, all appropniate transactions with associated compantes have been
i disclosed
TWUCL and TWUFL lend the proceeds of external borrowings on to the Company, net of denvatives of £64 3m
Under these arrangements the Company owes TWUCL £4,808 3m and TWUFL £2,743 Om
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Thames Water Utilities Limited

RAG 5 Directors’ interests information

Listed below are details of directorships held by Thames Water Utilities Limited directors at 31 March 2013 in
associated companies that have traded with the regulated business dunng the year

Directorships held in Associated Companies

The following directors held directorships in Thames Water Limited and Thames Water Utilities Holdings Limried

Director Appointment Resignation
_Sir Peter Mason KBE — Chairman
|_E Beckley
| R Blomfield-Smith 29 November 2012
| C R Deacon
| S R Eaves
|G | W Parsons _
| D Rees 29 October 2012 _ 2 January 2013
K Roseke 2 January 2013 24 May 2013
| D J Shah OBE
| Y Shi 28 September 2012
| M S W Stanley 7 September 2012
| R Verrion 29 Oclober 2012
| L Webb
D Xu 29 October 2012

The folliowing directors have formally appointed alternate directors to represent them when they are
unavailable These alternate directors also held alternate directorships in Thames Water Limited and Thames
Water Utilies Holdings Limited

Director Alternate Director
Name Appointment Resignation Name Appointment  Resignation
E Beckley G | W Parsons .
R Blomfield-Smith 29 November 2012 P Noble 29 November 2012
C R Deacen R Evenden
SR Faves M C Hill
G | W Parsons E Beckley e e
D Rees 29 October 2012 2 January 2013 S Kolenc 29 October 2012 _ 2 January 2013
K Roseke 2 January 2013 24 May 2013 D Rees 2 January 2013 24 May 2013
D J Shah OBE K Roseke 2 January 2013
C Van Heiyningen 2 January 2013
¥ Sh 28 September 2012 | F Sheng ... _128September 2012
R Vernon 29 October 2012 $ Kolenc i . 29 October 2012
L Webb C Pham o
D Xu 28 October 2012 F Sheng 29 October 2012

Thames Water Utilittes Limited conducts its appointed business so as to ensure arm's length trading and
avoidance of cross-subsidy in the spint of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment

No directorships are held by Thames Water Utiities Limited directors in circumstances, which might in practice,
result in conflicts of interest in intra-group trading relationships
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Directors’

Thames Water Utilities Limited

Directors’ Certificate under Condition F6A of the Company’s

Appointment

Certificate under

Condition F6A of the Company’s
Appointment

This 1s to certify that at therr meeting on 6 June
2012 the directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited
(“the Appointee”) resolved as follows

that, 1n the opinion of the directors’, the
Appointee will have avallable to it
sufficient financial resources and facilities
to enable it to carry out, for at least the
next 12 months, the Regulated Activities
(including the investment programme
necessary to fulfl the Appointee's
obligations under the Appointment(s)),

that, in the opinion of the directors, the
Appointee will, for at least the next 12
months, have avallable to it

{a) Management resources
{b) Systems of ptanning and internal
control

Which are sufficient to enable 1t to carry
out those functions as required by sub-
paragraph 6A 1(1),

that, in the opinion of the directors, all
contracts entered into with any associated
company include all necessary provisions
and requirements concerning the
standard of service to be suppled to the
Appointee, to ensure that it 15 able to
meet all its obligations as a water and a
sewerage undertaker
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The main factors the directors have taken into

account

in compliance with the Directors’

Certificate under condition F6A of the Company's
appointment are

that the processes and systems of
internal control operated as expected

that the Appointee operated as if it were
substantially the Appointee’s sole
business and that the Appointee were a
separate pubhc mited Company

that financial resources and facilities are
adequate to enable the Appointee to
meet its regulatory obhgations

the net worth of the Company and the
strength of the Company's key
performance indicators as shown on
page 6 of the Chief Executive Officer's
Business review

the strong investment grade ratings as
shown on page 14 of the Chief Executive
Officer's Business review
borrowing  facilities, which include
significant, undrawn bank facilities

the ocutcome of the 2009 regulatory price
review for the five year peried to 31
March 2015 and s mpact on the
appointee’s business plans

S Siddall
Chief Financial Officer
6 June 2013




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Risk and compliance statement

Background and explanation
Purpose of this document

Ofwat expects every water company to produce a
yearly nsk and complance statement which
should set out how they have complied with
relevant statutory, licence and regulatory
obligations This 15 one of Ofwat’s key regulatory
tocls and allows companies to demonstrate their
accountability to ther customers and demonstrate
to Ofwat that they are complying with therr
oblhigations

Introduction

We are responsible for providing our customers
with good quality water, sanitation and drainage
Services

Since Thames Water Utiihies Limited was
privatsed in 1989, a regulatory framework has
been in place to ensure that consumers receive
high standards of service at a farr pnce We must
also comply with natonal and European
legislation

QOur activities are licensed and mornitored by a
number of different regulatory bodies, including
the European Commission, the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affars, the Water
Services Regulation Authonty (Ofwat), the
Environment Agency, the Drnking Water
Inspectorate, the Office of Farr Trading and the
Consumer Counci for Water

This I1s the second year that we have produced a
Risk and Compliance Statement and have done
50 In response to a requirement from Ofwat, our
economic regulator

We suppoert the use of a Risk and Compliance
Statement to demonstrate that Thames Water is
accountable to its customers and to demonstrate
to Ofwat that the company 1s complying with its
obligations

Scope of the Statement

Ofwat expects all water companies to produce a
statement setting out how they have complied
with their relevant statutory, licence and regulatory
obligations, for which Ofwat 15 the relevant
enforcement authonty' (“Obligations”)

Last year our Risk and Compliance Statement
covered compliance with the following

e Our Instrument of Appointment,

' On 29 March 2012 Ofwat published its document "Risk and
Compliance Statement - guidance” In this document Ofwat
sets out its expectatrons for all companmies to produce a
statement setting out how they have complad with their
relevant statutory licence and regulatory obligations
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+ 7 pieces of European legislation, and
* 12 key pieces of national legislation for which
Ofwat 1s the relevant enforcement authority
This year we extended the scope of the legislation
covered by our Risk and Complhance Statement
by an additional 69 pieces of environmental and
corporate national legislation in addition to Ofwat's
12 key pieces
We refer to these collectively as our Obhgations
The Statement applies to the period 1 Apnl 2012
to 31 March 2013, unless otherwise stated

Requirements of the Statement

In the guidance' Ofwat sets out a number of

detalls of the statements and reports which it

expects companies to make For the sake of

clanty and completeness, we set these out below

1 A statement that the company considers it
has a full understanding of and 1s meeting its
Obligations

2 A statement that the company has taken
steps to understand and meet customer
expectations

3 A statement confirming that the company has
satisfied itself that it has sufficient processes
and internal systems of control to fully meet
its Oblgations, together with an explanation if
it considers 1t 1s unable to make this
statement

4 A statement that the company has
appropriate systems and processes In place
to allow it to \dentfy, manage and review its
nsks

5 A report, by exception, of where delivery of
outputs 1s matenally different to our final
determination, being applicable only to
outputs not covered by the key indicators (for
example, requirements to deliver specific
schemes)

? Ofwal states on us websie (at

hitp /www ofwal gov uk/indusiryoverview/today/flegislation/nat
onal) that it considers these to be the key legislation with which
water and sewerage companies must comply




Thames Water Utilities Limited

Risk and compliance statement

The Statements

Thames Water fully recognises its accountabifity
to its customers, s regulators and its other
stakeholders and 1s pleased to prowvide the
following statement to demonstrate that it
complies with its Obhgations and 1s managing its
risk (n an appropriate manner

1 The Company considers it has a full
understanding of and 15 meeting its
Obhgations

For the reporting year 2012-13, the Company has
assessed its compliance with key Obligations

The Company’s Internal Audit function reviewed
the activities that led to this assessment as part of
its assurance of the Annual Return 2013

Addionally, the Company has employed the
services of its former Reporter to Ofwat to audit
the information contained in its Annual Return
2013 and confirm complance with its reporting
obligations to Ofwat

Based on the results of these exercises, the
Company has identified that there are no matenal
exceptions to the statement that the Company
‘considers it has a full understanding of and s
meeting its Obligations’

Where the assurance activities have identified the
need for further control improvements, we will
monitor progress to completion

2 The Company has taken steps to
understand and meet customer
expectations

For the reporting year 2012-13, the Company has
taken steps to understand and meet customer
expectations
The Company continually gathers customer
feedback and engages with its customers in order
to understand therr expectations Dunng the
reporting vyear 2012-13, the Company has
ensured that our communications adhere with
Ofwat's information principles The Company has
« regularly used its 2,000-strong customer
panel to review topics such as

s service levels,

+ drought perceptions, and

¢ drought campaign communications

« met regularly with the Customer Challenge
Group to help shape its plans for the 2014

132

Price Review Meetings are held monthly and
actions discussed

e held consultations and focus groups on its
Water Resources Management Plan, Drought
Plan and two current major projects, the
Thames Tideway Tunnel and Phase 1 of the
upgrade to Deephams Sewage Treatment
Works

o developed websites
www deephamsconstitation co uk and
www thamestdewaytunnelcouk to share
significant projects with customers and
stakeholders

s engaged with numerous groups on local
iIssues and a customer engagement portal, for
internal use, 1s under construction to share all
engagement and consultation activity

¢ held deliberative workshops and focus groups
on topics including our

o future plans,

drought ,

water efficiency,

bill design, and

service improvements

o0 C O

+ undertaken customer satisfaction surveys at
key customer touch points such as at the end
of a telephone call and following a customer
appointment

+ conducted complaint analysis to identify root
cause and trends in order continue to iImprove
our service

More broadly, the Company's current business
plan 1s based on extensive customer research
undertaken as part of the 2009 Price Review

We have continued to build on our customer
service strategy This was achieved using
feedback we have recewved from customers and
through understanding the causes of customer
contacts

3 The Company has satisfied itself that it
has sufficient processes and internal
systems of control to fully meet its
Obligations

The Company has processes and nternal
systems of control to meet its obligations

In addtion to ensunng that i has a full
understanding of, and 1s meeting the Obligations,
the Company has assessed the controls that
assure its achievement of these Obligations
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These controls include the Company's Internal
Audit function, and its self-certification and nsk
management processes We have improved our
knowledge of our obhigations, within the business,
but recognise that further work 15 stll required to
fully embed these processes into our 'business as
usual’ practice

4 The Company has appropriate systems
and processes in place to allow it to
wentify, manage and review its nsks

The Company 1s able to demonstrate appropriate
systems to identify, manage and review its nsks
We include within this Statement any nsks to
delivering the company's strategic objectives,
regulatory and statutory obligations, performance
targets and specified outputs

When identfying and assessing nsks, the

company 1s mindful of Ofwat's broad outcomes for

customers 1t accepted in the Final Determination
of November 2009, namely

+ ensuning there 1s no deterioration in service to
customers, or in the level of comphance with
all environmental consents and licences,

+« mantaning all our asset systems so that we
can sustain stable serviceabihty throughout
the period and beyond,

¢ Instaling a water meter for all those
custormers that take up the option for a
measured service and allowing any customer
to revert to an unmeasured service if
requested within the time imits set down,

« meeting changes in demand for water service
both from new and existing customers,
promote the efficient use of water by our
custemers and ensuring that leakage 1s kept
below the taerget level,

+ meeting all changes in demand for sewerage
services both from new and existing
customers while complying with all
environmental discharge consents,

+ delivering the programmes for improving the
quahty of dnnking water and the environment
as specified, and

¢ delivering the programme of other service
improvements

No nsk management process can prevent all nsks

from matenalising The Company has well

established processes that identify, manage and

review fnisks ncluding

« monthly performance reporting, that ncludes
regulatory measures, compiled by a central
team independent of operational responsibility

« regular review by the company’'s Regulatory
Performance Group, which looks both at
performance and nsk
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e oversight by the Thames Water Regulatory
Committee

e the corporate nsk management process,
which considers nsks and response plans to
all company i1ssues The summansed nsk
register 1s reviewed by the Executive Team
monthly, and by the Audit and Risk Review
Committee quarterly

Each year we publish our prnincipal nsks and
uncertainties within the annual report and
accounts which set out the matenal risks the
company 1s currently facing, together with
mitigation steps it 1s taking These can be located
in the business review on pages 18 to 21

5 Delivery of outputs

For 2012-13, the Company bhas matenally
delivered its outputs set by Ofwat in the Final
determination of 2009

As part of its Annual Return subrission to Ofwat,

the company has prowvided,

+ a completed KPI dashboard as required by
Ofwat In which performance against key
performance measures n  2012-13 s
presented, and

+ a comprehensive Outputs Report showing
delivery aganst its 2009 Final Determination
outputs for 2012-13

These reports have been audited by the
Company’'s former Reporter, who has confirmed
the reported performance

Ofwat's expectation is that compantes should
report by exception if delwery of outputs s
matenally different to ther final deternmination
Thames Waters interpretation of matenality 1s
based upon the Ofwat financial significance test of
two per cent of annual turnover, combined with
significant 1impact on its customers or its
reputation

The Company has identified two exceptions to
delivery of the final determination outputs in 2012-
13 These are as follows

Delivery of ‘stable serviceability’

Last year our performance assessment for our
underground wastewater assets moved from
‘stable’ to 'marginall This means that the
performance of these assets has worsened and 1s
outside of the performance targets set by Ofwat

This assessment of performance I1s dniven by the
significant increase in sewer flooding and pollution
incidents The year was particularly challenging
due to the record rainfall which caused large




Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority
and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of
Thames Water Utiities Limited ("the Company”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013 on pages 99 to
128 which compnse

+ the regulatory historical cost accounting
statements, compnsing the regulatory
historical cost profit and loss account, the
requlatory historical cost balance sheet,
the regulatory historical cost statement of
total recognised gains and losses and the
historical cost reconcihiation between
statutory and regulatory accounts, and

+ the regulatory current cost accounting
statements for the appointed business,
compnsing the current cost profit and loss
account, the current cost balance sheet,
the current cost cash flow statement and
the related notes to the current cost
financial statements, including the
statement of accounting policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared
in accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting policies set out in the Statement of
Accounting Policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been
agreed, solely to the Company and the Water
Services Regulation Authonty {‘the WSRA™ In
order to meet the requirements of Condition F of
the Instrument of Appomtment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the
Company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Industry Act 1991 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company and the WSRA those matters that we
have agreed to state to them in our report, in
order {(a) to assist the Company to meet its
obligation under Condition F to procure such a
report and (b} to facilitate the carrying out by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibilily to anyone
other than the Company and the WSRA, for our
audrtt work, for this report or for the opinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of the directors
and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Statement of
Drrectors' Responsibilities set out on page 27, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Regulatory Accounts and for therr far presentation
In accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting poficies Our responsibiity 1s to audit
and express an opinton on the Regulatory
Accounts In accordance with International
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Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), except as
stated in the "Scope of the audit of the Regulatory
Accounts” below, and hawving regard to the
guidance contained in Audit 05/03 “Reporting to
Regulators of Regulated Entities” 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants n England and
Wales Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures i the Regulatory
Accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Regulatory Accounts are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Company's circumstances and have been
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of  significant  accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Regulatory Accounts In
addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information 1n the regulatory accounts to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
Regulatory Accounts If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or inconsistencies, we
constider the implications for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Company where these are lard down by
Conditon F Where Condition F does not give
specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of
whether the accountng policies adopted In
respect of the transactions and balances required
to be included in the Regulatory Accounts are
consistent with those used in the preparation of
the statutory financial statements of the Company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of
Regulatory Accounts are determined by the
WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy
of the presentation of the information, which would
have been required If we were to express an audit
opinion under International Standards on Auditing
{UK & Ireland)
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quantities of groundwater and rniver water to enter
our sewers and those owned pnvately and by
local authorties Despite these exceptional
circumstances, we have not atways provided the
best service to our customers, for example the
speed at which we responded to blockages, could
have been better We are continuing to implement
our recovery plans to return to 'stable’
serviceability

Customer service performance

Our customer service performance 1S not as good
as we would like It to be Although there 1s no set
regulatory target for customer satisfaction, this
causes us concern as our customer service
aspiration is to deliver the basics excellently

Board endorsement

Last year was particularly challenging due to the
introduction of a new IT system, which together
with the heavy rainfall we expenenced, put a
strain on our resources and the service we were
able to provide We implemented a number of
changes to our processes to stabilise our service
performance and to provide a strong platform
upon which to delwer improvement in the current
year and beyond

With respect to the Company's five year
obligations, the Company has identified that it will
be able to deliver the required net reduction to its
high nsk flooding register at a significantly
reduced cost This saving will be passed back to
customers at the next price review

The Board confirms that, insofar as it 1s aware, having made reasonable enquines, the information contained
in the Risk and Compliance Statement 1s matenally accurate at the date below

06 June 2013

Sir Peter Mason KBE
Chairman

Signature

=

Martin Baggs
Chief Executive Officer

Sign

Z ad

Michael Pavia
Independent Non-Executive Director

Signature

MVUWAJPW

For and on behalf of the Board of Thames Water Utilities Limited




Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority
and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of
Thames Water Utiites Limited {“the Company”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013 on pages 99 to
128 which comprise

+ the regulatory histonical cost accounting
statements, compnsing the regulatory
histonical cost profit and loss account, the
regulatory historical cost balance sheet,
the regulatory histoncal cost statement of
total recognised gains and losses and the
histonical cost reconciiation between
statutory and regulatory accounts, and

« the regulatory current cost accounting
statements for the appointed business,
comprising the current cost profit and loss
account, the current cost balance sheet,
the current cost cash flow statement and
the related notes to the current cost
financial  statements, including the
statement of accounting policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared
in accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting policies set out in the Statement of
Accounting Policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been
agreed, solely to the Company and the Water
Services Regulation Authority (‘the WSRA®) n
order to meet the requirements of Condition F of
the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the
Company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Industry Act 1991 QOur audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company and the WSRA those matters that we
have agreed to state to them in our report, :n
order (a) to assist the Company to meet its
obligation under Condition F to procure such a
report and (b} to facilitate the carrying ocut by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the WSRA, for our
audit work, for this report or for the optnions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of the directors
and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 27, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the
Regulatory Accounts and for therr fair presentation
in accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting policies Our responsibility 1s to audit
and express an opinion on the Regulatory
Accounts 1In  accordance with International
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Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), except as
stated in the “Scope of the audit of the Regulatory
Accounts” below, and having regard to the
guidance contained in Audit 05/03 “Reporting to
Regulators of Regulated Entites”™ 1ssued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaning evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory
Accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Regulatory Accounts are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This Includes an assessment of whether
the accounting pelicies are appropriate to the
Company’'s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant  accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Regulatory Accounts |[n
addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information n the regulatory accounts to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited
Regulatory Accounts If we become aware of any
apparent musstatements or inconsistencies, we
consider the imphcations for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Company where these are laid down by
Condition F Where Condition F does not give
specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies adopted in
respect of the transactions and ba‘ances required
to be included in the Regulatory Accounts are
consistent with those used Iin the preparation of
the statutory financial statements of the Company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of
Regulatory Accounts are determined by the
WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy
of the presentation of the information, which would
have been required If we were to express an audit
opinion under International Standards on Auditing
(UK & Ireland)




Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority
and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our opinion, the Regulatory Accounts

« farly present in accordance with
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines 1ssued by the WSRA and the
accounting policies set out on page 106 to
108 and 114 to 115, the state of the
Company's affairs at 31 March 2013 on
an histoncal cost and current cost basis,
and its histornical cost and current cost
profit and its current cost cash flow for the
year then ended, and

» have been properly prepared In
accordance with Condition F, the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines and the
accounting  policies  (including  the
accounting separation methodology)

Basis of preparation

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention
to the fact that the Reguilatory Accounts have
been prepared in accordance with Condition F of
the Appointment and the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelnes, the accounting peclicies set out in the
statement of accounting policies and, in the case
of the regulatory historical cost accounting
statements, under the histornical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the
statutory financial statements of the Company and
have not been prepared under the basis of United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
("UK GAAP™ Financial information other than that
prepared on the basis of UK GAAP does not
necessarlly represent a true and farr view of the
financial performance or financial position of a
company as shown i statutory financial
statements prepared In accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 Furthermore, the regulatory
historical cost accounting statements on pages
102 and 103 have been drawn up in accordance
with Regulatory Accounting Guidelne 3 07, in that
infrastructure renewals accounting as appled in
previous years should continue to be appled and
accordingly, that the relevant sections of UK
Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be
disapplled The effect of this departure from
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and a
reconciiation of the balance sheet drawn up on
this basis to the balance sheet drawn up under
the Companies Act 2006 1s given on page 104
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by
Condition F

Under the terms of our contract, we have
assumed responsibility to provide those additional
opinions required by Condition F in relation to the
accounting records In our opinion

s proper accounting records have been
kept by the appointee as required by
paragraph 3 of Condition F, and

+ the Regulatory Accounts are In
agreement with the accounting records
and returns retaned for the purpose of
prepanng the Regulatory Accounts

Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA It 1s not
appropriate for us to assess whether the nature of
the information being reported upon s suitable or
appropriate  for the WSRA's  purposes
Accordingly, we make no such assessment

Our opmion on the Regulatory Accounts s
separate from our opinion on the statutory
financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2012 on which we report, which
are prepared for a different purpose Our audit
report In relaton to the statutory financial
statements of the Company {our "statutory audit”)
was made solely to the Company's members, as
a body, i accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our statutory audit work
was undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in a statutory audit repont
and for no other purpose In these circumstances,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom our
statutory audit report 1s shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

L PMG At Pl
et

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
London

6 June 2013




Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority
and the Directors of Thames Water Utilities Limited

Notes

1 The mantenance and ntegnty of the
Company’'s web site 1s the responsibiity of the
directors and the maintenance and integnty of the
Regulator's web site 1s the responsibility of the
Regulator, the work carrned out by the auditors
does not involve consideraticn of these matters
and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibiity for any changes that may have
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occurred to the Regulatory Accounts since they
were Inihally presented on the web sites

2 Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements and Regulatory Accounts may differ
from legistation in other junsdictions
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Glossary of regulatory terms

AMP adjustment — The revision in the real value
of fixed assets ansing penodically from improved
information i the five-year Asset Management
Plan process

Appointed Busimess - The appointed husiness
comprises the regulated activities of the Company
which are activities necessary n order for a
company to fuffil the function and duties of a water
and sewerage undertaker under the Woater
Industry Act 1991

Arm’s-length trading - Trading in which the
Company treats the other party, usually an
associate company on the same basis as an
external party

Asset Management Plan (AMP) — A plan agreed
with Ofwat on a five-yearly basis for the
management of water and wastewater assets
The plan runs for a five-year period AMP4
covers the investment penod April 2005 to March
2010 AMP5 covers the investment penod Aprl
2010 to March 2015

Assocciate company — Condition A of the Licence
defines an associate company to be any group or
related company Condition F of the Licence
requires all transactions between the Company
and its associated companies to be disclosed
subject to specified matenalty considerations

Capital Incentive Scheme (“CI1S”) —Under this
mechamism Ofwat sets a baseline capital
expenditure plan, which they believe companies
should be able to delver Companies are
rewarded or penalsed durng AMP 5 for
submitting a business plan, which 1s lower or
higher than the baseline respectively Companies
will then be further rewarded or penalised at the
start of AMP 6 for underspending or overspending
against that business plan

CIS will apply to capital expenditure only, not to
operational expenditure and will not apply to large
projects such as the Lee Tunnel

Final determination - The conclusion of
discussions on the scale and content of the asset
management plan for the forthcoming five-year
AMP period 1t 1s accompanied by a determination
of the allowable K factor for the forthcoming AMP

Financing adjustment — The impact of RPI on
the real value of net finance for the business

K factor — The annual increase, set by Ofwat, In
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charges that companies in the water industry can
make The amount by which a company can
increase (or must decrease) its charges 1s
controlled by the price limit formula RPI + or — K"
+ ‘U RPI 15 expressed as the percentage
increase In the Retall Price Index in the year to
November before the charging year “K" 15 a
number determined by Ofwat for each company,
usually at a price review, for each year to reflect
what it needs above or below inflation in order to
finance the provision of services to customers and
*U" 1s the amount of ‘K" not taken up by a
company In previous years

Licence — The Instrument of Appointment dated
August 1989 under Secton 11 and 14 of the
Water Act 1989 (as in effect on 1 August 1989)
under which the Secretary of State for the
Environment appointed Thames Water Utiities
Limited as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Act for the areas described in the
Instrument of Appointment, as modffied or
amended from time to time

Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) — The cost of
an asset of equivalent productive capabilty to
satisfy the remaining service potential of the asset
being valued if the asset would be worth
replacing, or the recoverable amount if it would
not The gross MEA value 1s what it would cost to
replace an old asset with a technically up to date
new asset with the same service capability
altowing for any difference both in the quality of
output and in operating costs  The net MEA value
1s the depreciated value taking into account the
remaining service potential of an old asset
compared with a new asset, and 1s stated gross of
third-party contributions

Non-appointed business — The non-appointed
business activities of the Company are activities
for which the Company as a water and sewerage
undertaker 1s not a monopoly supplier (for
example, the sale of laboratory services to an
external organisation} or tnvolves the optional use
of an asset owned by the Company (for example,
the use of underground assets for cable
television)

Ofwat — The name used to refer to the Water
Services Regulaton Authorty (WSRA) The
WSRA acts as the economic Regulator of the
water industry

Periodic Review (PR) — The price determination
process undertaken by Ofwat every five years
Each water and sewerage undertaker submits an
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Glossary of regulatory terms

Asset Management Plan covenng the five-year
pertod for which Ofwat will determine prices (the K
factor — see above)

Price mit - The name gwen to the combination
of the RPl and K

Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAG) -
The accounting guidelines for regulatory accounts
1ssued, and amended from time to time, by Ofwat

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) — The capital
base used In setting pnce imits The value of the
appointed business that earns a return on
investment It represents the mbial market value
(200-day average), including debt at privatisation,
plus subsequent net new capital expenditure
including new oblgations imposed since 1989
The capital value 1s calculated using the Ofwat
methodology (1e after current cost depreciation
and infrastructure renewals accrual)

Retail Price Index (RP1) — The RPIl 1s compiled
and published monthly by the Office for National
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Statistics RPI 1s an average measure of change
in the prices of goods and services bought for the
purpose of consumption by the vast majornity of
households in the United Kingdom

Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) - Ofwat's
measure of customer satisfaction based on
surveys of customers who have contacted the
Company and the number of contacts received
whtch express dissatisfaction

Third-party contributions since 1989/80 -~
Grants and third-party contributions received in
respect of infrastructure assets and any deferred
income relating to grants and third-party
contributions for non-infrastructure assets

Working capital — The aggregate of stocks, trade
debtors and trade creditors, If matenal

Working capital adjustment — The impact of RPI
on the real value of working capital to the
business




